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Five Years Financial Summary

T EHBERE

A summary of the published results and assets, liabilities and AT AXREEBERETBEE 2 E QM
total equity/(capital deficiency) of the Group for the last five B BE - BBEMRAER (BRI
financial years, as extracted from the Group’s audited financial MVAERE NESARNEE 2 KB
statements, is set out below: R

(A) RESULTS 2 4%

Year ended 31 December
BE+-_B=1t—-HLEE
2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
—E2-NE ZF-N\F ZF—tF ZF-F —T-1fF
TERT FET FAET FHET FAT

Revenue Wz 504,536 961,440 529,884 718,879 721,810

Loss before income tax BTSSR (110,521) (154,893) (196,614) (264,330)  (385,109)

Income tax credit FrigfiE o 3,072 2,261 - 3,304 14,777
Loss for the year FAEIE (107,449) (152,632) (196,614) (261,026) (370,332)
Loss attributable to non-  FEIZAR HEZS FE(S

controlling interests &8 7,527 9,885 17,756 24,831 35,015

Loss attributable to the KABHRE AE
owners of the Company /18 (99,922) (142,747) (178,858) (236,195) (335,317)

Rosan Resources Holdings Limited Annual Report 2019



N

Five Years Financial Summary

T EHBERE

(B) ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND TOTAL EQUITY/ EE - BEERAER  (BXRE
(CAPITAL DEFICIENCY) )

As at 31 December

R+=—A=+—H
2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ZE-NE —F-)N\F ZE—LF-F-KF _T-I1F
TERT FAT FAET FHET FAT

Non-current assets ERBEE 391,044 863,625 674,564 680,166 902,177
Current assets mENE E 156,356 1,207,277 1,411,855 1,243,954 1,466,044
Total assets BEE 547,400 2,070,902 2,086,419 1,924,120 2,368,221
Current liabilities mEIEE 569,077 2,095,718 2,030,037 1,731,112 1,887,862
Non-current liabilities B =K 61,893 138,651 132,970 92,593 102,531
Total liabilities wEE 630,970 2,234,369 2,163,007 1,823,705 1,990,393

(Capital deficiency)/Total (BARE4H)

equity R A 1 25 (83,570) (163,467)  (76,588) 100,415 377,828
— attributable to the —RRAREEA

owners of the Company FEAg (85,975)  (105,654) (8,666) 152,044 403,125
- Non-controlling interests ~ — % A% # 25 2,405 (57,813)  (67,922)  (51,629)  (25,297)

BEERIERERLT 2019FFRH 5



Chairman’s Statement

ETRE®|E

| am pleased to present on behalf of the board (the “Board”)
of directors (the “Directors”) to the shareholders the report
on the results on Rosan Resources Holdings Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (together referred to as the
“Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2019 (the “Year").

Year 2019 is a critical and challenging year to the Group. On
the one hand, the Group has successfully undergone group
restructuring (i.e. the disposal of Clear Interest Limited and
its subsidiaries (“CIL Group”)) in the last quarter of the Year.
On the other hand, the Group has been facing the general
economic downturn resulting from the trade dispute between
China and United States (“US”). The unexpectable significant
influence from the outbreak of COVID-19 happened since early
2020 would also bring uncertainties to the Group’s operation
and result in the coming year.

Upon the completion of the said group restructuring, the
Group has significantly reduced the reliance on coal business
which was the major component causing the Group to incur
loss and high liability level continuously. Currently, the two
major business lines, i.e. Coal Business and Building Materials
Business, are running in a more balancing proportion to
the Group’s revenue. Therefore, the group restructuring has
enhanced the business diversification of the Group.

During the Year, the economic growth of the People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC") has already been facing great
pressure due to the trade tension between China and US.
The slowdown of economic growth has been reflected in the
drop of market commodity prices, including the coal price.
The weakened economic condition was not favorable to the
different industries including the coal market. Therefore, the
revenue obtained from Coal Business during the Year has been
dropped.

Since the outbreak of COVID-19 in early 2020, most of the
production and commercial activities in the PRC have been
suspended or shut down. Many enterprises’ operation and
production have been inevitably affected. The temporary
shutting down of the Group’s coal mine and building materials
production plant would have significant influence to the
turnover and result of the Group in the first half of year 2020.
Our management team is closely monitoring the situation and
will notify to all stakeholders of the Company from time to
time in relation to the influence from the COVID-19 incidence.

Rosan Resources Holdings Limited Annual Report 2019
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BUSINESS REVIEW

Completion of the Disposal of CIL Group

During the year 2019, the Group has undergone the disposal
of CIL Group which enhanced the Group to reduce the reliance
on coal business and to achieve a balanced result between
Coal Business and Building Materials Business.

In the past few years, the major proportion of the income and
result was contributed by the Coal Business. However, the coal
market was not favorable to most of the small to medium size
coal enterprises, including the Group. The Group has incurred
significant loss and liabilities resulting from the operation of
the coal mines in the past few years. Upon completion of the
disposal of CIL Group in December 2019, two out of the three
operating coal mines were disposed of to a company wholly-
owned by a connected person. The one coal mine (namely
Xiangyang Coal Mine) now remaining in the Group possesses
the largest coal reserve with quality coal amongst the three
coal mines previously owned by the Group. The Board believes
that Xiangyang Coal Mine would be able to bring favorable
result to the Group in the foreseeable future.

The above disposal has facilitated the Group to reduce its
liabilities significantly that would help the Group to reduce its
finance cost and to improve the liquidity, hence, to increase
the Group’s ability to achieve favorable result in the future.

Impact of Slow Economic Growth on Coal Business

In year 2019, the trade tension between China and US has
apparently caused the slowdown of mainland economic
growth. In such situation, general market demand and
expenditures have also been affected. Therefore, the demand
for coal has been slowed down, which has caused the price
of coal to drop in comparing with the beginning of the Year.
In addition to the reduction in sales volume during the weak
market condition, the total revenue generated from the Coal
Business of the Group for the Year has been dropped in
comparing with the year 2018 (“Last Year").

Chairman’s Statement
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Chairman’s Statement

ETRE®|E

Achievement of Building Materials Business

In respect of the building materials industry, the government
has imposed different environment protection measurements
which have caused many local enterprises and competitors
suspended for rectification or further improvement. As
the production plant of the Building Materials Business
of the Group has been certified by the government as an
environmentally-qualified entity, those environment protection
measurements have no impact to the operation of the Group
but to other non-qualified enterprises. As a result, the Group
has obtained more building projects during the Year, hence,
the revenue of the Building Materials Business was increased.

PROSPECT

Looking forward, the global economy is facing significant
uncertainties and challenges resulting from the recent
outbreak of COVID-19 across the world as well as the trade
tension between China and US. It is anticipated that the China
economy would be going downward in the first half of year
2020. Nevertheless, the Chinese government has imposed
adequate and effective measures to control the disease from
further spreading as at the date of this report. Also, the trade
tension between China and US has been soothed in the past
few months. The management of the Company believes that
the threat from the above incidents to the economy would
only be temporary in nature. The Group remain confident in
long-term development growth with promising prospects in
China.

APPRECIATION

I would like to take this opportunity to express my most sincere
thanks and gratitude to our shareholders, and various parties
for their continuing support, and our directors and staff for
their dedication and hard work.

Bao Hongkai
Chairman

Hong Kong, 13 May 2020
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Management Discussion and Analysis

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue

The Group's total revenue for the Year amounted to
approximately HK$504.5 million, representing a decrease of
approximately 47.5% from approximately HK$961.4 million
of the Last Year. The decrease in revenue was primarily due to
reduction in sales volume and the sales price of coal. During
the Year, the total sales volume of coal has decreased to
approximately 741,000 tons which was lower than the sales
volume of the Last Year (approximately 1,679,000 tons) by
approximately 55.9%. On the contrary, as the demand for
building materials increased during the Year as explained in
the section of Chairman’s Statement, the total revenue of
Building Materials Business was increased from approximately
HK$198.0 million to approximately HK$225.8 million.

Cost of sales and gross profit

The cost of sales and gross profit for the Year were
approximately HK$459.9 million (the Last Year: approximately
HK$901.9 million) and approximately HK$44.6 million (the
Last Year: gross profit of approximately HK$59.5 million)
respectively.

The gross profit margin was improved from approximately
6.2% for the Last Year to approximately 8.8% for the Year.
During the Year, income from sales of building materials
and rental income from leasing boundary wall moulds have
contributed higher profit margin to the Group.

The Building Material Business is operated by a subsidiary,
Henan Xingan New Construction Materials Company Limited*
O EZHAEZEMEIBR/AR) (“Henan Xingan"”) which
was acquired in Last Year. Henan Xingan is located right next
to a state-owned power generating plant which produces
scrap materials during its operation and such scrap materials
are the main raw materials for the production of building
materials by Henan Xingan. Therefore, Henan Xingan can
obtain such raw materials in a cost effective way. As a result,
the favorable location of Henan Xingan allows the company
to save costs and bring a favorable gross profit to the Group'’s
result.

*  For identification purpose only

EEENWKR DN

Bt 7% [B] B8
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEENWKR DM

Selling and distribution expenses

Slightly decrease of approximately HK$0.2 million in selling
and distribution expenses from approximately HK$37.6 million
of the Last Year to approximately HK$37.4 million for the Year,
was due to the outbound transportation cost incurred by the
Building Materials Business remained almost unchange as Last
Year.

Administrative expenses

During the Year, the total administrative expenses amounted
to approximately HK$92.3 million (the Last Year: approximately
HK$90.1 million) which mainly comprised of: (i) employee
benefits expense of approximately HK$31.8 million (the
Last Year: approximately HK$33.6 million); (ii) amortisation
of mining right and other intangible assets amounted to
approximately HK$6.6 million (the Last Year: approximately
HK$7.9 million); (iii) depreciation of property, plant and
equipment amounted to approximately HK$11.4 million (the
Last Year: approximately HK$8.6 million); and (iv) depreciation
of right-of-use assets amounted to approximately HK$2.8
million (the Last Year: Nil).

Finance costs

The finance costs decreased by approximately 16.7%
from approximately HK$101.5 million for the Last Year to
approximately HK$84.5 million for the Year. The decrease
in the finance costs was mainly due to the decrease in the
average amount of bank and other loans during the Year.

Net loss attributable to the owners of the company

The net loss attributable to the owners of the Company for
the Year was approximately HK$99.9 million, representing a
decrease of approximately 30.0% as compared with the Last
Year of approximately HK$142.7 million. The reasons for the
decrease in net loss attributable to the owners of the Company
were mainly due to the reduction in finance cost and obtaining
interest income from a matured fixed deposit.

Accounts and bills receivables and contract assets

As at 31 December 2019 (the "“Current Year End”), the
accounts and bills receivables and contract assets amounted
to approximately HK$96.2 million, representing a decrease
of approximately 78.8% as compared to the accounts and
bills receivables and contract assets as at 31 December 2018
(the “Last Year End”) of approximately HK$454.6 million.
The decrease was mainly due to the decrease in the revenue
obtained from Coal Business as well as the disposal of CIL
Group.

Rosan Resources Holdings Limited Annual Report 2019
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Amongst the total amount of accounts receivable less
allowance for credit losses (excluding the bills receivable
and contract assets) as at the Current Year End, the largest
customer of the Group was the largest debtor who has
contributed approximately HK$26.6 million (equivalent to
approximately RMB23.8 million) or approximately 21.1% of
the total accounts receivable amount.

Accounts and bills payables

The Group has no bills payable as at the Current Year End
(the Last Year End: approximately HK$607.8 million) and
has accounts payables amounting to approximately HK$32.5
million (the Last Year End: approximately HK$50.3 million).
Upon the disposal of CIL Group, the Group’s liquidity has been
improved and no longer required bills payable for settlement.

Other payables, accruals and deposit received

The total amount of other payables and accruals have been
decreased by approximately 34.1% from approximately
HK$551.4 million as at the Last Year End to approximately
HK$363.6 million as at the Current Year End. As at the
Current Year End, the other payables were mainly comprised
of provision for PRC retirement benefit scheme contributions
amounting to approximately HK$74.7 million (the Last Year
End: approximately HK$194.7 million), contract liabilities
amounting to approximately HK$17.3 million (the Last Year
End: approximately HK$13.2 million), accrued workers’ wages
and benefits amounting to approximately HK$104.7 million
(the Last Year End: approximately HK$51.5 million).

EEENWKR DN
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BEEREBNwR DM

ESTIMATED COAL RESOURCES OF THE COAL AEENRE 2 HFFERER
MINES OF THE GROUP

The following table summarized the estimated coal resources TEBIAEENEBERA-_Z—HLER—
(in million tons, “mt") of the coal mines of the Group as at 31 E-NE+-_A=+—BHWHTERER

December 2019 and 2018: (LLBEEME EEm]) :
As at As at
31 December 31 December
2019 2018
mt mt
R-ZE—NE RZZE—N\F
+=A +=A
=t+—H =t—H
BE ==

Coal mines operated and owned by ~ RNEEBERL MR 7 EIE

the Group
(i) Xiaohe Coal Mine No.1 (note 2) @)/ om — T (K 7E2) N/A T iEH 6.4
(i) Xiangyang Coal Mine (i) B K B2 13.9 14.2
(iii) Xingyun Coal Mine (note 2) (iii) B 4 A (B aE2) N/A =& 3.2
13.9 23.8
Notes: Bt -
(1) Major assumptions adopted for the annual updates on the () HWEETEREREETEEEFHIEER
above estimated coal resources were: AITEREA:
(i) Original coal resources of each coal mine were made () BEBERERERENZLEZ/RRE
reference to the relevant coal resources reports and/ TREWME RSN SRR R
or coal mine information available to the Group at the EFBABRZER:

time of acquisition of the respective coal mines;

(ii) Annual updates on the estimated coal resources for iy AEERSEBEZGHTERERE
each coal mine as at Current Year End were calculated FEEHMIIIR NI XEE
as follow:

(Estimated coal resources as at the Last Year End) — (FEERGHEAAHEREEE) —
(Actual coal production volume for the Year); (ERNEBRERES)

(iii) There was no material structural change within the coal (i) HEErELBESAEETEGeE
mines that will cause the significant deviation between HERHEREREANBREE L e
the actual coal resources and the above annual EEHFEL
updates.

(2) Xiaohe Coal Mine No.1 and Xingyun Coal Mine were disposed Q) IT—EREEHBEDARNEENE T —
of to a connected party during the year. ZREE AT o

Rosan Resources Holdings Limited Annual Report 2019



Management Discussion and Analysis

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND
CAPITAL STRUCTURE

As at the Current Year End, the net liabilities of the Group
was approximately HK$83.6 million (as at the Last Year End:
approximately HK$163.5 million) and the total cash and bank
balance was approximately HK$15.9 million while there was
no pledged and restricted bank deposits as at the Current
Year End (as at the Last Year End: approximately HK$692.4
million including pledged and restricted bank deposits). As
at the Current Year End, the Group had net current liabilities
of approximately HK$412.7 million (as at the Last Year
End: approximately HK$888.4 million) and its current ratio
decreased from 0.58 times as at the Last Year End to 0.27
times as at the Current Year End. The Group’s working capital
was mainly financed by internal cash flow generated from
its operation and the banking facilities granted by financial
institutions.

As at the Current Year End, the Group’s accounts and bills
receivables, net of any provision for impairment amounted
to approximately HK$95.4 million (as at the Last Year End:
approximately HK$452.6 million).

As at the Current Year End, no bank deposits (as at the
Last Year End: approximately HK$655.0 million) were
pledged or not available for the operation or repayment
of debts of the Group. No bank deposits (as at the Last
Year End: approximately HK$1.6 million) were restricted
for use in relation to administrative proceedings. Cash and
cash equivalents which were not pledged amounted to
approximately HK$15.9 million (as at the Last Year End:
approximately HK$35.8 million).

As at the Current Year End, the Group has bank and other
loans amounting to approximately HK$147.0 million (as at
the Last Year End: approximately HK$762.2 million), which
are due for repayment within one year from the reporting
date or repayable on demand. These bank and other loans
bear interest at interest rates ranging from 6.5% to 13.2%
per annum (as at the Last Year End: from 1.2% to 12.8% per
annum).

As at the Current Year End, the Group has neither bills payable
were secured by the Group’s pledged deposits nor guaranteed
by other parties (as at the Last Year End: approximately
HK$485.9 million of the Group’s bills payable secured by
the Group’s pledged deposits and HK$152.4 million were
guaranteed by a major customer or its subsidiaries).
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEENWKR DM

The Group’s gearing ratio (as a ratio calculated by (a) the sum
of bank and other loans, amount due to an associate and
amounts due to and loan from shareholders; divided by (b) the
total assets of the Group) was 37.6% (as at the Last Year End:
44.4%).

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

Save as disclosed in note 42(a) to the consolidated financial
statements, the Group did not have any other capital
commitments as at 31 December 2019.
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Profile of Directors and Senior Management

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Bao Hongkai, aged 50, has been appointed as the
chairman and executive director of the Company since April
2020. He graduated with bachelor degree from Henan
Polytechnic University, Henan Province, PRC and he also
obtained a master degree of business administration from
the National University of Singapore. He was the chairman
and executive director of the Company during the year 2006
to year 2010. He used to be as a coal mine technical adviser
and the safety supervisor. Mr. Bao has more than 20 years of
experience in coal mining industry in the PRC.

Mr. Dong Cunling, aged 58, has been appointed as the
executive director of the Company and chairman of the Board
since December 2011 and March 2012. He holds a professional
diploma in Chinese Language of Henan University, the PRC. He
has extensive experience in the management of coal mines. He
has put sufficient effort to lead the Board during the period
from March 2012 to March 2020 when he was the chairman
of the Board.

Mr. Li Xiangfei, aged 40, has been appointed as the
executive director of the Company since June 2018. Mr. Li
graduated in 2002 from Zhengzhou University with major
in Commercial and Business Management. He has extensive
working experience in mining industry and has been a key
management of a mining enterprise in the PRC. In recent
years, Mr. Li has focused on the development of green
economy and has been engaged as a chief operation officer of
a ski and resort development company in the PRC.

Mr. Sun Shusheng, aged 55, has been appointed as the
executive director of the Company since June 2018. He has
obtained the post graduate diploma from Henan University
with major in litigation law. He has extensive management
experience in sizeable insurance companies and state-owned
enterprises in the PRC. He has worked as top management
for the branches of certain insurance companies in China,
including People Insurance Company (Group) of China Limited
and China United Property Insurance Company Limited. Prior
to his joining to the Company, he was the general manager
of general support department of China United Property
Insurance Company Limited.

Mr. Zhang Yi, aged 33, has been appointed as the executive
director of the Company since February 2018. He graduated
in 2008 from Yangtze University major in Human Resources
Management. He has approximately 7 years of experience in
the financial industry, specialize in feasibility study of projects,
investment analysis and project development. He is currently
a manager of a real estate company. He had also served as
customer service manager of a bank in the PRC.
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Profile of Directors and Senior Management

ESkEREEEER

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Li Chunyan, aged 55, has been the non-executive
director of the Company since December 2011. He is currently
a registered lawyer at Henan Shi Ji Tong Law Firm (f] /gt
4REREAT) in the PRC and is also a certified public
accountant, certified public valuer and certified tax agent
in the PRC. Mr. Li has acted as a legal adviser to the Henan
Provincial People’s Hospital, the Henan TV Station and certain
listed companies in the PRC. Mr. Li was an independent non-
executive director in six PRC listed companies during the period
from 2002 to 2008. He is currently an independent non-
executive director (appointed in 2014 and will be retired in
2020) of Zhengzhou Yutong Bus Co., Ltd which listed on the
Shanghai Stock Exchange of the PRC. Mr. Li is also currently an
independent non-executive director of Zhongyu Gas Holdings
Limited since October 2010, which is listed on the main board
of the Stock Exchange.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Kwan Wing Hung, aged 53, graduated with master
of business administration from The Ohio State University,
United States. He has also obtained a bachelor degree in
Applied Mathematics from Chongqging University and master
degree in Systems Engineering from University of Shanghai for
Science and Technology, China. Mr. Kwan is both a member of
American Institute of Certified Public Accountant (“AICPA")
and Chartered Financial Analyst (“CFA"), the United States.
Mr. Kwan was the financial controller and investor relations
officer of a Hong Kong listed company from the year 2009 to
year 2016. He has extensive working experience in the mining
industry, real estate and fund investment. He is specialized in
the area of financial management, merger and acquisition and
fund investment.

Mr. Ma Geng, aged 61, graduated with doctor degree of
mining engineering from China University of Mining and
Technology (Beijing). He is currently an executive director, dean
and senior engineer of Henan Energy and Chemical Group
Company Limited. He is also acting as committee member of
Coal Industry Committee of Technology, China Coal Society
and Mining Professional Committee. He has extensive solid
experience engaging in coal mines safety production, mining
research and engineering.
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Profile of Directors and Senior Management

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Li Chun On, aged 46, joined the Group in September
2006 and was the executive director of the Company during
the period from 2009 to 2013. Mr. Li is currently the Company
Secretary, the chief financial officer and the authorised
representative of the Company. He graduated with bachelor
degree in accounting from the Hong Kong Polytechnic
University. Mr. Li has more than 20 years of experience in
accounting and corporate financial management. Mr. Li is
an associate member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants, and a fellow member of The Association
of Chartered Certified Accountants, United Kingdom.

EEEREEEERE

BREEE

FRRELE 465 N _STFIAM
AREE R-ZFTZNFE-T—=ZFH
BMABARRATES BEARAZAHF
WE MHRENRERR -REXNES
BIKRE BEt286 - FAENSET
LARFHERTEERB20F KR -F
EERBBEFMASEE NRENTS

AR ERER

BMEERERERLR 2019FF#H

17



18

Corporate Governance Report
TtRERBHRE

COMPLIANCE WITH CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE CODE

During the Year, the Company has complied with the code
provisions as set out in the Corporate Governance Code (the
“CG Code") contained in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Listing Rules”), except for the deviation as set
out below.

Code provision A.4.1 of the CG Code provides that non-
executive directors should be appointed for a specific
term, subject to re-election. The non-executive director
and independent non-executive directors (“INEDs”) of the
Company do not have a specific term of appointment, but are
subject to rotation in accordance with bye-law 111 of the Bye-
laws of the Company. As the non-executive director and INEDs
of the Company are subject to rotation in accordance with the
Bye-laws of the Company, the Board considers that the non-
executive director and INEDs of the Company so appointed
with no specific term will not impair the quality of corporate
governance of the Company as required by the principle of
good governance laid down in A.4 of the CG Code.

Code provision A.6.7 of the CG Code requires that INEDs and
the non-executive directors should attend general meetings.
All of them attended the 2019 annual general meeting of the
Company held on 30 May 2019.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies (the “Model
Code”) set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules as the
code of conduct regarding securities transactions by directors.
Having made specific enquiry, all Directors have fully complied
with the required standards set out in the Model Code
throughout the Year.
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Corporate Governance Report

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

As at the date of this report, the Board comprises eight
Directors and its composition is set out as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. Bao Hongkai (Chairman)
Mr. Dong Cunling

Mr. Li Xiangfei

Mr. Sun Shusheng

Mr. Zhang Yi

Non-Executive Director
Mr. Li Chunyan

INEDs

Mr. Kwan Wing Hung
Mr. Ma Geng

The brief biographical details of the Directors and the
relationship among them are set out in the section headed
"Profile of Directors and Senior Management” in the 2019
annual report of the Company, of which this report forms part.

RESPONSIBILITY OF BOARD AND
MANAGEMENT

The Board determines the overall strategies, monitors and
controls operating and financial performance and sets
appropriate policies to manage risks in pursuit of the Group’s
strategic objectives. Matters reserved for the Board are those
affecting the Group’s overall strategic policies, finances and
shareholders including financial statements, dividend policies,
significant changes in accounting policy, material contracts
and major investment. Day-to-day management of the Group’s
businesses is delegated to the executive Directors or senior
management. The Board reviews the delegation of power
and functions from time to time to ensure effectiveness and
appropriateness.
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Corporate Governance Report
TtRERBHRE

ATTENDANCE OF THE BOARD AND BOARD
COMMITTEEES

The Board meets regularly during the Year and the Directors
have made active contribution to the affairs of the Group. The
following table shows the attendance of all the Directors at the
meetings held during the year ended 31 December 2019:

HEESERZEEEERNE

EFENFATHE

PPy
1TTE &

REBFIH

AEEBZEBELERER - TRERD
BEFNEE_ZT-NF+_A=+—H

LFEALEEHRN

(EPE

Attendance/Number of Meetings

HER/EBRE
Audit Remuneration Nomination General

Board  Committee = Committee  Committee Meeting
Directors Bz ETZ® ENZEe HHZEE REZEE BRRAE
Executive Directors BiTES
Mr. Bao Hongkait s P - - - - -
Mr. Dong Cunling EFRESE 4 - - - 1
Mr. Li Xiangfei FAREE 1 - - - 0
Mr. Sun Shusheng HEELE 4 - - - 1
Mr. Zhang Yi RE LA 2 - - - 0
Mr. Zhou Guangwen* B X 2 - - - 0
Non-Executive Director FHTES
Mr. Li Chunyan THEELE 4 - - - 1
INEDs BUFHITES
Dr. Chen Renbao* BRLCEBL 4 2 1 1 1
Mr. Ma Wai Tong* BEELE 4 2 1 1 1
Mr. Ma Yueyong* BRER L 4 2 1 1 1
Mr. Kwan Wing Hung* st g - - _ _ _
Mr. Ma Geng* op e - - - - -

* Resigned by the date of this report
# Appointed after 31 December 2019

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The positions and roles of Chairman of the Board and Chief
Executive Officer of the Company are held and performed
separately by two individuals to ensure their respective
independence, accountability and responsibility. The Chairman,
being Mr. Bao Hongkai is responsible for corporate planning
and market development. The Chief Executive Officer,
being Mr. Sun Shusheng, he performs the functions of chief
executive of the Group, is responsible for the day-to-day
management of the Group.
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Corporate Governance Report

INEDS

One-third of the members of the Board consist of INEDs and at
least one of whom has appropriate professional qualifications
or accounting or related financial management expertise. The
Company has received from each independent non-executive
director of the Company an annual confirmation of his
independence for the year ended 31 December 2019 pursuant
to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and the Company considers all
INEDs to be independent during the Year.

APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF
DIRECTORS

Pursuant to code provision A.4.1 of the CG Code, non-
executive directors should be appointed for a specific term
and subject to re-election. The non-executive directors are not
appointed for specific terms but they are subject to retirement
by rotation and re-election at the annual general meetings
("AGM") of the Company. Pursuant to bye-law 111 of the
Bye-laws of the Company, each director of the Company shall
be subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three
years. The Board considers that the non-executive directors so
appointed with no specific term will not impair the quality of
corporate governance of the Group required by the principle of
good governance laid down in A.4 of the CG Code.

The procedures for Shareholders to propose a person for
election as a director of the Company are available and
accessible on the Company’s website at http://www.irasia.com/
listco/hk/rrhl.

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

During the Year, the Board has adopted a board diversity policy
(the “Board Diversity Policy”) which sets out the approach
to achieve diversity on the Board. The Company recognises
that increasing diversity at the Board level will support
the attainment of the Company’s strategic objectives and
sustainable development.

The Company seeks to achieve board diversity through the
consideration of a number of factors, including but not
limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background,
professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of
service. The ultimate decision will be based on merit and
contribution that the selected candidates will bring to the
Board.

The nomination committee will give consideration to the Board
Diversity Policy when identifying suitably qualified candidates,
to become members of the Board.
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Corporate Governance Report
TtRERBHRE

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company established a remuneration committee (the
“Remuneration Committee”) with written terms of
reference in compliance with the CG Code. The Remuneration
Committee comprises two INEDs, namely Mr. Kwan Wing
Hung and Mr. Ma Geng (as chairman) as at the date of this
report. During the Year, the Remuneration Committee held one
meeting. The attendance record of the committee is set out in
the table on page 20 of this annual report.

The principal role and functions of the Remuneration
Committee are to review the remuneration packages of
individual executive Directors and key executives, including
salaries, bonuses, benefits in kind and the terms on which they
participate in any share options and other plans considering
factors such as salaries paid by comparable companies, time
commitment and responsibilities of the Directors and key
executives, employment conditions elsewhere in the Group and
desirability of performance-based remuneration and making
recommendations to the Board from time to time.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company established a nomination committee (the
“"Nomination Committee”) with terms of reference in
compliance with the CG Code. The Nomination Committee
comprises two INEDs, namely Mr. Kwan Wing Hung and Mr.
Ma Geng as at the date of this report. During the Year, the
Nomination Committee held one meeting. The attendance
record of the committee is set out in the table on page 20 of
the annual report.

The main duties of the Nomination Committee are to review
the structure, size and composition (including the skills,
knowledge and experience) of the Board on a regular basis
and to identify individuals suitably qualified to become
board members. It is also responsible for assessing the
independence of INEDs and making recommendations to
the Board on relevant matters relating to the appointment
or reappointment of director and succession planning for
Directors. The Nomination Committee reviewed the board
diversity policy and the progress on achieving the objectives set
for implementing the said policy. The recommendations of the
nomination committee are then put forward for consideration
and adoption where appropriate, by the Board.
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Corporate Governance Report

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company established an audit committee (the “Audit
Committee”) with terms of reference in compliance with
the CG Code. The Audit Committee comprises two INEDs,
namely Mr. Kwan Wing Hung and Mr. Ma Geng as at the date
of this report. The principal role and functions of the Audit
Committee are to review and provide supervision over the
Group’s financial reporting process, internal controls and risk
management. The Audit Committee also serves as a channel of
communication between the Board and the external auditor.

During the Year, the Audit Committee held two meetings.
The attendance record of the committee members at these
meetings are set out in the table on page 20 of the annual
report. The work performed by the audit committee during
the Year included reviewing the audited consolidated financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2019, the unaudited consolidated interim financial statements
of the Group for the six months ended 30 June 2019 and
recommended such financial statements to the Board for
approval and also the effectiveness of the internal control and
risk management practices of the Group.

The Audit Committee has recommended to the Board that
Moore Stephens CPA Limited be nominated for re-appointment
as auditor of the Company at the forthcoming AGM of the
Company.

The Board has delegated the responsibilities for performing
the corporate governance duties to the Audit Committee to
develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance and make recommendations to the
Board; to review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of Directors; to review and monitor
the Company’s policies and practices on compliance with legal
and regulatory requirements; to develop, review and monitor
the code of conduct applicable to employees and Directors;
and to review the Company’s compliance with the CG Code
and disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.

It also reviewed the Company’s progress in implementing the
corporate governance requirements as set out in the CG Code.
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AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the remuneration
paid or payable to the auditor of the Company, Moore
Stephens CPA Limited are set out below:

P BB B <&
RBE-F-AF+-A=+-ALEFE
MENREN R A AIREDAEFEER
HMEBFRERARAZMEHT

Fee
paid/payable
HK$'000
g1,/
ENEAR
Services rendered R ZRB FHET
Audit services BB 1,000
Non-audit services EEIZ RIS
(Agreed-upon procedures on interim financial (FHFBRERZMERF X
statements and other services regarding to the HEpRE AR CILEB L E)
disposal of CIL Group) 965

DIRECTORS’ AND AUDITOR’S
RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing
the Group’s consolidated financial statements. The
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2019 have been prepared in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards, including Hong Kong
Accounting Standards and applicable Interpretations, issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants,
and the applicable disclosure requirements of the Listing
Rules, Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and other applicable
regulatory requirements.

The Directors confirm that, to the best of their knowledge,
information and belief, having made all reasonable enquiries,
other than the situations described in note 3.1 to the
consolidated financial statements, the Board is not aware of
any material uncertainties relating to events or conditions that
may affect the business of the Company or cast doubts on its
ability to continue as a going concern.

The responsibilities of the external auditor, Moore Stephens

CPA Limited, are set out in the Independent Auditor’s Report
on pages 47 to 49.
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DIRECTORS’ AND OFFICERS’ LIABILITY ESERERBEZER

Appropriate insurance cover on directors’ and officers’ ARAGFEHEERSABEZETEEE
liabilities has been in force to protect the Directors and officers BRE UREEERAEESHBER
of the Group from their risk exposure arising from the business REBEKAEL ZRBR -

of the Group.

CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT EECHESERRE
OF DIRECTORS

According to the code provision A.6.5 of the CG Code, WRBAES LT Y SFEAEXAGS FiB
all Directors shall participate in continuous professional EEAQEFERELR NBRENLEH
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills EMBEEE RNEREEEHESS
to ensure their contribution to the Board remains informed EXHIERMEBEER - FRNESESEY
and relevant. A summary of training records received by the ZESEELm AT

Directors for the Year is set out as follows:

Attending
conference(s)/
training
course(s)/
seminars Reading and/or
relevant to updates relevant
the business, to the business,

directors’ directors’
duties or listing duties or listing
regulatory regulatory
requirements requirements
HEE R
ESHES R
LtTEERE ESHEN

=1 a4 Ve IHEERE
BIRE BRHZIMBERS

Directors 2= maeg W EH
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Bao Hongkai* Bl A - v
Mr. Dong Cunling ERRELE - v
Mr. Li Xiangfei FARESE - v
Mr. Sun Shusheng BREELEE - v/
Mr. Zhang Yi SRR KL - v/
Mr. Zhou Guangwen* B B 3L e A+ - v
Non-Executive Director FHITES
Mr. Li Chunyan TEHEERE v v
INEDs BYFHITES
Dr. Chen Renbao* PRI_EE L - v/
Mr. Ma Wai Tong* HBIEE S A v v/
Mr. Ma Yueyong* HREL A v v
Mr. Kwan Wing Hung? A Xt o A v/ v
Mr. Ma Geng?* B - v/
* Resigned by the date of this report * o RS BEZ ATBEE
# Appointed after 31 December 2019 # R_EBE-NE+-_A=1+—BEREZHE
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COMPANY SECRETARY

As at 31 December 2019, the Company Secretary of the
Company, Mr. Li Chun On (“Mr. Li"), fulfills the requirement
under Rules 3.28 and 3.29 of the Listing Rules. He has day-
to-day knowledge of the Company’s affairs. Mr. Li reports to
the Chairman and is responsible for advising the Board on
governance matters. For the Year under review, Mr. Li has
taken over 15 hours of relevant professional training.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

To enhance the business social responsibility and to improve
its result, the Group has always been dedicated to fulfilling its
social responsibility. In deciding the appropriate policies, the
Group takes into consideration the impact on the environment,
the community and its employees, The Group has objective
to achieve the balance between economic benefit and the
environmental protection, as well as sustainable development
for the entire community.

The Group will inform its employees about the environmental
protection information that they can utilise in their working
environment. It is a wish that with a concept to be developed
amongst the employees, the Group and the employees as a
whole can contribute in environment protection.

In addition to the normal remuneration packages entitled
to the employees, the Group has provided them with other
benefits, such as medical subsidies and insurance, etc., for
the purpose of giving them job security. This has cultivated
stronger sense of belonging to the Group for its employees
and created a working environment of high spirit.

SAFETY PRODUCTION AND ENVIRONMENT
PROTECTION

The Group has always paid great attention to production
safety and environmental protection in its coal and building
materials production. Thus, the Group makes great efforts in
promoting safety management and strengthening measures
for environmental protection, aiming at building itself into a
safety-oriented and environmentally-friendly enterprise.

Rosan Resources Holdings Limited Annual Report 2019
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL

It is the responsibility of the Board to ensure that the Company
maintains sound and effective internal controls to safeguard
the Shareholders’ investment and the Group’s assets at all
times. The Company has adopted a series of internal control
policies and procedures designed to provide reasonable
assurance for achieving objectives including effective and
efficient operations, reliable financial reporting and compliance
with applicable laws and regulations.

During the year, the Group engaged an external professional
consultant to review and assess its risk management and
internal control systems and report to the audit committee.
The review covered several parts of the systems including
risk management, and operational, financial and compliance
controls.

The Board, through the audit committee, has conducted a
review of the effectiveness of the Group’s risk management
and internal control systems for the year ended 31 December
2019 covering material financial, operational and compliance
functions, and is of the view that the effectiveness of the risk
management and internal control systems of the Group are
considered as effective and adequate.

Review of the Group’'s internal controls covers major
financial, operational and compliance controls, as well as
risk management functions. The internal control system can
only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against
material misstatement or loss, as they are designed to manage,
rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business
objectives.

The Group’s risk management framework includes risk
identification, risk assessment, risk treatment and monitoring
and reviewing of the effectiveness of the measures. This
risk management framework is guided by the three-tier risk
management approach. At the first line of defense, business
units are responsible for identifying, assessing and monitoring
risks associated with each business or deal. The management,
as the second line of defense, defines rule sets and models,
provides technical support, develops new systems and oversees
portfolio management. It ensures that risks are within the
acceptable range and that the first line of defense is effective.
As the final line of defense, the audit committee of the
Company, with the professional advices and opinions from the
external professional consultant by whom internal audit work
of the Group was conducted on annual basis, ensures that the
first and second lines of defense are effective through constant
inspection and monitoring.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS
AND INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Board recognises the importance of good communication
with Shareholders. A Shareholders’” Communication Policy
setting out the Company’s procedure in providing the
Shareholders with prompt and equal access to information
about the Company, in order to enable the Shareholders to
access the Company’s overall performance, exercise their
rights in an informed manner and engage actively with the
Company. Information in relation to the Group is disseminated
to shareholders in a timely manner through a number of
formal channels, which include interim and annual reports,
announcements and circulars.

The general meetings of the Company provide a forum
for exchange of views between the Shareholders and the
Board. The Chairman of the Board, the Directors and senior
management of the Company and where applicable, the
INEDs, are available to answer questions at the shareholders’
meeting.

Separate resolutions are proposed at shareholders’ meetings
on each substantial issue, including the election of individual
Directors. Details of poll voting procedures are included in all
circulars to Shareholders which call for a general meeting and
are explained during proceedings of the meeting.

The Company continues to enhance communications and
relationships with its Shareholders and investors. Information
about the Company’s activities is provided in its interim and
annual reports, which are sent to Shareholders, analysts and/
or interested parties. Enquiries from Shareholders and investors
are dealt with in an informative and timely manner.

To promote effective communication, the Company also
maintains a website at http://www.irasia.com/listco/hk/rrhl, on
where extensive information and updates on the Company’s
business developments and operations, financial information,
corporate governance practices and other information are
posted.
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SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

Procedure for Shareholders to convene a special
general meeting

Shareholders can submit a requisition to convene a special
general meeting pursuant to Section 74 of the Companies Act
1981 of Bermuda (the "Act”). The number of Shareholders
necessary for a requisition shall be representing not less than
one-tenth of the Company’s paid-up capital as at the date of
requisition having the right to vote at the general meeting.

The written requisition must:

state the purposes of the special general meeting;

- be signed by all the requisitionists (may consist of one
or several documents in like form each singed by one or
more requisitionists); and

- be deposited at the Company’s office in Hong Kong for
the attention of the Company Secretary.

- If the Directors do not within twenty-one days from the
date of the deposit of the requisition proceed duly to
convene a special general meeting, the requisitionists,
or any of them representing more than one-half of
the total voting rights of all of them, any themselves
convene a special general meeting, but any meeting so
convened shall not be held after the expiration of three
months from the said date.

Procedure for Shareholders to put forward proposals
at general meetings

Shareholders can submit a requisition to move a resolution at
an annual general meeting pursuant to Section 79 of the Act.

The number of Shareholders necessary for a requisition shall
be:

- representing not less than one-twentieth of the total
voting rights of all Shareholders having at the date of
requisition a right to vote at the meeting to which the
requisition relates; or

- not less than 100 Shareholders.
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The written requisition must:

state the resolution, with a statement not more than
1,000 words with respect to the matter referred to in
the proposed resolution or the business to be dealt with
at the meeting;

be signed by all the requisitionists (may consist of one
or several documents in like form each singed by one or
more requisitionists);

be deposited at the Company’s office in Hong Kong for
the attention of the Company Secretary not less than
six weeks before the meeting in case of a requisition
requiring notice of a resolution and not less than
one week before the meeting in case of any other
requisition; and

be deposited with a sum reasonably sufficient to
meet the Company’s expenses in giving notice of
the resolution and circulating the statements of the
proposed resolution to all Shareholder in accordance
with the requirements under the applicable laws and
rules.

Enquires to the Board

The Company’s website provides email address and telephone
to enable Shareholders to make any enquiries and concerns to
the Board. Shareholders may send their enquiries by post or
by email to the attention of the Company Secretary who will
direct the enquiries to the Board for handling.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

There are no changes in the Company’s constitutional
documents during the Year.
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The Board is pleased to present the annual report and the
audited consolidated financial statements of the Company and
of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2019.

BUSINESS REVIEW AND PERFORMANCE

A review of the Group’s business for the Year is set out in the
sections headed “Chairman’s Statement” on pages 6 to 8 and
“Management Discussion and Analysis” on pages 9 to 14 of
this annual report. Principal financial risks and uncertainties
facing the Group are set out in note 45 to the consolidated
financial statements.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activities of the Group are (i) the production
and sale of coal and trading of purchased coal; (ii) production
and sale of building materials and (iii) leasing of aluminum
boundary wall moulds in the PRC.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2019
and the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group at
that date are set out on pages 50 to 220 of this annual report.

The Board does not recommend the payment of any dividend
in respect of the Year.

FIVE YEARS FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and assets and liabilities of the Group
for the last five financial years is set out on pages 4 and 5 of
this annual report.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment are
set out in note 15 to the consolidated financial statements.

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS, DISPOSALS AND
SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS
Save as disclosed in note 41 to the consolidated financial

statements, the Group did not have any material acquisitions,
disposals and significant investments during the Year.

Directors’ Report
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SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the changes of Company’s share capital during the
Year, together with the reasons therefore, are set out in note
37 to the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company operates a share option scheme for the purpose
of providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants
who contribute to the success of the Group's operations.
Eligible participants (“Participants”) of the share option
scheme include any employee of the Company or any of its
subsidiaries (including any director of the Company or any of
its subsidiaries). The shareholders of the Company approved
the termination of the share option scheme adopted on 20
October 2004 (the “"Old Scheme”) and adoption of the new
share option scheme (the “New Scheme"”) in place of the Old
Scheme at the annual general meeting on 27 May 2014. The
New Scheme became effective on 27 May 2014 and, unless
otherwise cancelled or amended, will remain in force for ten
years from that date until 26 May 2024.

Under the New Scheme, the board of directors of the
Company may at its discretion grant options to the Participants
to subscribe for shares provided that the total number of
shares which may be issued upon exercise of all options to be
granted under the New Scheme and any other share option
scheme(s) of the Company shall not in aggregate exceed 10%
of the shares in issue as at the adoption date. The maximum
number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of all
outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised under
the New Scheme and any other share option scheme(s) of the
Company shall not in aggregate exceed 30% of the shares in
issue from time to time.

Details of the said termination of the Old Scheme and
adoption of the New Scheme were also set out in the
Company’s circular dated 24 April 2014.

No share options were granted during the years ended 31
December 2019 and 2018. As at 31 December 2019 and
2018, the Company had no share options outstanding under
the New Scheme.
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased,
sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities on the
Stock Exchange during the Year.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s Bye-laws or the laws of Bermuda which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to
existing shareholders.

EXCHANGE RISK EXPOSURE

The sales and purchases of the Group are predominantly in
RMB which is the functional currency of the related group
entities. The Board therefore is of the opinion that the Group’s
sensitivity to the change in foreign currency is low and the
Group does not hedge its foreign currency risk.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

As at 31 December 2019, the Group has a total of
approximately 916 employees located in Hong Kong and the
PRC. Salaries are reviewed annually with discretionary bonuses
being paid depending on individual performance. The Group
also provides other benefits including medical insurance and
pension funds. A share option scheme was adopted by the
Group on 27 May 2014 to enable the Directors to grant share
options to eligible participants including any employee of the
Group as incentive to their valuable contribution to the Group.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company established an Audit Committee in accordance
with the requirements of the CG Code for the purposes of
reviewing and providing supervision over the Group's financial
reporting process, internal controls and risk management.
The Audit Committee comprises three of the INEDs of the
Company. The members of the Audit Committee have
reviewed the consolidated financial statements of the Group
for the year ended 31 December 2019 and were of the opinion
that such statements comply with the applicable accounting
standards, the Listing Rules and legal requirements and those
adequate disclosures have been made.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Details of the Corporate Governance Report are set out on
pages 18 to 30 of this annual report.
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SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors, the
Company has maintained the prescribed public float under the
Listing Rules throughout the financial year.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

During the Year, to the knowledge of the Board, the Group
had complied with the relevant laws and regulations that have
a material impact on the business of the Group in all material
aspects and there were no circumstances of material breach or
non-compliance of applicable laws and regulations.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and
of the Group during the Year are set out in note 38 to the
consolidated financial statements and in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

The distributable reserves of the Company as at 31 December
2019 and 2018 was nil. In addition, the Company’s share
premium account as at 31 December 2019, in the amount of
approximately HK$261.8 million (as at 31 December 2018:
approximately HK$261.8 million), can be distributed in the
form of fully paid bonus shares.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

In the Year under review, the percentage of turnover
attributable to the largest customer and the five largest
customers of the Group accounted for 22.4% and 57.6%
respectively. The percentage of purchases attributable to the
largest supplier and the five largest suppliers of the Group
accounted for 26.6% and 52.0% respectively.

None of the Directors or any of their associates or any
Shareholders (which, to the best knowledge of the Directors,
own more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital) had
any beneficial interest in the Group’s five largest customers and
suppliers.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors during the Year and up to the date of this report
are as follows:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Bao Hongkai (Chairman)
(appointed in April 2020)
Mr. Dong Cunling
Mr. Li Xiangfei
Mr. Sun Shusheng
Mr. Zhang Yi
Mr. Zhou Guangwen (resigned in April 2020)

Non-Executive Director:
Mr. Li Chunyan

INEDs:

Dr. Chen Renbao (resigned in January 2020)

Mr. Kwan Wing Hung (appointed in March 2020)
Mr. Ma Geng (appointed in March 2020)

Mr. Ma Wai Tong (resigned in December 2019)
Mr. Ma Yueyong (resigned in April 2020)

The Company has received annual confirmations of
independence from all INEDs and as at the date of this annual
report still considers them to be independent.

In accordance with bye-law 111 of the Company’s Bye-laws,
Mr. Bao Hongkai, Mr. Li Chunyan, Mr. Kwan Wing Hung and
Mr. Ma Geng will retire by rotation and, being eligible, will
offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming AGM of the
Company.

DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S
BIOGRAPHIES

Biographical details of the Directors and the senior
management of the Group are set out on pages 15 to 17 of
this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

No director of the Company being proposed for re-election at
the forthcoming AGM of the Company has a service contract
with the Company which is not determinable by the Company
within one year without payment of compensation, other than
statutory compensation.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in notes 12 and 43 to the consolidated
financial statements, no director of the Company had a
material interest, either directly or indirectly, in any contract
of significance to the business of the Group to which the
Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party during the Year.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITION IN THE
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY AND ITS
ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

As at 31 December 2019, the interests and short positions of
the Directors and the chief executive of the Company in the
shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company and
its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of
the Securities and Futures and Ordinance (the “SFO")) which
were required to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO
(including interests or short positions which they were taken
or deemed to have taken under such provisions of the SFO0);
or were required, pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, to be
entered in the register referred to therein; or were required,
pursuant to the Model Code contained in the Listing Rules, to
be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange, were as
follows:

(@) Long positions in the ordinary shares of the

EERNEHNT 2R

iR e MBS mRME12 43 WBEEIN

FABEARRRESFTREERNR R HEEM
MEARMIIVHAEEEBREEANLZ
ERANTHEEERAMEEAED -

EFRTRARRADAR KN
B3k 2 B 3 o A 2 MR RO

A

B

RZE—AF+_A=+—"H BFLAK
NATHESRN AR RERELXE (E
ERBELFLRBEGRD ([BERBEHKH])
FEXVED) 2 BH R RESTHEEA
BIEFEH K EBEEOIEXVEBETR8D A
SARARB MBI (BEFSEREESR
HEBRIN  ZEEXHEESRBER 2
ERSOAR)  RABARRAIREES L
HEROIEISHETFE 2 Bl SURE £
MR LT ARESTETEELSZ
ZRETFRBENE AR A MBI 2 #E R
KB

(a) REAQAFEBRDZHR

Company
Approximate
Number of percentage
Number of underlying of shares
Name of Directors Nature of interest shares shares shareholdings
IR 1
EspA Bt RHOBE HEEAROGHE MAB DL
Mr. Dong Cunling Personal interest 540,000 - 0.05%
EFlLEE 8 A
Mr. Li Xiangfei Personal interest 100,000,000 - 9.61%
ZFHAREE B AR
Mr. Sun Shusheng Personal interest 3,432,000 - 0.33%

BRELSLLE (EPN:
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Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors and chief
executive of the Company had any interest or short position in
the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company
and its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part
XV of the SFO) which were required to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and
8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short positions
which they were taken or deemed to have taken under
such provisions of the SFO); or were required, pursuant to
Section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred
to therein; or were required, pursuant to the Model Code
contained in the Listing Rules, to be notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange as at 31 December 2019.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES

So far as was known to the Directors or chief executive of the
Company, as at 31 December 2019, the person, other than
the Directors or chief executive of the Company, who had an
interest or short position in the shares or underlying shares as
recorded in the register required to be kept under section 336
of the SFO were as follows:
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(@) Long positions in the shares

RO FZHR

Approximate
Number of percentage of

Name of Shareholders Capacity shares shareholdin
iy
BRERB A g% BHER BMABE DL
) Retop International Investment Beneficial Owner 241,400,000 23.21%
Limited (note 1) . o
fﬁ%lﬁ?’%&ﬁﬁﬁﬁ a(aE1) EBEmEBA
(2) Vestfoco International Investment Interests in controlled 241,400,000 23.21%
Limited (“Vestfoco”) (note 1) ’corporatjpn/
HEBRIREARAR ([#8]) RIAEER
(KaE1)
(3) Mr. Bao Hongkai (“Mr. Bao") Interests in controlled 241,400,000 23.21%
(notem1) corporatlon
Bl ((B%EE]) 92 % B A 2
(Kax1)
Beneficial Owner 675,000 0.06%
A A
(4) Mr. Li Yupeng (note 2) Beneficial Owner 71,000,000 6.83%
=EMEE (Hat2) EmEAA
(5) Minan Holding Limited Beneficial Owner 127,500,000 12.26%
(note 3) -
(K1aE3) EnEBA
(6) Mr. Zhang Xinzhi (note 3) Interest in controlled 127,500,000 12.26%

corporation

RIETLRE (HaE3)

Retop International Investment Limited is beneficially
and wholly owned by Vestfoco of which Mr. Bao is
the sole beneficial owner. Accordingly, Vestfoco and
Mr. Bao are deemed to be interested in the shares of
the Company held by Retop International Investment
Limited.

Mr. Li Yupeng is independent and not related to the
Board or management of the Company.

Minan Holding Limited is beneficially and wholly
owned by Mr. Zhang Xinzhi. He is not related to the
Board or management of the Company.

Save as disclosed above, no persons had an interest or
a short position in the shares and the underlying shares
as recorded in the register required to be kept under
section 336 of the SFO.
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DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the Year were rights
to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or
debentures of the Company granted to any of the Directors
or their respective spouse or minor children, or were any such
rights exercised by them; or was the Company or any of its
subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the Directors
to acquire such rights in any other body corporate.

PENSION SCHEME AND COSTS

Details of the Group’s pension scheme and the employer’s
pension costs charged to the consolidated income statement
for the Year are set out in notes 8 and 11 to the consolidated
financial statements, respectively.

In the opinion of the Board, the Group had no significant
obligations for long service payments to its employee pursuant
to the requirements under the Employment Ordinance,
Chapter 57 of the Laws of Hong Kong, at 31 December 2019.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

On 30 December 2019, the Company has completed a
connected transaction (as defined under Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rule) in relation to the disposal of a subsidiary
the Company to a substantial shareholder. Details of
the transaction has been disclosed in the note 41 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Save as disclosed above, the Group has not conducted
any “connected transaction” or “continuing connected
transaction” which is subject to reporting and annual review
requirements under the Listing Rules. The transactions
disclosed in note 43 to the consolidated financial statements
as related party transactions did not fall under the definition
of “connected transaction” or “continuing connected
transaction” (as defined under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules).

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN A COMPETING
BUSINESS

No Directors are considered to have interest in any business
which is likely to compete directly or indirectly with that of the
Group.

DONATIONS

During the year, the Group have made charitable and relief
donations of approximately HK$851,000 (2018: 606,000).
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CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Group did not have any contingent liabilities as at the 31
December 2019.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The 2020 Annual General Meeting (the “2020 AGM") of
the Company is scheduled on Wednesday, 17 June 2020. For
determining the entitlement to attend and vote at the 2020
AGM, the register of members of the Company will be closed
from Thursday, 11 June to Wednesday, 17 June 2020, both
days inclusive. In order to be eligible to attend and vote at
the 2020 AGM, all transfers of shares, accompanied by the
relevant share certificates, must be lodged with the Company’s
share registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor Tengis Limited, at Level
54, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong, for
registration no later than 4:30 p.m. on Wednesday, 10 June
2020.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contract concerning the management and administration
of the whole or any substantial part of the Company’s business
was entered into or existed during the Year.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to the Company’s Articles of Association, a permitted
indemnity provision as defined in the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance was in force for the benefit of the Directors during
the Year.

FUND RAISING ACTIVITIES IN THE PAST
TWELVE MONTHS

The Group did not carry out any fund raising activity in the
past twelve months.

EVENTS AFTER THE END OF THE REPORTING
PERIOD

Save as disclosed in note 47 to the consolidated financial
statements, the Group did not carry out significant events after
31 December 2019 and until the date of this report.
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AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements have been audited by
Moore Stephens CPA Limited who retire and, being eligible,
offer themselves for re-appointment. A resolution for the re-
appointment of Moore Stephens CPA Limited as auditor of the
Company is to be proposed at the 2020 AGM.

Bao Hongkai
Chairman

13 May 2020,
Hong Kong
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Independent Auditor’s Report
V% B A 3R &

K| MOORE

To the shareholders of Rosan Resources Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements
of Rosan Resources Holdings Limited and its subsidiaries
(together, the “Group”) set out on pages 50 to 220, which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at
31 December 2019, and the consolidated income statement,
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income,
the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of
the Group as at 31 December 2019, and of its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") and have
been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We
are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and
we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

MATERIAL UNCERTAINTIES RELATED TO
GOING CONCERN

We draw attention to note 3.1 to the consolidated financial
statements which indicates that the Group incurred a
consolidated net loss of approximately HK$107,449,000
for the year ended 31 December 2019 and, as of that
date, the Group has net current liabilities of approximately
HK$412,721,000 and a capital deficiency of approximately
HK$83,570,000. As at 31 December 2019, the Group's
outstanding borrowings of approximately HK$248,980,000,
which included bank loans of approximately HK$147,014,000,
amounts due to shareholders of the Company of
approximately HK$1,337,000 and certain cash advanced from
a family member of a substantial shareholder of the Company,
a non-controlling shareholder of a subsidiary of the Company,
a company controlled by a substantial shareholder of the
Company and an individual of approximately HK$100,629,000
(included in other payables), are due to repayment within one
year from the end of the reporting period or repayable on
demand.

These conditions indicate the existence of material
uncertainties that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern. Our opinion is not
modified in respect of this matter.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming
our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion
on these matters. In addition to the matter described in the
Material Uncertainties Related to Going Concern section, we
have determined the matters described below to be the key
audit matters to be communicated in our report.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Key audit matters

HRETEE

FARETEE(£)
How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EENENAEERREITEE

Impairment assessment of non-financial assets

FERMEEREG

(Refer to notes 3.12, 4(iv), 15 to 20 to the
consolidated financial statements)
(FF2RGREMBHRRME312 - 43v) - 15F20)
The management of the Company had performed
impairment review in accordance with Hong Kong
Accounting Standard 36 Impairment of Assets
in relation to the Group's coal mining operation
and boundary wall moulds business, which are
considered by the management as two different
cash-generating units (“CGU") respectively. The
Group had recognised an impairment loss of
approximately HK$33,921,000 for the year ended
31 December 2019, allocating to the net carrying
amounts of property, plant and equipment of
approximately HK$995,000 and mining rights of
approximately HK$32,926,000, in respect of the
CGU of coal mining operation.
ERFIEREERREBEHELFEIH [EE
HEIE BERENRKARESLERERLSE
BETREN G ZEXEBRERED R BM
BRI REEES LL ((REeEEEEN]) - &
SEERBE_T— hi+:ﬂ£+—ﬂ¢¢§

MR E R 4933,921,000/8 70 » DL &2 R AR
EBBRSELBENZYE BE MK ﬁ%%@@

8 47995,000/8 7T & FREE#E £932,926,0007% 7T

The recoverable amount of the CGU was
determined based on higher of value-in-use or
fair value less cost of disposal, which requires
significant management’s judgements concerning
the estimated future cash flows.
ReEFEMUMATROeRDERNEAEAREXA
FEREEXNR (URGERE)EE FTEEE
EBRhar R KB MEEHENHE -

Accordingly, we have identified management'’s
impairment assessment of the CGU as a key audit
matter.

At EEHEEEHReELE
BAlR—IERRERTEE

£z B9 R 18 RF Al

Rosan Resources Holdings Limited Annual Report 2019

Our key procedures to address the matter included:

EERREZFEAMRRNEIZRZEFERE:

- Discussed with the management of the

Company and the independent valuer engaged
by the Company (the “Valuer”) regarding the
reasonableness of the valuation methodology being
adopted,;

B BRRAEERER EARNZEENBIAERM
(TME{ERD]) s am TR AR E AN /IR

- Discussed with the management of the Company

and the Valuer and the assumptions and inputs
used in determining the recoverable amounts
of the CGUs, respectively, and challenged the
reasonableness and relevance of key assumptions
and inputs based on our knowledge of the business
and industry;

B SRRERERGEMSFNRECHREES
B A meBmmANRIEERBA  RIEEE
HEBRITENTH ERFEREREHBALN
B RAERE:

- Checked the allocation of impairment loss amongst

assets within the CGU in accordance with the
applicable accounting standard; and
BEEAGHER REReELEUNEEZH
BEEBEIEBEL: &

— Assessed the objectivity, competency and

experience of the Valuer.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Key audit matters

BEESTEH

Independent Auditor’s Report

VB A RS

BRETEE (4)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EENENNAEERREITSEE

Impairment assessment of accounts and bills
receivables

FEW iR R B R 1B 2 BB TG

(Refer to notes 3.15, 4(iii), 26 and 45(a) to the
consolidated financial statements)

(B2 E M BEHmERMEE3.15 - 4ii) - 26 %
45(a))

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had gross
accounts and bills receivables amounting to
approximately HK$126,328,000. The Group had
recognised an expected credit loss (“ECL"”) on
accounts receivable amounting to approximately
HK$16,173,000 during the year ended 31
December 2019.

RZZE-NF+A=+—H' EBEEENENK
R R EIRMBTEL /126,328,000 7T - RELE =
T NE+-A=t-RBIEE EB£EEH
W R ERRMEERR (AHEEBE]) D
16,173,000/8 7T °

The ECL assessment on accounts and bills
receivables is considered to be a matter of
most significance as it requires the application
of significant judgement and use of subjective
assumptions by management. The management
of the Company believed that the methodologies
and inputs used in estimating ECL are appropriate
and best reflects the Group’s exposure to credit
risk. These models and assumptions relate
to the future macroeconomic conditions and
debtors’ creditworthiness. The ECL assessment
requires significant management’s judgements.
Accordingly, we have identified management’s
ECL assessment as a key audit matter.

HEWERRRBAMEEERTAEERE
AZH AEFEEEERAERHEG RERE
BR%- BEQREEERR MFAHBEEEE
RAERZ A EREHBABEE & E5E
ASERRRZ RERBK - ZEENRRKXE
AREERBRARBBAGERHA- ﬁ%ﬁf
%Eﬁﬁ%%%ﬁ%ﬁﬁiﬁﬂ% Hit - EF#&
g@@%ﬁ%%%%%ﬁﬁ%%%—ﬁ%ﬁ%%

I8 o

Our key procedures to address the matter included:

REZEFEMRDNTIERFEHE:

Discussed with the management of the Company
the reasonableness and relevance of the
methodologies, inputs and assumptions adopted in
performing the ECL assessment;

B BRRERENRETRBEEEBNMEMEK
%ZE& Extm A\ RBENSEMERAE@L:

Obtained an ageing analysis of the accounts
and bills receivables from the management of
the Group and tested the accuracy of ageing of
accounts and bills receivables at year end to the
underlying invoices on a sample basis;

®t SEEEEEERSEUERLZENRERDNT
&E@ﬂﬂiiﬁ%% XN R AR ARG B ARRR B

MM

Challenged the management’s ECL assessment
regarding long outstanding and overdue accounts
and bills receivables;
EREEBHRAREER AR YRRRZED
FBHEEEBRNE:

Checked, on a sample basis, inputs used by the
management in the ECL assessment against
the source data (e.g. historical information and
observable external data); and
%ﬁﬁégﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂfﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ%méﬂ%
AEBRBIR (FI0AE £ &8 K rI B RHMNEREUR )

Assessed the adequacy of the ECL recorded by
reviewing subsequent settlements after the year
end and related correspondence with customers
about expected settlement dates.
FREHNFRENCREBEEURERT S ERTEMAE
%F%%H@%@%ﬂﬁ'%ﬁﬁ%@%%ﬁm%
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B % BE | S

INFORMATION OTHER THAN THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND
AUDITORS REPORT THEREON

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
other information. The other information comprises all the
information in the Group’s 2019 annual report other than
the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information
is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the
work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of the other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give
a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the
HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the
Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative
but to do so.

The audit committee of the Company assists the directors in

discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process.

Rosan Resources Holdings Limited Annual Report 2019
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Independent Auditor’s Report

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the
Bermuda Companies Act 1981, and for no other purpose.
We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to
any other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group’s internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the directors.

B ZBA RS

BRBMBT REMBRRNEM

FEENERRAGAVBREREBRES T

FREANBRRM (T ERFRERE
BORBRAERRE REBRE-NN\—F

REVEFOMRER ET (FABE)AH
ﬂ@é%ﬁ?ﬁﬁ’]ﬁ%ﬂ(ﬁﬂﬁ&i mIEMRE
A - BEFHMIRARRENARREAM
ETEU\%EX%%‘ET AE-ABRER
BKFORE B TERRREBE

FEAPEITH B B BRI ENERHE
AR BR At - 35 5R Rt 7 B R R RF Sk $R AR T
£ BRI S B R iﬁfﬁﬂ;ﬁ—lﬁ%%%ﬁﬁ)ﬁ

ERNZFERE VB BERAFHOEERTE -
ABEK-

ERRREBEFTENETET—B
D BEFHEEEAFHHREFELERAEY
1%?%??%\2%%%? BEIN:

o FBRIKFFELEUBHRRPEFEEKN

ﬂéﬁﬁ%k(?uﬁ.%(%?iﬁ%%ﬁ%ﬁ)
KRB - R ET AT S SR AE’J
*Eﬁff WEBFEDEE E’J%
B AREEMNERIRMEER *?Xfﬁ
MFFBHEANERR AR SR
REBHEABRRANER  REZ
HEFA e R A4 Bl EER
JEE 1R PRt =8 0% BB N B4Rl o

B 1S B 28 51 4 B B0 7 R4 1 0 B2 A% -
RAHBENEIEF BEMALIE

)4
VAR & iE

Y EEBASFZFNERERRE
B o

s HEEZMRASTERNEZER
PRER &t At MABRE IR 10 & 32
1 o
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&

VB A RS

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use
of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt on the Group's ability to continue
as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention
in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the
date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a
going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for
the direction, supervision and performance of the group
audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the audit committee of the Company
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including
any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify
during our audit.

We also provide the audit committee of the Company with
a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate
with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.

Rosan Resources Holdings Limited Annual Report 2019
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Independent Auditor’s Report

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

From the matters communicated with the audit committee
of the Company, we determine those matters that were of
most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period and are therefore the key
audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances,
we determine that a matter should not be communicated in
our report because the adverse consequences of doing so
would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication.

Moore Stephens CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Leung Yu Ngong
Practising Certificate Number: P06734

Hong Kong, 13 May 2020

B ZBA RS
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Consolidated Income Statement
el sk

For the year ended 31 December 2019 &/ Z — =

—NF+—A=+—HIFE

2019 2018
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-hEF —FT-N\F
M it FHET FET
Revenue W =5 6 504,536 961,440
Cost of sales $HE KA (459,925) (901,900)
Gross profit EF 6 44,611 59,540
Other income and gains I NS 6 118,867 55,743
Selling and distribution expenses  $H& Kk $HFH X (37,370) (37,605)
Administrative expenses ITEAX (92,320) (90,143)
Other expenses HiFAX (5,603) (4,276)
Finance costs VK EA 7 (84,526) (101,514)
Share of results of associates FEIEERE N T S (1,692) (12,826)
Share of results of a joint venture JE{5—fE& & EE 23 51
Net impairment loss on financial &RMEERANEEZ
and contract assets BB B F 45(a) (18,590) (9,626)
Impairment loss on property, plant ¥1% - i E M & 2
and equipment BEEE 15 (995) (5,693)
Impairment loss on mining rights LA 2 B E & B 19 (32,926) (8,544)
Loss before income tax MRS ATEE 8 (110,521) (154,893)
Income tax credit gtk o 9 3,072 2,261
Loss for the year FREE (107,449) (152,632)
Loss for the year attributable FE/EFREIE:
to:
Owners of the Company KRABHEEB A (99,922) (142,747)
Non-controlling interests FEPE AR ME S (7,527) (9,885)
(107,449) (152,632)
Loss per share attributable to ZAATEEAELEEBRER
the owners of the Company
— Basic and diluted (HK cents) —EARNEE (BI) 10 (9.606) (13.747)
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

REETHWER

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #HZE_—ZFE—NF+-A=+—HIFZF

2019 2018
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-NF —ZT-)N\F
FERT FAET
Loss for the year FREE (107,449) (152,632)
Other comprehensive income/ FREMEEWE  (FE)
(loss) for the year
Items that may be reclassified 8= = = = B |
subsequently to profit or loss: H :
Exchange differences on REBINEBRBRE ZE
translation of financial HEE:
statements of foreign
operations:
— subsidiaries —MtB R 7] 11,502 14,109
— a joint venture ——HeEHE (104) (326)
— associates /N (1,713) (5,156)
Item that will not be reclassified to EE TS &M N B EEE 21E
profit H :
or loss:
Change in the fair value BRATFEGARMEEKE
of equity investments at RFER A 2 AT EE
fair value through other
comprehensive income - 8
Share of other comprehensive Eh—EBERRcEMmE
(loss)/income of an associate m(EE) s (19,443) 16,090
Other comprehensive (loss)/income ERE 2w (E1E) W
for the year, R IE
net of tax (9,758) 24,725
Total comprehensive loss FRAXEBELAR
for the year (117,207) (127,907)
Total comprehensive loss BiE2EEEARE:
attributable to:
Owners of the Company VNN ﬂ}?&ﬁ/\ (104,157) (116,642)
Non-controlling interests FEE IS RE 25 (13,050) (11,265)
(117,207) (127,907)

BMEERZERERAR 2019FFH
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e BB AR R

As at 31 December 2019 R-ZE—hF+_-_A=1+—H

2019 2018
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-NF —ZT-N\F
B et FHBxT FHETT
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EERAE
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment M- WE KR 15 189,577 396,187
Prepaid land lease payments AT+ H A & FKIR 16 - 66,197
Right-of-use assets FRAEEE 17 65,763 -
Goodwill GEES 18 - -
Mining rights TERE 19 131,861 293,917
Other intangible assets HmEREE 21 695 623
Interests in associates RN O E 22 - 100,046
Interest in a joint venture R—EEErEER 23 - 5,973
Financial assets at fair value BAFEFAEMEERE
through other comprehensive T REE
income 24 - 682
Deferred tax assets BRI EE 36 3,148 -
391,044 863,625
Current assets RBEE
Inventories 78 25 16,137 24,849
Accounts and bills receivables and JEUWEBEF R Z4E K& L EE
contract assets 26 96,249 454,569
Prepaid land lease payments AT+ H A E IR 16 - 1,506
Prepayments, deposits and other ~ FEf A 124 K&
receivables H b fE W SKIB 27 19,985 24,480
Tax recoverable Ay Y B i 30 8,081 9,433
Pledged and restricted bank B R XRHI B RITER
deposits 28(a) - 656,651
Cash and cash equivalents RekHReFBEEE 28(b) 15,904 35,789
156,356 1,207,277
Current liabilities REBEE
Accounts and bills payables JE T BR R R B IR 29 32,456 658,132
Amount due to an associate B~ — R B & R Rl 3B 22 - 14,640
Amounts due to shareholders &SRR R 5K IR 30 1,337 9,135
Other payables and accruals HMERNFRIBRETER 31 363,647 551,447
Provision for reclamation FZRE AR
obligations 32 24,001 100,164
Lease liabilities HEEARE 33 622 =
Bank and other loans RITREMER 34 147,014 762,200
569,077 2,095,718
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e BRIk R R

As at 31 December 2019 R-ZE—hF+-_A=1+—H

2019 2018
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
—EF-nF ZF)\F
Kt FET AT
Net current liabilities RBEEEE (412,721) (888,441)
Total assets less HEEBRRBAES
current liabilities (21,677) (24,816)
Non-current liabilities kEFBERE
Loans from shareholders RKEAIREE 30 57,235 54,491
Lease liabilities HEBE 33 43 =
Bank and other loans RITREMER 34 - 78,364
Deferred income EERA 35 2,316 3,142
Deposit received BRIz E 31 2,299 2,165
Deferred tax liabilities EIEHIBA G 36 _ 489
61,893 138,651
Net liabilities 8EFE (83,570) (163,467)
EQUITY IR 2 £ 25
Share capital A& A 37 104,017 104,017
Deficit in reserves 8 B AL 38(a) (189,992) (209,671)
Deficiency attributable to the AR THEHE AEL Z B4
owners of the Company (85,975) (105,654)
Non-controlling interests FERER 2,405 (57,813)
Capital deficiency BEXREAH (83,570) (163,467)

The consolidated financial statements on pages 50 to 220
were approved and authorised for issue by the Board of
Directors on 13 May 2020 and are signed on its behalf by:

Bao Hongkai
‘B
Director

EF

FS0EEFE220BEMGETBHREREES
EN_ZT-EFERAT=HIERIRET
ZOWAHUTATREREE

Dong Cunling
EFR
Director

EF
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
REREZB I X

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #HZE_-—ZFE—NF+-_A=+—HIFZF

Attributable to the owners of the Company

ARAEE AR
Capital Exchange Statutory Non-
Share Share  redemption Other Contributed ~ fluctuation Capital reserve  Accumulated controlling Capital
capital  premium®  reserve*  reseves* surplus*  reseve* reserve* fund* [osses* Total interest  deficiency

(oe3)  foe3Bal)  (oessall)  (oesali) (oesBal)  foessall)  (oeali) (note3Bialin)

HKS000  HKS'000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000
A4%0 B i

R BiER  BE AbEE 8RR R ARRE  ORE  24ER & FRENE  AREH

(Hit37) (Wiet3sa) (Wessseli) (ezsselin) (Hfitssel) (Hezsseh) (Hietssehi) (Wegati)

TEr T TEr TR TAn TR T TEr TR TAm T TR

Balance at 1 January 2018 RZB-NE-F-R&R 7267 235334 50 66,566 641 136,686 AL 13398 (7117364)  (45450)  (72,008)  (117458)

Loss for the year ERER = = = = = - - - (78 (42747 (9885 (152632

Other comprehensive incomel(loss)  FREM2EKE/ (BE)
for the year

Bxchange differences on translation A £BE KRR ZER
of financial statements of foreign ~ %%

operations

- subsidiaries -hERR - - - - - 16,550 - - - 16,550 Q441) 14109

- a joint venture -—HaELE = = - - - (293) = = = (293) (33) (326)

- associates -BERT = = - - - (4641) - - - (4,641) (515) (5,156)
Share of other comprehensive Efi-RBEAR Et2E

income of an associate B - - - 14,481 - - - - - 14,481 1,609 16,090
Change in fair value of equity BRATEF AL 2ENE

investments at fair value through kAR 2 AFEZE

other comprehensive income - - - 8 - - - - - 8 - 8
Total comprehensive incomeffloss) ~ ER2ENRE/ (BE) €%

for the year - - - 14,489 - 11,616 - - (14741 (116,642) (11,265 (127,907)
Additions through acquision of ~ EBKEHBARFE

subsidiaries (note 40) (H1:t40) - = = = = = = = = = 20,649 20,649
Capital injection from FERER TR

non-controlling interests - - - - - - - - - - 4757 4757
Disposal of a subsidiary HE-HHEAR - - - - - - - - - - 54 54

Deemed capital contribution arising R B kRS £ SRR

from non-cureent interest-free & 32 1 (Ai300))

shareholders' loan (note 30(b)) = - - 17,185 - - - = = 17,185 = 17,185
Shares issued in consideration for ~ RKEMBAAMEARE

the acquisition of subsidiaries Wt (Wizt370)R40)

(notes 37(a) and 40) 12,750 6,503 - - - - - - - 19,253 - 19,253
Issuance of shares pursuant BERESEETRA

to the subscriptions** (Bi3E371b) R38(a) i)

(notes 37(b) and 38(a)ii) 20,000 20,000 - (20,000) - - - - - 20,000 - 20,000
Transfer from other reserves REMERER - - - (13,628) - - - - 13,628 - - -
At 31 December 2018 RZF-NE+ZB=+-B 104017 261,837 50 64,612 641 148,302 27442 133928 (846,483)  (105,654) (57,813)  (163,467)
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
REREaRSEX

For the year ended 31 December 2019 B E_—F—NF+—H=+—HILFE

Attributable to the owners of the Company

FATEE AL
Capital Exchange Statutory Non-
Share Share  redemption Other Contributed fluctuation Capital ~ reserve Accumulated controlling Capital
capital premium*  reserve*  reserves*  surplus*  reserve*  reserve* fund* losses* Total interest deficiency

(note 37)  (rote38l)  (rome3%eli)  (hoteSBe)  (rote3Bali)  (rowFel)  (roteSBaka)  (roe3Beki)
HKS000  HKSO00  HKS'O00  HKS000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000
E4%0 EXEE HERE
B RBEE  BR  REER B BR ERER ORE ZiER @it FBEAE  KAEM
(He37)  (Rietastln)  (EEsseNi) (Wissgeli) (Essalhy) (KEsal) (Riigalii) (et3gelii)
TEn  TEn TR TR T TET TR TR TR TEn AR TER

Balance at 1 January 2019 RIB-AE-F-RER 100017 261837 50 64,612 641 148,302 442 133928 (346483)  (105,654)  (57,813)  (163,467)

Loss for the year FREE - - - - - - - - (99922)  (99.922) (1521)  (107,449)

Other comprehensive incomel(loss)  FREM2EKE/ (BE)
for the year

Exchange differences on translation #8350\ $HE KRR
of financial statements of foreign ~ Z[E5 2%

operations

- subsidiaries ~-HEBAF - - - - - 14,917 - - - 14917 (3,415) 11,502

- a joint venture -—fHaELE - - - - - (94) - - - (94) (10) (104)

- associates N - - - - - (1,559) - - - (1,559) (154) (1,113)
Share of other comprehensive  FE(E—BA AT ZE 4

income of an associate 2ENE - - - (17,499) - - - - - (17,499) (1,944)  (19443)

Total comprehensive incomelfloss) ~ ER2ENRE/ (B1E) 2%

for the year - - - (17,499) - 13,264 - - (99,922)  (104,157) (13,050)  (117,207)
Capital njection from FERER TR

non-controlling interests (#at14)

(note 14(c)) - - - - - - - - - - 335 335

Deemed capital contribution from a & {ERERHEHBA AT
shareholder arising from disposal B4 2 & (Hit41)

of subsidiaries (note 41) - - - 184,319 - (60,483) - - - 123,836 72,933 196,769
Transfer upon disposal of REEHBARREX

subsidiaries - - - (40,264) - - - (133928 174192 - - -
Transfer to other reserves BRTHEMEE - - - 10,336 - - - - (10,336) - - -
At 31 December 2019 RZE-AETZA=+-R 104,017 261,837 50 201,504 641 101,083 21482 - (782,549) (85,975) 2,405 (83,570)
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
mEREaR® X

For the year ended 31 December 2019 B ZE_—F—NF+—H=+—HIFZE

Notes:

* *

These accounts comprise the consolidated deficit in reserves
of approximately HK$189,992,000 (2018: approximately
HK$209,671,000) in the consolidated statement of financial
position.

Included in the amount represented deposit of approximately
HK$20,000,000 received from Retop International Investment
Limited before the year ended 31 December 2017, an entity
indirectly wholly owned by Mr. Bao Hongkai, a substantial
shareholder of the Company, for the subscription of ordinary
shares of the Company which was completed on 3 January
2018. Such amount was recorded in “Other reserves”. Upon the
completion of the subscription, such amount was reversed and
formed part of share capital and share premium.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

HERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2019 B E_—F—NF+—H=+—HIFE

2019 2018
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-hEF —E-)\F
HtaE FERT FAET
Cash flows from operating RETH2HERE
activities
Loss before income tax MR ETIS R RTE 18 (110,521) (154,893)
Adjustments for: JARIAR -
Share of results of associates Ao /NI S 1,692 12,826
Share of results of a joint venture  fE{E—RE& & ¥EEE (23) (51)
Finance costs W& R 7 84,526 101,514
Discount at inception of Eire 2 RiITERE
deposit received 6 - (2,458)
Amortisation of mining rights BRI 5 8 6,464 7,805
Amortisation of other Hinfmp & e
intangible assets 8 134 80
Amortisation of prepaid TN Tt AR S TR 5
land lease payments 8 - 1,569
Amortisation of deferred income  JEZE U A B 5 35 (783) (1,115)
Write-down of inventories FEMUR 8 997 56
Net impairment loss on financial & REERANEEZ
and contract assets VERIEN i =be -t 45(a) 18,590 9,626
Impairment loss on property, plant 1% « &= M REZ
and equipment BIEEE 15 995 5,693
Impairment loss on mining rights  £XAEHE 2 Ri{EE1E 19 32,926 8,544
Interest income MEMKA 6 (53,544) (2,296)
Depreciation of property, plant ME  BEMRETE
and equipment 8 62,048 59,332
Depreciation of right-of-use assets {fFEZEITE 8 2,845 -
Loss on disposals of property, HEME WEREREZ
plant and equipment, net =iV 8 70 95
Gain on bargain purchase arising WENBRATIELZ
from acquisition of subsidiaries EERESE 6 - (2,629)
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE—RWB AR zER 6 - (62)
Provision for FZRE AEE
reclamation obligations 32 4,556 6,087
Reversal of provision for central RO RR IR T8I 2 B
pension scheme 6 (24,110) (24,533)
Operating profit before working 2B 8 & BRI A
capital changes 26,862 25,190
Increase in inventories FEENm (1,592) (2,300)
Increase in accounts and bills JRMEEA N BB N ERIEE
receivables and contract assets jre-bji| (150,021) (224,679)
(Increase)/decrease in prepayments, FEIFRIE &5 & E fib B UK
deposits and other receivables B (3Em), B (369,964) 297,350
Decrease in accounts and bills FEfTBR R R RBR
payables (259,242) (185,504)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

mERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2019 B ZE_—F—NF+—H=+—HIFZE

2019 2018
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-hF —E-N\F
Ktat FET FHETT
Increase in other payables and H fth B A K08 K B 5T AR 4 00
accruals 404,146 80,044
Deposit received Bire - 4,554
Cash used in operations &SRR S (349,811) (5,345)
Interest received B W F 2 6 53,544 2,296
Interest paid B F B 7 (80,539) (92,692)
Income tax paid ETATEHR (339) (665)
Net cash used in operating EEEEFTAIR & F R
activities (377,145) (96,406)
Cash flows from investing REFZHZRERE
activities
Purchases of property, plant and BEYE W= MRE
equipment 15 (10,080) (32,613)
Purchases of other intangible BEHMEREEE
assets 21 (218) (730)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEME  BE MREE
plant and equipment FIE 171 55
Net cash inflow on acquisition of  WHEEMB AR 2R &M A FERE
subsidiaries 40 - 19,586
Net cash outflow on disposal of HEMB AR ZIREe R F5E
subsidiaries 41 (24,452) (55)
Decrease/(increase) in pledged and 230 % 2R 49 R1T1FE R
restricted bank deposits w3 ) 425,740 (74,771)
Net cash generated from/(used in) REEFEFNE(FTH)RE
investing activities L] 391,161 (88,528)
Cash flows from financing METHZRERE
activities
Capital injection from non- EIERER ZEE
controlling interests 14(c) 335 4,757
Proceeds from issuance of share BITIRAN 2 P S 3008
capital 37(b) - 20,000
Proceeds from bank loans IRITERZ TS IE 859,145 207,618
Repayments of bank loans EBRIETTER (827,857) (182,704)
Proceeds from other loans HiWERRERIE 5,671 201,975
Repayments of other loans EEHMER (196,738) (37,584)
Proceeds from loans from RERRERZFT1EIE
shareholders - 94,800

Rosan Resources Holdings Limited Annual Report 2019



Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

HERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2019 B E_—F—NF+—H=+—HIFE

2019 2018
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
—EB-NF —E-NF
HtaE FET FAET
Repayments of loans from RERERERZPASHIA
shareholders - (29,660)
Capital element of ENHEHE 2ERTE S
lease rentals paid (1,402) =
Interest element of ENHERS A EHS
lease rentals paid (67) =
Advance from/(repayment to) IR 2 B (RREER)
shareholders 26,636 (31,962)
Repayment to an associate A — A1 Bt & 2 R 3K - (79,785)
Advance from/(repayment to) REABEALZBZ (A
related parties, net BEATER) FHE 79,393 (109,669)
Advance from/(repayment to) AFARMEANZEZETFAL
certain parties included in other Z2F ([METALE
payables, net* ) FEE* 17,176 (15,828)
Net cash (used in)/generated from BE&EE(FTA)/ FrER4E
financing activities HRE (37,708) 41,958
Net decrease in cash and cash HE&RBELSEEERFERD
equivalents (23,692) (142,976)
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 R—A—BHZzReEAEEEE
January I5H 35,789 170,878
Effect of foreign exchange rate INEPE REEB) v &
changes 3,807 7,887
Cash and cash equivalents at R+t-—A=+—HBZHEEK
31 December REEEEA 15,904 35,789
Note: Kzt -

* The Group obtained certain cash advance from a non-controlling
shareholder of a subsidiary of the Company and an individual
during the year. The cash advances were included in other

payables (note 31(a)).

* FAAKRERARR -KHMEBARZ
FEBERRE - BALTREETRER
oo B & B A B A FR (&
31@)) °
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GENERAL INFORMATION

Rosan Resources Holdings Limited (the “Company”) is
a limited liability company incorporated in Bermuda. The
address of its registered office is located at Clarendon
House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM11, Bermuda.
The Company’'s shares are listed on the main board of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”).

The principal activities of the Company and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”) include (i) production and
sale of coal and trading of purchased coal; and (ii)
production and sale of building materials in the People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC"). During the year ended 31
December 2019, one of the subsidiaries of the Company
commenced the business of leasing of aluminum
boundary wall moulds. The principal activities and other
particulars of its subsidiaries are set out in note 14.

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2019 were approved for issue by the Board
of Directors of the Company on 13 May 2020.

Rosan Resources Holdings Limited Annual Report 2019

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e R WK M

For the year ended 31 December 2019 B Z_—FT—hF+-_H=1+—HIFE

—REH
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EEREIMKZZERAT £t
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBRRWE

For the year ended 31 December 2019 B Z_—FT—hF+-_H=1+—HIFE

2. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")

(a) Adoption of new and revised HKFRSs
effective from 1 January 2019

In the current year, the Group has applied a number
of new HKFRSs and amendments to HKFRSs
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (the “HKICPA") that are
mandatorily effective for an accounting period that
begins on or after 1 January 2019. Of these, the
following developments are relevant to the Group’s
consolidated financial statements:

HKFRS 16

Amendments to
HKFRS 9

Amendments to
Hong Kong
Accounting
Standard
("HKAS") 19

Amendments to
HKAS 28

Amendments to
HKFRSs

HK(IFRIC)
Interpretation 23

Leases

Prepayment Features with
Negative Compensation

Plan Amendment, Curtailment
or Settlement

Long-term Interests in
Associates and Joint Ventures

Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle

Uncertainty over Income
Tax Treatments

2.

BRANETR] RARIER] BB MBI
HEA(EBMBHREER])

(a) EMBE-ZE-NF-A—HAE
Rz #E] REIERT BB YR
HEA
RAFE AEEERAELES
e AE((BREETEAE])MRA
HOZEE _T—NF—A—H
k2 R FIEA A0S FT HAR] 58 I AE R
M R] BB M REER R EE
R Hf LN #EREKNEH
HER & M SRR AR ¢

EEMBERE HE
ZERIZE165%

BEYBHRE ERAMEL
HRIFHE  FRAFIERME
(1£5TA)

BBGRTER FHENERT - HR
[BBEE FE
BI1)E195%

SEHEN)

ARG LR RBERREE
22855 BhEZRB
(1£5TA) s

BRMBRE BEVHRESE

EAEFIA  RIRZ=ZT—HR
FE-_T—+
FRAZFE
Bhgia

&5 (BRI 7 PrISHBRIE < T
BEREZ  HEEX
Be)nER
235%
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2019 B Z_—FT—hF+-_H=1+—HIFE

2. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED 2. BRAFTTIRZIETEBBER
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING HXR ([ FBMERELER])
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (continued) (4)

(a) Adoption of new and revised HKFRSs () EWMBE=F—NF—A—B%

effective from 1 January 2019 (continued)

Except for the HKFRS 16 Leases (“HKFRS 16"),
the application of these new and amendments to
HKFRSs in the current year has had no material
effect on the Group’s financial performance and
positions for the current and prior years and/or
disclosures set out in these consolidated financial
statements.

Under the transition methods chosen, the Group
has recognised cumulative effect of the initial
application of HKFRS 16 as an adjustment to the
opening balance at 1 January 2019. Comparative
information is not restated. Line items that were
not affected by the changes have not been included
in the following table. As a result, the sub-totals
and totals disclosed cannot be recalculated from
the numbers provided. The following table gives
a summary of the opening balance adjustments
recognised for the line items in the consolidated
statement of financial position that have been
impacted by HKFRS 16:

Rosan Resources Holdings Limited Annual Report 2019
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBRRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2019 B Z_—FT—hF+-_H=1+—HIFE

2. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED 2.
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING

AR KRR BRI KR
HEA(EBMBHREER])

STANDARDS (“"HKFRSs") (continued) (&)
(a) Adoption of new and revised HKFRSs (a) EME-—FE—NF—HA—H%
effective from 1 January 2019 (continued) M2 HET N RS E] B8 B S 3R
HEER(4E)
Impact of
initial
At application of At
31 December HKFRS 16 1 January
2018 (note 2(b)) 2019
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BRER
ERMERS
i B 551657 i)
—E-N\E 04 —E-hEF
+=A=+-H (BtaE2(b)) —B—H
FAT FAT FAT
Prepaid land lease payments &1 + i1 18 & 218 66,197 (66,197) -
Right-of-use assets FRAEEE - 68,912 68,912
Total non-current assets FEREEELLE 863,625 2,715 866,340
Prepaid land lease payments &1 + i1 78 & 218 1,506 (1,506) -
Total current assets REBEEAE 1,207,277 (1,506) 1,205,771
Lease liabilities HEAE - (980) (980)
Total current liabilities nRBEELE (2,095,718) (980) (2,096,698)
Net current liabilities RBEEFE (888,441) (2,486) (890,927)
Total assets less HEERRBEE
current liabilities (24,816) 229 (24,587)
Lease liabilities HEAE - (229) (229)
Total non-current ¥RBEBAE
liabilities (138,651) (229) (138,880)

Further details of these changes are set out in note

2(b).

AEEHME — S FBHNHE
2(b)e

BMEERZERERAR 2019FFH
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2019 &% — &

2. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (continued)

(b) HKFRS 16 Leases

HKFRS 16 replaces HKAS 17 Leases, HK(IFRIC)
Interpretation 4 Determining whether an
Arrangement contains a Lease, HK(SIC)
Interpretation 15 Operating Leases — Incentives and
HK(SIC) Interpretation 27 Evaluating the Substance
of Transactions Involving the Legal Form of a
Lease. HKFRS 16 introduced a single, on-balance
sheet accounting model for lessees. As a result,
the Group, as a lessee, has recognised right-of-use
assets representing its rights to use the underlying
assets and lease liabilities representing its obligation
to make lease payments. Lessor accounting under
HKFRS 16 is substantially unchanged from HKAS
17. Lessor will continue to classify leases as either
operating or finance leases using similar principles
as in HKAS 17. Therefore, HKFRS 16 did not have
any financial impact on leases where the Group is
the lessor.

The Group has applied HKFRS 16 using the
modified retrospective approach. Accordingly, the
comparative information presented for the year
ended 31 December 2018 has not been restated
— i.e. it is presented, as previously reported, under
HKAS 17 and related interpretations. The details
of the changes in accounting policies are disclosed
below.

Rosan Resources Holdings Limited Annual Report 2019
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2019 &=

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (continued)

(b) HKFRS 16 Leases (continued)

(i)

New definition of a lease

Under HKFRS 16, a contract is, or contains a
lease if the contract conveys a right to control
the use of an identified asset for a period of
time in exchange for consideration. Control
is conveyed where the customer has both
the right to obtain substantially all of the
economic benefits from use of the identified
asset and the right to direct the use of the
identified asset. The Group elected to use the
transition practical expedient allowing the
standard to be applied only to contracts that
were previously identified as leases applying
HKAS 17 and HK(IFRIC) Interpretation 4 at the
date of initial application. Contracts that were
not identified as leases under HKAS 17 and
HK(IFRIC) Interpretation 4 were not reassessed.
Therefore, the definition of a lease under
HKFRS 16 has been applied only to contracts
entered into or changed on or after 1 January
2019.

At inception or on reassessment of a contract
that contains a lease component, the Group
allocates the consideration in the contract to
each lease and non-lease component on the
basis of their stand-alone prices. A practical
expedient is available to a lessee, which the
Group has adopted, not to separate non-lease
components and to account for the lease and
the associated non-lease components as a
single lease component.
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S

2. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“"HKFRSs") (continued)

(b) HKFRS 16 Leases (continued)

(ii) Lessee accounting and transitional

impact

HKFRS 16 eliminates the requirement for a
lessee to classify leases as either operating
leases or finance leases, as was previously
required by HKAS 17. Instead, the Group is
required to capitalise all leases when it is the
lessee, including leases previously classified as
operating leases under HKAS 17, other than
those short-term leases and leases of low-
value assets.

At the date of initial application of HKFRS 16
(i.e. 1 January 2019), the Group determined
the length of the remaining lease terms and
measured the lease liabilities for the leases
previously classified as operating leases at the
present value of the remaining lease payments,
discounted using the relevant incremental
borrowing rates at 1 January 2019. The
weighted average of the incremental
borrowing rates used for determination of the
lease liability was 5.13%.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBRRWE

For the year ended 31 December 2019 B Z_—FT—hF+-_H=1+—HIFE

2. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“"HKFRSs") (continued)

(b) HKFRS 16 Leases (continued)

(ii) Lessee accounting and transitional
impact (continued)

To ease the transition to HKFRS 16, the Group
applied the following recognition exemption
and practical expedients at the date of initial
application of HKFRS 16:

the Group elected not to apply the
requirements of HKFRS 16 in respect of
the recognition of lease liabilities and
right-of-use assets to leases for which
the remaining lease term ends within
12 months from the date of initial
application of HKFRS 16, i.e. where
the lease term ends on or before 31
December 2019;

i. when measuring the right-of-use assets
at the date of initial application of HKFRS
16, the Group excluded initial direct
costs; and

iii. when measuring the right-of-use
assets at the date of initial application
of HKFRS 16, the Group relied on the
previous assessment of whether leases
are onerous by apply HKAS 37 as at
31 December 2018 as an alternative to
performing an impairment review.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2019 B Z_—FT—hF+-_H=1+—HIFE

2. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED 2.
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“"HKFRSs") (continued)

(b) HKFRS 16 Leases (continued)

Bl D)

(&)

(ii) Lessee accounting and transitional
impact (continued) & (&)

The following table reconciles the operating
lease commitments as disclosed in note 42(b)
as at 31 December 2018 to the opening
balance for lease liabilities recognised as at 1

+=-A=

BRANFTR] RS BB MR
HEA(ERBMBREE

(b) BEBMBHRELAE165REE
(i) REAESEERBRESR

TREINR-_Z—-NF

T—HZEEH

& A M 5E42(b)FT
BER_ZE—-hE—A—

January 2019: ARZEERENHY
FEERETER
HK$’000
THET
Operating lease commitment at R-ZE—N\F+-_A=+—HZ
31 December 2018 KT EAYE 1A EE
Less: A
Leases end within 12 months from the R E X EH B #1218 R
date of initial application ERHOHEE (13)
Add: on
Others Hh, 63
Operating lease liabilities before RZE—N\F+_A=+—HAH
discounting at 31 December 2018 A EHERE 1,249
Effect from discounting at incremental R -_ZE—NF— A —HESEE
borrowing rate at 1 January 2019 lpegzhopicE b= 2 (40)
Lease liabilities recognised as at RZE—-—NF—A—BERNEE
1 January 2019 BfE 1,209

Of which are:
Current lease liabilities
Non-current lease liabilities
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REMBRRWE

For the year ended 31 December 2019 B Z_—FT—hF+-_H=1+—HIFE

2. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“"HKFRSs") (continued)

(b) HKFRS 16 Leases (continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Lessee accounting and transitional
impact (continued)

The associated right-of-use assets for
properties and office equipment were
measured at the amount equal to the lease
liabilities, adjusted by the amounts of any
prepaid land lease payments relating to the
land leases recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31
December 2018. The Group elected to present
the right-of-use assets separately in the
consolidated statement of financial position.
This includes the land use rights recognised
previously under prepaid land lease payments
of approximately RMB67,703,000 as at 31
December 2018 that were reclassified to right-
to-use assets upon the adoption of HKFRS 16
for the presentation purpose.

Impact on the financial result and cash
flows of the Group

After the initial recognition of right-of-use
assets and lease liabilities as at 1 January
2019, the Group as a lessee is required to
recognise interest expense accrued on the
outstanding balance of the lease liability, and
the depreciation of the right-of-use asset,
instead of the previous policy of recognising
rental expenses incurred under operating
leases on a straight-line basis over the lease
term. This results in a positive impact on the
reported loss before income tax in the Group's
consolidated income statement, as compared
to the results if HKAS 17 had been applied
during the year.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 B Z_—FT—hF+-_H=1+—HIFE

2.

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“"HKFRSs") (continued)

(b) HKFRS 16 Leases (continued)

(iii) Impact on the financial result and cash

(iv)

flows of the Group (continued)

In the consolidated statement of cash flows,
the Group as a lessee is required to split rentals
paid under capitalised leases into their capital
element and interest element (see note 28(c)).
These elements are classified as financing
cash outflows, rather than as investing and
operating cash outflows, as was the case for
operating leases under HKAS 17. Although
total cash flows are unaffected, the adoption
of HKFRS 16 therefore results in a significant
change in presentation of cash flows within
the consolidated statement of cash flows (see
note 33).

As a lessor

The Group leases out its certain leasehold land
and building in the PRC at 1 January 2019. The
Group has classified these leases as operating
leases. The accounting policies applicable to
the Group as a lessor are not different from
those under HKAS 17.

Under HKFRS 16, when the Group acts as an
intermediate lessor in a sublease arrangement,
the Group is required to classify the sublease
as a finance lease or an operating lease by
reference to the right-of-use asset arising from
the head lease, instead of by reference to the
underlying asset. The Group is not required to
make any adjustments on transition to HKFRS
16 for leases in which it acts as a lessor.

Rosan Resources Holdings Limited Annual Report 2019
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBRRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2019 B Z_—FT—hF+-_H=1+—HIFE

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (continued)

(c) New and revised HKFRSs that have been
issued but are not yet effective

The Group has not applied the following new
and revised HKFRSs, which have been issued but
are not yet effective, in the consolidated financial
statements:

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Definition of a Business'
(Revised)

Amendments to HKFRS 9, Interest Rate Benchmark Reform'
HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7

Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets between

and HKAS 28 an Investor and its Associate or Joint
Venture?
HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts?

Amendments to HKAS 1 Definition of Material’
(Revised) and HKAS 8

Conceptual Framework Revised Conceptual Framework for
for Financial Reporting Financial Reporting'
2018

L Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2020, with earlier application permitted

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2021, with earlier application permitted

2 The amendments were original intended to be
effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2016. The effective date has now been
deferred. Early application of the amendments
continues to be permitted.

The Group has already commenced an assessment
of the related impact of adopting the above new
and revised HKFRSs. So far, based on the preliminary
assessment, the directors of the Company have
concluded that the above new and revised HKFRSs
which will be adopted at the respective effective
dates is unlikely to have a significant impact on the
consolidated financial statements of the Group.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 B Z_—FT—hF+-_H=1+—HIFE

3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

3.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with HKFRSs which
collective term includes all applicable individual
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards,
HKASs and Interpretations issued by the HKICPA,
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong
Kong and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance. The consolidated
financial statements also comply with the applicable
disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the
“Listing Rules”).

The significant accounting policies that have been
used in the preparation of the consolidated financial
statements are summarised below. These policies
have been consistently applied to all the years
presented unless otherwise stated. The adoption of
new or amended HKFRSs and the impacts on the
Group's consolidated financial statements, if any,
are disclosed in note 2.

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared under historical cost convention, except
for financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income (“FVTOCI”) which are
measured as fair value. The measurement bases are
fully described in the accounting policies below.

It should be noted that accounting estimates
and assumptions are used in preparation of the
consolidated financial statements. Although
these estimates are based on management’s best
knowledge and judgement of current events and
actions, actual results may ultimately differ from
those estimates. The areas involving a higher
degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where
assumptions and estimates are significant to the
consolidated financial statements, are disclosed in
note 4.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE BB HRRKE

For the year ended 31 December 2019 BHZE_—FT—hNhF+_-_A=+—HIFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. TESHHEHME®)
POLICIES (continued)
3.1 Basis of preparation (continued) 3.1 RBEEE(E)
Going concern basis EKERE
The Group incurred a consolidated net loss of HE_ZT-hEF+-A=+—8H

approximately HK$107,449,000 for the year ended
31 December 2019 and, as of that date, the
Group has net current liabilities of approximately
HK$412,721,000 and a capital deficiency of
approximately HK$83,570,000. As at 31 December
2019, the Group's outstanding borrowings of
approximately HK$248,980,000, which included
bank loans of approximately HK$147,014,000
(note 34), amounts due to shareholders of the
Company of approximately HK$1,337,000 (note 30)
and certain cash advanced from a family member
of a substantial shareholder of the Company, a
non-controlling shareholder of a subsidiary of the
Company, a company controlled by a substantial
shareholder of the Company and an individual of
approximately HK$100,629,000 (included in other
payables (note 31(a))), are due for repayment within
one year from the end of the reporting period or
repayable on demand. These conditions indicate the
existence of material uncertainties which may cast
significant doubt on the Group's ability to continue
as a going concern and therefore, the Group may
not be able to realise its assets and discharge its
liabilities in the normal course of its business.

In order to improve the Group’s financial positions,
liquidity and cash flows, the directors of the
Company have adopted or in the process of
adopting the following measures:

(@ The Group has been taking stringent cost
controls in different areas, such as applying
cost control measures in the cost of sales and
administrative expenses;

(b) The Group has been liaising with certain
banks in relation to the renewal of its
bank loans amounting to approximately
Renminbi (“RMB"”) 131,424,000 (equivalent
to approximately HK$147,014,000) as at 31
December 2019, which would be due for
repayment within twelve months from the
reporting date. In the opinion of the directors
of the Company, taken into account the long
term relationships and also their understanding
from the liaison with the banks, all the bank
borrowings can be renewed upon their
respective maturities;
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 B Z_—FT—hF+-_H=1+—HIFE

3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

Going concern basis (continued)

(@)

#

A then subsidiary of the Company, Henan
Jinfeng Coal Industrial Group Company
Limited* (MEEZ2RKEXEEBEERA
Al) ("Jinfeng”), entered into three loan
agreements with three shareholders of the
Company (the “Three Shareholders”) on
14 February 2018, in which two of them are
substantial shareholders of the Company who
directly/indirectly own 23.27% and 12.26%
of the Company’s shares respectively as of
the date of approval of these consolidated
financial statements. Pursuant to the loan
agreements, the Three Shareholders agreed
to provide unsecured and interest-free
revolving loans with an aggregate amount of
RMB600,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$671,172,000) for a term of three years.
Jinfeng was disposed of together with the
disposal of Clear Interest Limited (“CIL")
(note 41). Before the disposal, pursuant to
one of the supplemental agreements of share
purchase agreement for disposal of CIL, the
loans from shareholders were taken up by
Xiangyang Coal Industry Company Limited*
(EHMmMAEBREEBFRRQA) (“Xiangyang”),
another subsidiary of the Company that
remains in the Group, and the Three
Shareholders agreed to provide unsecured and
interest-free loan facilities up to an aggregate
amount of RMB600,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$671,172,000) to the Group,
which will be expired on 13 February 2021,
being the maturity date of the original loan
agreements. As at 31 December 2019, loans
from shareholders with principal amount of
RMB55,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$61,524,000) has been advanced to the
Group; and

The Group, from time to time, reviews its
investment projects and may adjust the
investment strategies in order to enhance the
cash flow position of the Group whenever it is
necessary.

For identification purpose only
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE BB HRRKE

For the year ended 31 December 2019 B Z_—FT—hF+-_H=1+—HIFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.1

3.2

Basis of preparation (continued)
Going concern basis (continued)

Taking into account the above measures and after
assessing the Group's current and future cash flow
positions, the directors of the Company are satisfied
that the Group will be able to meet their financial
obligations when they fall due. Accordingly, the
directors of the Company are of the opinion that it
is appropriate to prepare the consolidated financial
statements on a going concern basis.

Should the Group be unable to continue in business
as a going concern, adjustments would have to be
made to write down the carrying amounts of assets
to their estimated recoverable amounts, to reclassify
non-current assets and non-current liabilities as
current assets and current liabilities respectively, and
to provide for any further liabilities which may arise.
The effects of these adjustments have not been
reflected in the consolidated financial statements.

Basis of consolidation

These consolidated financial statements include
the financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries for the year ended 31 December 2019.
The financial statements of subsidiaries are prepared
for the same reporting period as the Company,
using consistent accounting policies. The results
of subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on
which the Group obtains control, and continue to
be consolidated until the date that such control
ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other
comprehensive income (“OCI”) are attributed to
the owners of the Group and to the non-controlling
interests, even if this results in the non-controlling
interest having a deficit balance. All intra-group
transactions, balances, income and expenses are
eliminated in full on consolidation.

The Group re-assesses whether or not it controls
an investee if facts and circumstances indicate that
there are changes to one or more of the three
elements of control described in the accounting
policy for subsidiaries below.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 &% — =

3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2

3.3

Basis of consolidation (continued)

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in
subsidiaries that do not result in the group losing
control over the subsidiaries are accounted for as
equity transactions.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary,
the profit or loss on disposal is calculated as
the difference between (i) the aggregate of the
fair value of the consideration received and the
fair value of any investment retained and (ii) the
previous carrying amount of the assets (including
goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary and
any non-controlling interests. The Group’s share
of components previously recognised in OCI is
reclassified to the consolidated income statement
or retained profits, as appropriate, on the same
basis as would be required if the Group had directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities.

Business combination and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred is
measured at the acquisition date fair value which is
the sum of the acquisition date fair values of assets
transferred by the Group, liabilities assumed by the
Group to the former owners of the acquiree and
the equity interests issued by the Group in exchange
for control of the acquiree. For each business
combination, the Group elects whether to measure
the non-controlling interests in the acquiree that are
present ownership interests and entitle their holders
to a proportionate share of net assets in the event
of liquidation at fair value or at the proportionate
share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All
other components of non-controlling interests are
measured at fair value. Acquisition-related costs are
expensed as incurred.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 B Z_—FT—hF+-_H=1+—HIFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FEE3HHBEHNE &)
POLICIES (continued)

3.3 Business combination and goodwiill

33 XBEHREE(E)

(continued)

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses
the financial assets and liabilities assumed for
appropriate classification and designation in
accordance with the contractual terms, economic
circumstances and pertinent conditions as at the
acquisition date. This includes the separation of
embedded derivatives in host contracts of the
acquiree.

When a business combination is achieved in
stages, the Group’s previously held equity interest
in the acquiree is remeasured to fair value at the
acquisition date (i.e. the date when the Group
obtains control), and the resulting gain or loss,
if any, is recognised in the consolidated income
statement.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred
by the acquirer is recognised at fair value at the
acquisition date. Contingent consideration classified
as an asset or liability that is a financial instrument
and within the scope of HKFRS 9 is measured at fair
value with changes in fair value either recognised
in profit or loss or as a change to OCI. If the
contingent consideration is not within the scope
of HKFRS 9, it is measured in accordance with
the appropriate HKFRS. Contingent consideration
that is classified as equity is not remeasured and
subsequent settlement is accounted for within
equity.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 B Z_—FT—hF+-_H=1+—HIFE

3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.3 Business combination and goodwill

(continued)

In the Company’s statement of financial position
(note 49), investments in subsidiaries are stated at
cost less impairment losses, unless the investments
are classified as held for sale.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the
excess of the sum of the consideration transferred,
the amount of any non-controlling interests in
the acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree (if
any) over the net of the acquisition-date amounts
of the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities
assumed. If, after assessment, the net of the
acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds the sum of
the consideration transferred, the amount of any
non-controlling interests in the acquiree and the
fair value of the acquirer’s previously held interest
in the acquiree (if any), the excess is recognised
immediately in consolidated income statement as a
bargain purchase gain.

After initial recognition, goodwill is carried at cost
less accumulated impairment losses, if any, and is
presented separately in the consolidated statement
of financial position.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE BB HRRKE

For the year ended 31 December 2019 B Z_—FT—hF+-_H=1+—HIFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FEE3HHBEHNE &)
POLICIES (continued)

3.3 Business combination and goodwiill

33 XBEHREE(E)

(continued)

Goodwill is tested for impairment annually or more
frequently if events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying value may be impaired.
The Group performs its annual impairment test
of goodwill as at 31 December. For the purposes
of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to
each of the cash-generating units (or groups
of cash-generating units) that is expected to
benefit from the synergies of the combination,
irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of
the Group are assigned to those units or groups
of units. Impairment is determined by assessing
the recoverable amount of the cash-generating
units (group of cash-generating units) to which
the goodwill relates. If the recoverable amount
of the cash-generating units (group of cash-
generating units) is less than its carrying amount,
the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the
carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the
unit (group of cash-generating units) and then to
the other assets of the unit on a pro-rata basis
based on the carrying amount of each asset in the
unit. Any impairment loss recognised for goodwill is
not reversed in subsequent periods.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-
generating unit (or group of cash-generating
units) and part of the operation within that unit
is disposed of, the goodwill associated with the
operation disposed of is included in the carrying
amount of the operation when determining the
gain or loss on the disposal. Goodwill disposed of
in these circumstances is measured based on the
relative value of the operation disposed of and the
portion of the cash-generating unit retained.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2019 &% — &

3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.4

3.5

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured
entity) controlled by the Company. Control is
achieved when the Group is exposed, or has rights,
to variable returns from its involvement with the
investee and has the ability to affect those returns
through its power over the investee (i.e. existing
rights that give the Group the current ability to
direct the relevant activities of the investee).

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less
than a majority of the voting or similar rights of an
investee, the Group considers all relevant facts and
circumstances in assessing whether it has power
over an investee, including:

o the contractual arrangement with the other
vote holders of the investee;

o rights arising from other contractual
arrangements; and

o the Group’s voting rights and potential voting
rights.

Associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity in which the Group
has significant influence, which is the power to
participate in the financial and operating policy
decision of the investee, but is not control or joint
control over those policies.

A joint venture is a type of joint arrangement
whereby the parties have rights to the net assets of
the joint venture. Joint control is the contractually
agreed sharing of control of an arrangement,
which exists only when decisions about the relevant
activities require the unanimous consent of the
parties sharing control.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE BB HRRKE

For the year ended 31 December 2019 B Z_—FT—hF+-_H=1+—HIFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.5 Associates and joint ventures (continued)

Investments in associates or a joint venture
is accounted for in the consolidated financial
statements under the equity method, less any
impairment losses, unless it is classified as held
for sale. Adjustments are made to bring into line
any dissimilar accounting policies that may exist.
Under the equity method, the investment is initially
recorded at cost, adjusted for any excess of the
Group’s share of the acquisition-date fair values of
the investee’s identifiable net assets over the cost of
the investment (if any). Thereafter, the investment
is adjusted for the post-acquisition change in the
Group’s share of the investee’s net assets and any
impairment loss relating to the investment. Any
acquisition-date excess over cost, the Group’s share
of the post-acquisition, post-tax results of the
investees and any impairment losses for the year are
recognised in the consolidated income statement,
whereas the Group’s share of the post-acquisition
post-tax items of the investee’s OCl is recognised
in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income.

When the Group’s share of losses exceeds its
interest in the associate or the joint venture, the
Group’s interest is reduced to zero and recognition
of further losses is discontinued except to the extent
that the Group has incurred legal or constructive
obligations or made payments on behalf of the
investee. For this purpose, the Group’s interest is
the carrying amount of the investment under the
equity method together with the Group’s long-term
interests that in substance form part of the Group’s
net investment in the associates or the joint venture.

Unrealised profits and losses resulting from
transactions between the Group and its associates
and joint venture are eliminated to the extent of
the Group’s interest in the investee, except where
unrealised losses provide evidence of an impairment
of the asset transferred, in which case they are
recognised immediately in consolidated income
statement. Goodwill arising from the acquisition of
associates or joint venture is included as part of the
Group’s investments in associates or joint venture.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2019 B Z_—FT—hF+-_H=1+—HIFE

3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.5

3.6

Associates and joint ventures (continued)

If an investment in an associate becomes an
investment in a joint venture or vice versa,
retained interest is not remeasured. Instead, the
investment continues to be accounted for under
the equity method. In all other cases, when the
Group ceases to have significant influence over an
associate or joint control over a joint venture, it is
accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest
in that investee, with a resulting gain or loss being
recognised in consolidated income statement. Any
interest retained in that former investee at the date
when significant influence or joint control is lost is
recognised at fair value and this amount is regarded
as the fair value on initial recognition of a financial
asset.

When investments in associates or a joint venture
is classified as held for sale, it is accounted for in
accordance with HKFRS 5.

Foreign currency translation

The consolidated financial statements are presented
in Hong Kong dollars (“HK$"), which is also the
functional currency of the Company and all values
are rounded to the nearest thousand except when
otherwise indicated.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE BB HRRKE

For the year ended 31 December 2019 B Z_—FT—hF+-_H=1+—HIFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FEE3HHBEHNE &)
POLICIES (continued)

3.6 Foreign currency translation (continued)

3.6 SMEBRE(E)

Each entity in the Group determines its own
functional currency and items included in the
financial statements of each entity are measured
using that functional currency. Foreign currency
transactions are initially recorded using the
functional currency rates ruling at the date of
the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated
at the functional currency rates of exchange ruling
at the end of the reporting period. Differences
arising on settlement or translation of monetary
items are recognised in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income with the exception of
monetary items that are designated as part of the
hedge of the Group’s net investment of a foreign
operation. Non-monetary items that are measured
in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
translated using the exchange rates at the dates
of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items
measured at fair value in a foreign currency are
translated using the exchange rates at the date
when the fair value was determined. The gain
or loss arising on translation of a non-monetary
item measured at fair value is treated in line with
the recognition of the gain or loss on change in
fair value of the item. The functional currencies
of certain overseas subsidiaries, joint venture and
associates are currencies other than HK$. As at the
end of the reporting period, the assets and liabilities
of these entities are translated into the presentation
currency of the Company at the exchange rates
ruling at the end of the reporting period, and their
income and expense items are translated into HK$
at the weighted average exchange rates for the
year.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e R WK M

For the year ended 31 December 2019 &% — =

3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.6

3.7

Foreign currency translation (continued)

The resulting exchange differences are recorded
in OCl and the cumulative balance is included in
exchange fluctuation reserve in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity. On disposal of a
foreign operation, the deferred cumulative amount
recognised in exchange fluctuation reserve relating
to that particular foreign operation is recognised in
the consolidated income statement. Any goodwill
arising on the acquisition of a foreign operation and
any fair value adjustments to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities arising on acquisition are
treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign
operation and translated at the closing rate.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of
cash flows, the cash flows of overseas subsidiaries
are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the
exchange rates ruling at the dates of the cash
flows. Frequently recurring cash flows of overseas
subsidiaries which arise throughout the year are
translated into HK$ at the weighted average
exchange rates for the year.

Revenue recognition

The Group recognises revenue when (or as) a
performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when
control of the goods or services underlying the
particular performance obligation is transferred to
the customer.

A performance obligation is a promise in a contract
with a customer to transfer to the customer either
(a) a good or service (or a bundle of goods or
services) that is distinct; or (b) a series of distinct
goods or services that are substantially the same
and that have the same pattern of transfer to the
customer.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE BB HRRKE

For the year ended 31 December 2019 B Z_—FT—hF+-_H=1+—HIFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FEE3HHBEHNE &)
POLICIES (continued)
3.7 Revenue recognition (continued) 3.7 WARR(E)

Control is transferred over time and revenue is
recognised over time by reference to the progress
towards complete satisfaction of the relevant
performance obligation if one of the following
criteria is met:

— the customer simultaneously receives and
consumes the benefits provided by the Group’s
performance as the Group performs;

—  the Group’s performance creates and enhances
an asset that the customer controls as the
Group performs; or

—  the Group’s performance does not create an
asset with an alternative use to the Group and
the Group has an enforceable right to payment
for performance completed to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time
when the customer obtains control of the distinct
good or service.

A contract asset represents the Group's right to
consideration in exchange for goods or services that
the Group has transferred to a customer that is not
yet unconditional. It is assessed for impairment in
accordance with HKFRS 9. In contrast, a receivable
represents the Group’s unconditional right to
consideration, i.e. only the passage of time is
required before payment of that consideration is
due.

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation
to transfer goods or services to a customer for
which the Group has received consideration (or an
amount of consideration is due) from the customer.

A contract asset and a contract liability relating to a
contract are accounted for and presented on a net
basis.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2019 B Z_—FT—hF+-_H=1+—HIFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.7 Revenue recognition (continued)

Further details of the Group's revenue and other
income recognition policies are as follows:

i)

Sales of coal and trading of purchased
coal

The Group is principally engaged in the
business of production and sale of coal and
trading of purchased coal. The Group also sells
ancillary materials to its customers. Revenue
are recognised when control of the products
has transferred, being when the products are
delivered to and accepted by the customer at
the agreed predetermined location, and there
is no unfulfilled obligation that could affect
the customer’s acceptance of the products.

Revenue from these sales is recognised
based on the price specified in the contract.
The Group typically receives certain deposit
on acceptance of coal sales orders, which
is negotiated on a case by case basis with
customers. These deposits are recognised as a
contract liability until the revenue recognised
exceeds the amount of the deposit.

No element of financing is deemed present as
the sales are made with a credit term from 30
to 180 days for the remaining balance based
on the invoice date, which is consistent with
market practice.

A receivable is recognised when the goods are
accepted as this is the point in time that the
consideration is unconditional because only
the passage of time is required before the
payment is due.

Rosan Resources Holdings Limited Annual Report 2019

3. TESTHREE®)

3.7 WARR(E)
BRAREBEW R H SR
B E— BT

i)

HRIEEARBARKE
2
AEEEFERERKEE
NI E XA R AR K
ZEZER - ARBEFAH
BEP L EHBM A - Wam R
EmiEH SRR ER - R
E an 7 13 OE TR RE 3 3 XA
TEFPhkBMEFPER YA
MERBITOREAEY
BEPHEMMEX -

ZEHEWmRIES KR
EREBRER - AEBEAEF
EREXRRIEERER
WEE TS SREAR
BREEFHE - ZFRE
RERRDBEBEZEER
ZAHERBBHWARE-

B IRIEE B H A F &4
“ & = B B A30%180
B BTN FEEARES

B R I RE R E K
R AR AR EEGER
FrfE - AAENREIHL
AERL—BREH -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE BB HRRKE

For the year ended 31 December 2019 B Z_—FT—hF+-_H=1+—HIFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.7 Revenue recognition (continued)

ii)

Sales of building materials

The Group is also engaged in the business
of production and sale of building materials.
Revenue are recognised when control of the
products has transferred, being when the
products are delivered to and accepted by the
customer, and there is no unfulfilled obligation
that could affect the customer’s acceptance
of the products. Delivery occurs when the
products have been transferred to the specific
location.

Revenue from these sales is recognised based
on the price specified in the contract. The
Group typically receives certain deposit on
acceptance of building materials orders, which
is negotiated on a case by case basis with
customers. These deposits are recognised as a
contract liability until the revenue recognised
exceeds the amount of the deposit.

A receivable is recognised when the goods are
accepted as this is the point in time that the
consideration is unconditional because only
the passage of time is required before the
payment is due. No element of financing is
deemed presented as the sales are made as the
Group typically offers a credit term from 30 to
180 days for the remaining balance based on
the invoice date.

Certain of the Group’'s building materials
contracts include payment schedules which
require stage payments over the contract
period once milestones are reached. No
element of financing is deemed, as the
period between payment and transfer of the
associated goods is less than one year, which
the Group applies the practical expedient of
not adjusting the transaction price for any
significant financing component.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 &% — &

3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.7

3.8

Revenue recognition (continued)
ii)  Sales of building materials (continued)

Certain major building material contracts
also include a retention period for 1%
to 16% of the contract value, which is
entitled by the Group subject to the Group’s
product satisfactorily passing inspection
and is consistent with market practice. This
amount is included in contract assets until the
end of the retention period as the Group's
entitlement to this final payment is conditional
on the Group’s product satisfactorily passing
inspection.

iii) Interest income

Accounting policy of interest income is stated
in the section headed "amortised cost and
interest income” in note 3.14.

iv) Rental income

Accounting policy of rental income is stated in
the section headed “the Group as a lessor” in
note 3.13.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of qualifying
assets, which are assets that necessarily take a
substantial period of time to get ready for their
intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those
assets, until such time as the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale. Investment
income earned on the temporary investment of
specific borrowings pending their expenditure on
qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing
costs eligible for capitalisation. Other borrowing
costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they are incurred.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 B Z_—FT—hF+-_H=1+—HIFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.8

3.9

Borrowing costs (continued)

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of
the cost of a qualifying asset commences when
expenditure for the asset is being incurred,
borrowing costs are being incurred and activities
that are necessary to prepare the asset for its
intended use or sale are in progress. Capitalisation
of borrowing costs is suspended or ceases when
substantially all the activities necessary to prepare
the qualifying asset for its intended use or sale are
interrupted or complete.

Intangible assets (other than goodwill,
mining rights and right-of-use assets)

Intangible assets acquired separately are recognised
initially at cost. After initial recognition, intangible
assets with finite useful lives are carried at cost less
accumulated amortisation and any impairment loss.
Amortisation for intangible assets with finite useful
lives is provided on straight-line method over their
estimated useful lives of two years.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are
carried at cost less any subsequent impairment
losses. Intangible assets are tested for impairment
as described below in note 3.12. Amortisation
commences when intangible assets are available for
use.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an
intangible asset are measured at the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset and are recognised in the
consolidated income statement when the asset is
derecognised.

All intangible assets are amortised on a straight-line
basis over 5 to 10 years.
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e BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2019 B Z_—FT—hF+-_H=1+—HIFE

3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.10 Mining rights

Mining rights are stated at cost less accumulated
amortisation and any identified impairment losses
and are amortised using units-of-production method
over the proved and probable reserves of the coal
mines. Mining rights are tested for impairment as
described below in note 3.12.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of mining
rights are measured at the difference between the
net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of
the asset and are recognised in the consolidated
income statement when the asset is derecognised.

3.11 Property, plant and equipment

Buildings held for own use which are situated on
leasehold land, where the fair value of the building
could be measured separately from the fair value
of the leasehold land at the inception of the lease,
and other items of property, plant and equipment,
other than construction in progress (“CIP”), are
stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
any identified impairment losses. The cost of an
asset comprises its purchase price and any directly
attributable costs of bringing the asset to the
working condition and location for its intended use.

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment,
other than aluminum boundary wall moulds, is
provided to write off the cost less their estimated
residual values over their estimated useful lives,
using straight-line method, at the following rates
per annum:
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBRRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2019 B Z_—FT—hF+-_H=1+—HIFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FESHHEHMES)
POLICIES (continued)

3.11 Property, plant and equipment (continued) 3. YE-BERSKE(E)

Buildings and mining The shorter of the lease terms and
structures 5% per annum

Plant and machineries 4% to 33% per annum

Mining related machinery 10% to 20% per annum
and equipment

Furniture, fixtures and 10% to 20% per annum equipment
equipment

Leasehold improvement  The shorter of the lease terms and
10% to 20% per annum

Motor vehicles 10% to 25% per annum
Aluminum boundary Over estimated product life of the
wall moulds aluminum boundary wall moulds
manufactured.

The asset’s estimated residual value, depreciation
method and estimated useful lives are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at each reporting date.

Gain or loss arising on retirement or disposal is
determined as the difference between the sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and
is recognised in consolidated income statement.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will
flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be
measured reliably. All other costs, such as repairs
and maintenance are charged to consolidated
income statement during the financial period in
which they are incurred.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 &% — =

3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.11 Property, plant and equipment (continued)

CIP, which mainly represents construction on
buildings and mining structures and machinery, is
stated at cost less any identified impairment losses.
Cost comprises direct costs incurred during the
periods of construction, installation and testing. No
depreciation is provided on CIP. CIP is reclassified
to the appropriate category of property, plant and
equipment when the construction is completed and
the asset is ready for use.

3.12 Impairment of non-financial assets

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting
period as to whether there is an indication that
previously recognised impairment losses may
no longer exist or may have decreased. If such
an indication exists, the recoverable amount is
estimated. A previously recognised impairment loss
of an asset other than goodwill is reversed only if
there has been a change in the estimates used to
determine the recoverable amount of that asset, but
not to an amount higher than the carrying amount
that would have been determined (net of any
depreciation/amortisation) had no impairment loss
been recognised for the asset in prior years.

Goodwill and other intangible assets with an
indefinite useful life or those not yet available for
use are tested for impairment at least annually,
irrespective of whether there is any indication that
they are impaired. All other assets are tested for
impairment whenever there are indications that the
assets carrying amount may not be recoverable.

An impairment loss is recognised as an expense
immediately for the amount by which the asset’s
carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount.
The recoverable amount is the higher of fair value,
reflecting market conditions less costs of disposal,
and value-in-use. In assessing value-in-use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessment of time value of
money and the risk specific to the asset.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBRRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2019 B Z_—FT—hF+-_H=1+—HIFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FEE3HHBEHNE &)
POLICIES (continued)

3.12 Impairment of non-financial assets

312 FERMEEZRME(E)

(continued)

For the purposes of assessing impairment,
where an asset does not generate cash inflows
largely independent of those of other assets,
the recoverable amount is determined for the
smallest group of assets that generate cash inflow
independently (i.e. a cash-generating unit (“CGU")).
As a result, some assets are tested individually for
impairment and some are tested at CGU level.
Goodwill in particular is allocated to those CGUs
that are expected to benefit from synergies of the
related business combination and represent the
lowest level within the Group at which the goodwill
is monitored for internal management purpose.

Impairment losses recognised for CGUs, to which
goodwill has been allocated, are credited initially
to the carrying amount of goodwill. Any remaining
impairment loss is charged pro rata to the other
assets in the CGUs, except that the carrying value
of an asset will not be reduced below its individual
fair value less costs of disposal, or value-in-use, if
determinable.

An impairment loss on goodwill is not reversed in
subsequent periods.

3.13 Leases

The Group as a lessee

At inception of a contract, the Group assesses
whether the contract is, or contains, a lease. A
contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract
conveys the right to control the use of an
identified asset for a period of time in exchange
for consideration. Control is conveyed where the
customer has both the right to direct the use of the
identified asset and to obtain substantially all of the
economic benefits from that use.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 B Z_—FT—hF+-_H=1+—HIFE

3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.13 Leases (continued)

The Group as a lessee (continued)

(i)

Policy applicable from 1 January 2019

Where the contract contains lease
component(s) and non-lease component(s),
the Group has elected not to separate non-
lease components and accounts for each lease
component and any associated non-lease
components as a single lease component for
all leases.

At the commencement date of a lease, the
Group, as a lessee recognises a right-of-use
asset and a lease liability, except for short-term
leases and leases of low-value assets which
are primarily laptops and office furniture. The
lease payments associated with those leases
which are not capitalised are recognised as an
expense on a systematic basis over the lease
term.

Where the lease is capitalised, the lease
liability is initially recognised at the present
value of the lease payments payable over
the lease term that are not paid at the
commencement date of the lease, discounted
using the interest rate implicit in the lease
or, if that rate cannot be readily determined,
using a relevant incremental borrowing rate.
After initial recognition, the lease liability
is measured at amortised cost and interest
expense is calculated using the effective
interest method. Variable lease payments that
do not depend on an index or rate are not
included in the measurement of the lease
liability and hence are charged to profit or loss
in the accounting period in which they are
incurred.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE BB HRRKE

For the year ended 31 December 2019 B Z_—FT—hF+-_H=1+—HIFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.13 Leases (continued)

The Group as a lessee (continued)

(i)

Policy applicable from 1 January 2019
(continued)

At the commencement date of a lease, the
lease payments included in the measurement
of the lease liability comprise the following
payments during the lease term:

—  fixed payments (including in-substance
fixed payments), less any lease incentives
receivable;

—  variable lease payment that are based
on an index or a rate, initially measured
using the index or rate as at the
commencement date;

— amounts expected to be payable by the
Group under residual value guarantees;

—  the exercise price of a purchase option
if the Group is reasonably certain to
exercise that option; and

—  payments of penalties for terminating the
lease, if the lease term reflects the Group
exercising that option.

The right-of-use asset recognised when a
lease is capitalised is initially measured at
cost, which comprises the initial amount of
the lease liability plus any lease payments
made at or before the commencement date,
and any initial direct costs incurred. Where
applicable, the cost of the right-of-use assets
also includes an estimate of costs to dismantle
and remove the underlying asset or to restore
the underlying asset or the site on which it
is located, discounted to their present value,
less any lease incentives received. The right-
of-use asset is subsequently stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses (see note 3.12) and adjusted for any
remeasurement of the lease liability.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 B Z_—FT—hF+-_H=1+—HIFE

3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.13 Leases (continued)

The Group as a lessee (continued)

(i)

(ii)

Policy applicable from 1 January 2019
(continued)

After the commencement date, lease liabilities
are adjusted by interest accretion and lease
payments.

The Group presents right-of-use assets and
lease liabilities separately in the consolidated
statement of financial position.

Policy applicable prior to 1 January 2019

Assets held under finance leases are
recognised as assets of the Group at their
fair value at the inception of the lease or, if
lower, at the present value of the minimum
lease payments. The corresponding liability
to the lessor is included in the consolidated
statement of financial position as a finance
lease obligation.

Lease payments are apportioned between
finance expenses and reduction of the lease
obligation so as to achieve a constant rate
of interest on the remaining balance of the
liability.

Finance expenses are recognised immediately
in profit or loss, unless they are directly
attributable to qualifying assets, in which case
they are capitalised in accordance with the
Group’s general policy on borrowing costs
(note 3.8). Contingent rentals are recognised
as expenses in the periods in which they are
incurred.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBRRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2019 B Z_—FT—hF+-_H=1+—HIFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FEE3HHBEHNE &)
POLICIES (continued)

3.13 Leases (continued)

3.13 E (&)

The Group as a lessee (continued)

(i) Policy applicable prior to 1 January 2019
(continued)
Operating lease payments, including the
cost of acquiring land held under operating
leases, are recognised as an expense on a
straight line basis over the lease term, except
where another systematic basis is more
representative of the time pattern in which
economic benefits from the leased asset are
consumed. Contingent rentals arising under
operating leases are recognised as an expense
in the period of which they are incurred. In
the event that lease incentives are received to
enter into operating leases, such incentives are
recognised as a liability. The aggregate benefit
of incentives is recognised as a reduction of
rental expense on a straight line basis.

The Group as a lessor

Leases for which the Group is a lessor are classified
as finance or operating leases. Whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and
rewards incidental to ownership of an underlying
asset to the lessee, the contract is classified as
a finance lease. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in
profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the term
of the relevant lease. Initial direct costs incurred in
negotiating and arranging an operating lease are
added to the carrying amount of the leased asset,
and such costs are recognised as an expense on a
straight-line basis over the lease term.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 B Z_—FT—hF+-_H=1+—HIFE

3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.14 Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are
recognised when a group entity becomes a party
to the contractual provisions of the instrument. All
regular way purchases or sales of financial assets
are recognised and derecognised on a trade date
basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases
or sales of financial assets that require delivery
of assets within the time frame established by
regulation or convention in the market place.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value except for accounts and
bills receivables and contract assets arising from
contracts with customers (that do not have
significant financing components) which are initially
measured in accordance with HKFRS 15. Transaction
costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition
or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities
(other than financial assets or financial liabilities at
fair value through profit or loss) are added to or
deducted from the fair value of the financial assets
or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial
recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable
to the acquisition of financial assets or financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset
or financial liability and of allocating interest
income and interest expense over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
and payments (including all fees and points paid
or received that form an integral part of the
effective interest rate, transaction costs and other
premiums or discounts) through the expected life
of the financial asset or financial liability, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying
amount on initial recognition.

Interest income which are derived from the Group’s
ordinary course of business are presented as other
income.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 B Z_—FT—hF+-_H=1+—HIFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FEE3HHBEHNE &)
POLICIES (continued)

3.14 Financial instruments (continued) B.142RMTITA(E)

Financial assets

Classification and measurement of financial assets
Financial assets that meet the following conditions
are subsequently measured at amortised cost:

e the financial asset is held within a business
model whose objective is to collect contractual
cash flows; and

o the contractual terms give rise on specified
dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding.

Financial assets that meet the following conditions
are subsequently measured at FVTOCI:

o the financial asset is held within a business
model whose objective is achieved by both
collecting contractual cash flows and selling;
and

e the contractual terms give rise on specified
dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding.

All other financial assets are subsequently measured
at fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL"),
except that at the date of initial recognition of a
financial asset the Group may irrevocably elect to
present subsequent changes in fair value of an
equity investment in OCl on initial recognition if
that equity investment is neither held for trading
nor contingent consideration recognised by an
acquirer in a business combination to which HKFRS
3 (revised) Business Combinations applies.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 B Z_—FT—hF+-_H=1+—HIFE

3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.14 Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Classification and measurement of financial assets

(continued)
A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

it has been acquired principally for the purpose
of selling in the near term;

on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio
of identified financial instruments that the
Group manages together and has a recent
actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

it is a derivative that is not a financial
guarantee contract of designated and effective
as a hedging instrument.

In addition, the Group may irrevocably designate a
financial asset that are required to be measured at
the amortised cost or FVTOCI as measured at FVTPL
if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an
accounting mismatch.

(i)

Amortised cost and interest income

Financial assets are recognised using the
effective interest method for financial assets
measured subsequently at amortised cost.
Interest income is calculated by applying the
effective interest rate to the gross carrying
amount of a financial asset, except for
financial assets that have subsequently become
credit-impaired. For financial assets that
have subsequently become credit-impaired,
interest income is recognised by applying the
effective interest rate to the amortised cost
of the financial asset from the next reporting
period. If the credit risk on the credit-impaired
financial instrument improves so that the
financial asset is no longer credit-impaired,
interest income is recognised by applying the
effective interest rate to the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset from the
beginning of the reporting period following
the determination that the asset is no longer
credit impaired.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBRRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2019 B Z_—FT—hF+-_H=1+—HIFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.14 Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Classification and measurement of financial assets
(continued)

(i)

Amortised cost and interest income
(continued)

Accounting policy of impairment of financial
assets measured at amortised cost is stated in
note 3.15,

Equity instruments designated as at FVTOCI

Investments in equity instruments at FVTOCI
are subsequently measured at fair value with
gains and losses arising from changes in fair
value recognised in OCl and accumulated in
the fair value reserve under other reserves;
and are not subject to impairment assessment.
The cumulative gain or loss will not be
reclassified to profit or loss on disposal of the
equity investments, and will be transferred to
retained profits.

Dividends from these investments in equity
instruments are recognised in profit or
loss when the Group’s right to receive the
dividends is established, unless the dividends
clearly represent a recovery of part of the cost
of the investment. Dividends are included in
the other income and gains in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e R WK M

For the year ended 31 December 2019 &% — =

3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.14 Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a
financial asset or part of a group of similar financial
assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e. removed from
the Group’s consolidated statement of financial
position) when:

o the rights to receive cash flows from the asset
have expired; or

e  the Group has transferred its rights to receive
cash flows from the asset or has assumed an
obligation to pay the received cash flows in full
without material delay to a third party under
a "pass-through” arrangement; and either
(a) the Group has transferred substantially all
the risks and rewards of the asset; or (b) the
Group has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the
asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive
cash flows from an asset or has entered into a
pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if and to
what extent it has retained the risk and rewards
of ownership of the asset. When it has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset nor transferred control
of the asset, the Group continues to recognise
the transferred asset to the extent of the Group’s
continuing involvement. In that case, the Group also
recognises an associated liability. The transferred
asset and the associated liability are measured on a
basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the
Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a
guarantee over the transferred asset is measured
at the lower of the original carrying amount of the
asset and the maximum amount of consideration
that the Group could be required to repay.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBRRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2019 B Z_—FT—hF+-_H=1+—HIFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FESHHEHMES)
POLICIES (continued)

3.14 Financial instruments (continued) B.142RMTITA(E)

Financial assets (continued)

Derecognition of financial assets (continued)

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at
amortised cost, the difference between the asset'’s
carrying amount and the sum of the consideration
received, receivable is recognised in profit or loss.

On derecognition of an equity investments
designated at FVTOCI, the cumulative gain or loss
will not be reclassified to profit or loss on disposal
of the equity investments, and will be transferred to
retained profits.

Financial liabilities

The Group’s financial liabilities include bank and
other loans, accounts and bills payables, other
payables, accruals and deposit received, amount
due to an associate and amounts due to and loans
from shareholders and lease liabilities.

Financial liabilities are recognised when the Group
becomes a party to the contractual provisions
of the instrument. All interest related charges
are recognised in accordance with the Group's
accounting policy for borrowing costs.

A financial liability is derecognised when the
obligation under the liability is discharged or
cancelled or expires.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2019 B Z_—FT—hF+-_H=1+—HIFE

3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.14 Financial instruments (continued)

Financial liabilities (continued)

Where an existing financial liability is replaced by
another from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability
are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as a derecognition of the
original liability and the recognition of a new
liability, and the difference in the respective carrying
amount is recognised in consolidated income
statement.

(i)

(ii)

Borrowings

Borrowings, which include bank and other
loans and loans from shareholders, are
recognised initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are
subsequently stated at amortised cost, any
difference between the proceeds (net of
transaction costs) and the redemption value is
recognised in consolidated income statement
over the period of the borrowings using
effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities
unless the Group has an unconditional right to
defer settlement of the liability for at least 12
months after the reporting date.

Accounts and bills payables, other payables,
accruals and deposit received, amount due to
an associate, amounts due to and loans from
shareholders and lease liabilities

These are recognised initially at their fair value
and subsequently measured at amortised cost,
using the effective interest method.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE BB HRRKE

For the year ended 31 December 2019 B Z_—FT—hF+-_H=1+—HIFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FEE3HHBEHNE &)
POLICIES (continued)

3.15 Impairment of financial assets

3.15 £t EERE

The Group recognises a loss allowance for ECL on
financial assets which are subject to impairment
under HKFRS 9 (including accounts and bills
receivables, contract assets, deposits and other
receivables, pledged and restricted bank deposits
and cash and cash equivalents). The amount of ECL
is updated at each reporting date to reflect changes
in credit risk since initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from
all possible default events over the expected life of
the relevant instrument. In contrast, 12-month ECL
("12m ECL") represents the portion of lifetime ECL
that is expected to result from default events that
are possible within 12 months after the reporting
date. Assessments are done based on the Group’s
historical credit loss experience, adjusted for factors
that are specific to the debtors, general economic
conditions and an assessment of both the current
conditions at the reporting date as well as the
forecast of future conditions.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for
accounts and bills receivables and contract assets
without significant financing component. The ECL
on these assets are assessed individually for debtors
with significant balances and collectively using a
provision matrix with appropriate groupings.

For all other instruments, the Group measures the
loss allowance equal to 12m ECL, unless when there
has been a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition, the Group recognises lifetime
ECL. The assessment of whether lifetime ECL should
be recognised is based on significant increases in
the likelihood or risk of a default occurring since
initial recognition.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e R WK M

For the year ended 31 December 2019 B Z_—FT—hF+-_H=1+—HIFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.15 Impairment of financial assets (continued)

(i)

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition,
the Group compares the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at
the reporting date with the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at
the date of initial recognition. In making
this assessment, the Group considers both
guantitative and qualitative information that
is reasonable and supportable, including
historical experience and forward-looking
information that is available without undue
cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken
into account when assessing whether credit
risk has increased significantly:

— an actual or expected significant
deterioration in the financial instrument’s
external (if available) or internal credit
rating;

— significant deterioration in external
market indicators of credit risk, e.g. a
significant increase in the credit spread,
the credit default swap prices for the
debtor;

—  existing or forecast adverse changes
in business, financial or economic
conditions that are expected to cause a
significant decrease in the debtor’s ability
to meet its debt obligations;

— an actual or expected significant
deterioration in the operating results of
the debtor; or

— an actual or expected significant adverse
change in the regulatory, economic, or
technological environment of the debtor
that results in a significant decrease
in the debtor’s ability to meet its debt
obligations.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBRRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2019 &( % —

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.15 Impairment of financial assets (continued)

(i)

(ii)

Significant increase in credit risk (continued)
Irrespective of the outcome of the above
assessment, the Group presumes that the
credit risk has increased significantly since
initial recognition when contractual payments
are more than 30 days past due, unless
the Group has reasonable and supportable
information that demonstrates otherwise.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness
of the criteria used to identify whether there
has been a significant increase in credit risk
and revises them as appropriate to ensure
that the criteria are capable of identifying
significant increase in credit risk before the
amount becomes past due.

Definition of default

For internal credit risk management, the Group
considers an event of default occurs when
information developed internally or obtained
from external sources indicates that the debtor
is unlikely to pay its creditors, including the
Group, in full (without taking into account any
collaterals held by the Group).

Irrespective of the above, the Group considers
that default has occurred when a financial
asset is more than 90 days past due unless
the Group has reasonable and supportable
information to demonstrate that a more
lagging default criterion is more appropriate.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2019 B Z_—FT—hF+-_H=1+—HIFE

3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.15 Impairment of financial assets (continued)

(iii)

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when
one or more events of default that have a
detrimental impact on the estimated future
cash flows of that financial asset have
occurred. Evidence that a financial asset is
credit-impaired includes observable data about
the following events:

significant financial difficulty of the issuer
or the borrower;

a breach of contract, such as a default or
past due event;

the lender(s) of the borrower, for
economic or contractual reasons relating
to the borrower’s financial difficulty,
having granted to the borrower a
concession(s) that the lender(s) would not
otherwise consider;

it is becoming probable that the
borrower will enter bankruptcy or other
financial reorganisation; or

the disappearance of an active market for
that financial asset because of financial
difficulties.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE BB HRRKE

For the year ended 31 December 2019 B Z_—FT—hF+-_H=1+—HIFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.15 Impairment of financial assets (continued)

(iv)

(v)

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when
there is information indicating that the
counterparty is in severe financial difficulty
and there is no realistic prospect of recovery,
for example, when the counterparty has
been placed under liquidation or has entered
into bankruptcy proceedings, or in the case
of accounts and bills receivables, when
the amounts are over one year past due,
whichever occurs sooner. Financial assets
written off may still be subject to enforcement
activities under the Group’s recovery
procedures, taking into account legal advice
where appropriate. A write-off constitutes
a derecognition event. Any subsequent
recoveries are recognised in profit or loss.

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the
probability of default, loss given default (i.e.
the magnitude of the loss if there is a default)
and the exposure at default. The assessment
of the probability of default and loss given
default is based on historical data adjusted
by forward-looking information. Estimation
of ECL reflects an unbiased and probability-
weighted amount that is determined with the
respective risks of default occurring as the
weights.

Generally, the ECL is the difference between
all contractual cash flows that are due to the
Group in accordance with the contract and the
cash flows that the Group expects to receive,
discounted at the effective interest rate
determined at initial recognition.
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e BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2019 B Z_—FT—hF+-_H=1+—HIFE

3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.15 Impairment of financial assets (continued)

(v)

Measurement and recognition of ECL
(continued)

Where ECL is measured on a collective
basis or cater for cases where evidence at
the individual instrument level may not yet
be available, the financial instruments are
grouped based on:

- Nature of financial instruments (i.e. the
Group's accounts and bills receivables
together with contract assets and
deposits and other receivables are each
assessed as a separate group.);

- Past-due status;

—  Nature, size and industry of debtors; and

- External credit ratings where available.

The grouping is regularly reviewed by
management to ensure the constituents of
each group continue to share similar credit risk
characteristics.

The Group recognises an impairment gain
or loss in profit or loss for all financial
instruments by adjusting their carrying
amount, with the exception of accounts and
bills receivables, contract assets and deposits
and other receivables where the corresponding
adjustment is recognised through a loss
allowance account.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE BB HRRKE

For the year ended 31 December 2019 B Z_—FT—hF+-_H=1+—HIFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FEE3HHBEHNE &)
POLICIES (continued)

3.16 Inventories 3.16 &

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Inventories comprise coal, spare
parts and consumable store for trading and own
consumption purposes. Costs of coal is determined
using weighted average basis whereas costs of spare
parts and consumables are stated at first-in, first-
out or weighted average basis as appropriate, and
in the case of work in progress and finished goods,
comprise direct materials, direct labour and an
appropriate proportion of overheads.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in
the ordinary course of business less the estimated
costs of completion and the estimated costs
necessary to make the sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of
those inventories is recognised as an expense in the
period in which the related revenue is recognised.
The amount of any write-down of inventories to
net realisable value and all losses of inventories are
recognised as an expense in the period the write-
down or loss occurs. The amount of any reversal
of any write-down of inventories is recognised as a
reduction in the amount of inventories recognised
as an expense in the period in which the reversal
occurs.

3.17 Income taxes

Income tax represents the sum of current and
deferred tax. Income tax relating to items
recognised outside profit or loss is recognised
outside profit or loss, either in OCl or directly in
equity.
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e BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2019 B Z_—FT—hF+-_H=1+—HIFE

3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.17 Income taxes (continued)

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at
the amount expected to be recovered from or paid
to the taxation authorities, based on tax rates (and
tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period, taking
into consideration interpretations and practices
prevailing in the countries in which the Group
operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method,
on all temporary differences at the end of the
reporting period between the tax bases of assets
and liabilities and their carrying amounts for
financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable
temporary differences, except:

e when the deferred tax liability arises from
the initial recognition of goodwill or an
asset or liability in a transaction that is not a
business combination and, at the time of the
transaction, affects neither the accounting
profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

o in respect of taxable temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries,
associates and joint venture, when the timing
of the reversal of the temporary differences
can be controlled and it is probable that the
temporary differences will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE BB HRRKE

For the year ended 31 December 2019 B Z_—FT—hF+-_H=1+—HIFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FEE3HHBEHNE &)
POLICIES (continued)

3.17 Income taxes (continued)

3.17 FiBH(E&)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible
temporary differences, the carryforward of unused
tax credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred
tax assets are recognised to the extent that it
is probable that taxable profits will be available
against which deductible temporary differences, the
carryforward of unused tax credits and unused tax
losses can be utilised, except:

o When the deferred tax asset relating to
the deductible temporary differences arises
from the initial recognition of an asset
or liability in a transaction that is not a
business combination and, at the time of the
transaction, affects neither the accounting
profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

o in respect of deductible temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries,
associates and joint venture, deferred tax
assets are only recognised to the extent that it
is probable that the temporary differences will
reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable
profit will be available against which the
temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is
reviewed at the end of each reporting period and
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profit will be available to
allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be
utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are
reassessed at the end of each reporting period and
are recognised to the extent that it has become
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow all or part of the deferred tax
asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated, without discounting,
at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the
period when the asset is realised or the liability is
settled, based on the tax rates (and tax laws) that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2019 B Z_—FT—hF+-_H=1+—HIFE

3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.17 Income taxes (continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when
they relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority and the Group intends to settle
its current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis.

e  When the deferred tax asset relating to
the deductible temporary differences arises
from the initial recognition of an asset
or liability in a transaction that is not a
business combination and, at the time of the
transaction, affects neither the accounting
profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

o in respect of deductible temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries,
associates and joint venture, deferred tax
assets are only recognised to the extent that it
is probable that the temporary differences will
reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable
profit will be available against which the
temporary differences can be utilised.

3.18 Employee benefits

Retirement benefit obligations

The Group operates a defined contribution
Mandatory Provident Fund retirement benefit
scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under the Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for all of its
employees in Hong Kong. Contributions are made
based on a percentage of the employees’ basic
salaries and are charged to the consolidated income
statement as they become payable in accordance
with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets of the
MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the
Group in an independently administered fund.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 B Z_—FT—hF+-_H=1+—HIFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FESHHEHMES)
POLICIES (continued)

3.18 Employee benefits (continued) .18 EEEH (&)

Retirement benefit obligations (continued)

The employees of the subsidiaries within the Group
which operate in the PRC are required to participate
in the central pension scheme operated by the local
municipal government. These PRC subsidiaries are
required to contribute a percentage of their payroll
costs to the central pension scheme as specified by
the local municipal government. The contributions
are charged to the consolidated income statement
as they become payable in accordance with the
rules of the central pension scheme.

Short-term employee benefits

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave and the
cost of non-monetary benefits are accrued in the
year in which the associated services are rendered
by employees. Where payment or settlement is
deferred and the effect would be material, these
amounts are stated at their present values.

3.19 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand
and demand deposits, and short-term highly
liquid investments which are readily convertible
into known amounts of cash, are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value, and have a
short maturity of generally within three months
when acquired.

3.20 Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental
costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares
or options are shown in equity as a deduction, net
of tax, from the proceeds.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 B Z_—FT—hF+-_H=1+—HIFE

3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.21 Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a
present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result
of a past event, and it is probable that an outflow
of economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation and a reliable estimate of the amount of
the obligation can be made. Where the time value
of money is material, provisions are stated at the
present value of the expenditure expected to settle
the obligation.

All provisions are reviewed at each reporting date
and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required, or the amount
cannot be estimated reliably, the obligation is
disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote. Possible obligations, whose existence
will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more future uncertain events
not wholly within the control of the Group are
also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote.

3.22 Segment reporting

The Group identifies operating segment and
prepares segment information based on the
regular internal financial information reported
to the executive directors of the Company (the
“Executive Directors”), being the chief operating
decision makers, for their decisions about resources
allocation to the Group's business components
and for their review of the performance of those
components. The business components in the
internal financial information reported to the
Executive Directors are determined following the
Group’s major product and service lines.

The measurement policies the Group uses for
reporting segment results under HKFRS 8 are the
same as those used in its consolidated financial
statements prepared under HKFRSs.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 B Z_—FT—hF+-_H=1+—HIFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FEE3HHBEHNE &)
POLICIES (continued)

3.23 Provision for reclamation obligations

3.23BARERRE

The Group is required to make payments for
reclamation of the land after the underground
sites have been mined. Provision for reclamation
obligation is required when the Group has a
present obligation as a result of past event, and
it is probable that the Group will be required to
settle that obligation. Provisions are measured at
the directors’ best estimation of the expenditure
required to settle the obligation at the end of the
reporting period, and are discounted to present
value where the effect is material.

3.24 Fair value measurement

A number of assets and liabilities included in the
Group’'s consolidated financial statements require
measurement at, and/or disclosure of, fair value.

The fair value measurement of the Group's
financial and non-financial assets and liabilities
utilises market observable inputs and data as far
as possible. Inputs used in determining fair value
measurements are categorised into different levels
based on how observable the inputs used in the
valuation technique utilised. The levels are defined
as follows:

Level 1: fair values measured using quoted
prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical financial instruments.

Level 2:  fair values measured using Level 2 inputs
i.e. observable inputs which fail to
meet Level 1, and not using significant
unobservable inputs. Unobservable inputs
are inputs for which market data are not
available.

Level 3: fair values measured using significant
unobservable input.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2019 EZ_—F—NWF+_-_H=1—HIFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FESHHEHMES)
POLICIES (continued)

3.24 Fair value measurement (continued) 3.24 A EFTE(E)
The classification of an item into the above levels BEEHENEERE AT EIEAEE
is based on the lowest level of the inputs used BERTEZ &EER AR -
that has a significant effect on the fair value DEE AR SRR R 2 8
measurement of the item. Transfers of items KIIE B & N E S HARTER o
between levels are recognised in the period they
occur.
For more detailed information in relation to the fair EE LB E AV ETEZEHF
value measurement of the items above, please refer MER BB -

to the applicable notes.

3.25 Related parties 3.25 BEA L
(a) A person or a close member of that person’s (@) FZBALTRFEUTEE
family is related to the Group if that person: B ZBATSEFREZ I
HENEAEEE@E
() has control or joint control over the ()  $IAREE A
Group; Sk HL R 4
(i)  has significant influence over the Group; iy BAEEESEAY
ol 27 3%
(i) is a member of key management (i) RAEEZARN T
personnel of the Group or the Company’s NAIZEEBEEBEA
parent. 8o
or 59
(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the by EBERERER /(—I—Eﬂf (s
following conditions applies: H¢ BNERR & BB &
(i) The entity and the Group are members of () EBREXNEEALAR—
the same group (which means that each EBkE BN A
parent, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is EIRL NG AEES
related to the others). B ARS8 ILAE
g -
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REMBRRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2019 B Z_—FT—hF+-_H=1+—HIFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.25 Related parties (continued)

(b)

An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions applies: (continued)

(i) One entity is an associate or joint venture
of the other entity (or an associate or
joint venture of a member of a group of
which the other entity is a member).

(iii) Both entities are joint ventures of the
same third party.

(iv) One entity is a joint venture of a third
entity and the other entity is an associate
of the third entity.

(v)  The entity is a post-employment benefit
plan for the benefit of the employees
of the Group or an entity related to the
Group.

(vi) The entity is controlled or jointly
controlled by a person identified in (a).

(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member
of key management personnel of the
entity (or of a parent of the entity).

(viii) The entity, or any member of a group
of which it is a part, provides key
management personnel services to the
Group or to the parent of the Company.

Close members of the family of a person are
those family members who may be expected
to influence, or be influenced by, that person
in their dealings with the entity.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and
are based on historical experience and other factors,
including expectations of future events that are believed
to be reasonable under the circumstances.

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning
the future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by
definition, seldom equal to the related actual results.
However, other than the judgement made by the
directors of the Company in respect of going concern
as disclosed in note 3.1 above, the estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities within the next financial year are discussed
below.

(i) Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets

Other than CIP and aluminum boundary wall moulds,
the Group depreciates property, plant and equipment
using straight-line method over the estimated useful
lives ranging between 3 to 25 years, starting from
the date on which the assets are ready for productive
use. For aluminum boundary wall moulds, the Group
depreciates over their estimated product lives. For
the right-of-use assets, the Group depreciates right-
of-use assets over the lease term determined at the
commencement date for leases. The estimated useful
lives, product lives and lease term reflect the directors’
estimate of the periods that the Group intends to
derive future economic benefits from the use of the
Group's property, plant and equipment and right-of-
use assets. The carrying amount of property, plant
and equipment, other than CIP, as at 31 December
2019 was approximately HK$188,845,000 (2018:
approximately HK$393,650,000) and the carrying
amount of right-of-use assets was approximately
HK$65,763,000 (2018: Nil). Further details are
disclosed in notes 15 and 17.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 B Z_—FT—hF+-_H=1+—HIFE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (continued)

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions
(continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Amortisation of mining rights

The Group amortises its mining rights using a
units-of-production method, utilising only proved
and probable coal reserves as the depletion
base. The estimated coal reserves and the related
future economic benefits were estimated by the
directors of the Company. Accounting policy on
mining rights is set out in note 3.10. The carrying
amount of mining rights as at 31 December
2019 was approximately HK$131,861,000 (2018:
approximately HK$293,917,000). Further details are
disclosed in note 19.

Provision of ECL for accounts and bills
receivables

The Group estimated the amounts of ECL for
accounts and bills receivables based on (i) market
borrowing rates for these debts grouped based on
their risks and characteristics, less risk-free rate;
and (i) the expected settlement dates taking into
amount for the Group's historical experience in
relation to accounts and bills receivables. The Group
also takes into account forward-looking information
that is reasonable and supportable available without
undue costs or effort. At every reporting date, the
estimated default rates are reassessed and changes
in the forward-looking information are considered.
In addition, accounts and bills receivables which are
significant and credit impaired are assessed for ECL
individually.

The provision of ECL is sensitive to changes in
estimates. The information about the ECL and the
Group’s accounts and bills receivables are disclosed
in note 45(a).

The impairment loss of accounts and bills
receivables provided during the year ended
31 December 2019 were approximately
HK$16,173,000 (2018: HK$9,156,000). Further
details are disclosed in note 45(a).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 &% — &

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (continued)

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions
(continued)

(iv) Impairment of non-financial assets

(v)

The Group assesses at each reporting date whether
there is any indication that non-financial assets with
definite lives may be impaired. If any such indication
exists, the Group estimates the recoverable amount
of the assets in accordance with the accounting
policy stated in note 3.12. In assessing whether
there is any indication that non-financial assets may
be impaired, the Group considers indications from
both internal and external sources of information
such as evidence of obsolescence or decline in
economic performance of the assets, changes in
market conditions and economic environment.
These assessments are subjective and require
management’s judgements and estimations.

During the year ended 31 December 2019,
impairment loss on property, plant and equipment
of approximately HK$995,000 (2018: approximately
HK$5,693,000) was recognised by the Group and
details of this impairment are set in notes 15 and
20.

During the year ended 31 December 2019,
impairment loss on mining rights of approximately
HK$32,926,000 (2018: approximately
HK$8,544,000) was recognised by the Group and
details of this impairment are set out in notes 19
and 20.

Provision for reclamation obligations

The provision is reviewed regularly to verify that it
properly reflects the remaining obligation arising
from current and past mining activities. Provision
for land reclamation is determined by management
based on their best estimates of the current and
future costs, latest government policies and past
experiences. The carrying amount of provision
for reclamation obligations as at 31 December
2019 was approximately HK$24,001,000 (2018:
approximately HK$100,164,000). Further details are
disclosed in note 32.

Rosan Resources Holdings Limited Annual Report 2019

—NFF+-A=+—HIFE

4. EXREFHETRAE(E)

BEAEFH A RERR (E

(iv) ¥cREEZRE

(v)

AEERSEREABPTHES
BEMPRFPEA BT FHD
FERMBEEN LS RE  WFE
AR NEEZRHE
B2FTI S E R T EER A
WE & T EEE B EMT
RERPIESHMEENLE RE
B RNEBEZEE A RINDHRIR
PN - BN E E B el B R IA
TREREE T R EIR IR
FozEFHEEEHE T
EIRE Ve AT R A o

2T —hF+_-_A=+—H
HFE AEBRIDE BE
=% 15 A0 BB 5 18 49995,0007%8
To(=ZZF—/)\F : 495,693,000/
TC) OREFFIBE R FE155%20 °

HE-_ZT—hF+-A=+—H
HEFE- ZIS%@EEWME%E’W
B E518 932,926,000/ T( =&
— J\£E : 498,544,0005 JT ) * A
BEFFIBENHIFE19%20 ©

BEERRE

BETHR  UZBEREE
BRIR R R ERBEENE A 2 57
TAEEST - LWFAEREEHRE
BEZRE AT RARRKA &K
TR BBk 88 2 e ETm
Ei-R-_FE—h&F+=A
=—t+—H HAEREAHEEZERER
B 4 /24,001,000 T( = &
— )\ : 49100,164,000/ 7T ) °
HE— B EERME32 -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBRRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2019 B Z_—FT—hF+-_H=1+—HIFE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (continued)

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions
(continued)

(v)

(vi)

Provision for reclamation obligations
(continued)

Management determined that the probability
to make payment of such liability within twelve
months after the reporting period is remote taking
into account the industry practice and the Group’s
scenario, facts and circumstances. However,
management also considered that the relevant
government authorities have the sole discretion to
request payment of such liability. As the Group does
not have unconditional right to defer settlement
of such liability for at least twelve months after
the reporting period, accordingly, the provision
for reclamation obligations is classified as current
liabilities in accordance with HKAS 1 (Revised).

Central pension scheme

Certain subsidiaries of the Group in the PRC are
required to contribute certain percentage on
their payroll costs for employees to the central
pension scheme. However, the implementation
and settlement of the contribution to the central
pension scheme varies among various Social Security
Bureaus in cities of the PRC, and the Group has not
finalised its contribution calculation and payments
with the local Social Security Bureau in the PRC.
Accordingly, significant judgement is required
in determining the amount of the contribution.
The Group recognised the contribution based on
management’s best estimates according to the
understanding of the rules of the central pension
scheme, with reference to the legal opinion received
by the Group.
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AIEVR(BET) D BRRBE

&'

PRERE S
AREEE TP B KB R RA
REBFMNETAD LT R
BARSFTEIHER A R E
W % Bt S RE IR RE
REFFE BT RAEEHFIKAE
BE - RSB AR B HHHRGE
B R A B RERPIEL A
R it BERREBAEL
EXRHE - AKEREEEERW
REMFT RE T REKRESAHER
AR EEY 2 IR AR S B R H)E
REREAHREE-
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SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group identifies operating segments and prepares
segment information based on the regular internal
financial information reported to the Executive Directors
for their decisions about resources allocation to the
Group's business components and for their review of
the performance of those components. The business
components in the internal financial information reported
to the Executive Directors are determined following the
Group's major product and service lines.

An operating segment is a component of the Group that
is engaged in business activities from which the Group
may earn revenue and incur expenses, and is identified
on the basis of the internal management reporting
information that is provided to and regularly reviewed
by the Executive Directors in order to allocate resources
and assess performance of the segment. The Executive
Directors have determined that the Group’s operating and
reportable segments under HKFRS 8 are as follows:

o Coal Business - Production and sale of coal
and trading of purchased coal

e Building Materials - Production and sale of
Business building materials and leasing
of aluminum boundary wall

moulds

During the year ended 31 December 2019, one of the
subsidiaries of the Company commenced the business of
leasing of aluminum boundary wall moulds. Information
about this strategic business unit that is not reportable in
accordance with HKFRS 8, is consolidated under “Building
Materials Business” in this year.

The measure used for reporting segment (loss)/profit is
adjusted loss before income tax. Items not specifically
attributable to individual segments, such as share of
results of associates and a joint venture, finance costs,
interest income, unallocated head office and corporate
expenses are further adjusted.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #Z

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

Segment assets include all tangible assets, prepaid land
lease payments, right-of-use assets, goodwill, mining
rights, other intangible assets and current assets with the
exception of other corporate assets. Segment liabilities
include accounts and bills payables, other payables
and accruals attributable to activities of the individual
segments, provision for reclamation obligations, lease
liabilities and deposit received.

Revenue and expenses are allocated to the operating and
reportable segments with reference to sales generated
by those segments and the expenses incurred by those
segments.

(a) Segment revenue and results

The following is an analysis of the Group's
disaggregation of revenue from contracts with
customers by the timing of revenue recognition and
results from operating and reportable segments:

REMBRRWE

—E-NF+ZA=F+—HULFE

DEER(E)
DHMEERBEMEEANEE BANL
WHRER  ERREE B8 RE
B-HMETEELRBEE HEE
RARIBERIN - DR BEBRREED
EABEEMEMNERANRERE  HM
BNRBAREFTER AEEGE
B -HEaEREEERS-

WHRTE R EZENRELZ
HEBEBR I HARFEL R
WEDE -

(a) 7 EBWE I ER
LAT?%BzHﬁZ S HERR < By R A B AR
ERAI2WA I EEE D KB
%3}5/5\,%’721451@73?)? DA

Building

Coal Materials
Business Business Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BREK B Mt

FEx TET THET

BE-Z2-NF

For the year ended
31 December 2019

Wz BRI

RK—ERE
— R ]

and disaggregated by timing of
revenue recognition

Point in time

Point over time

Segment (loss)/profit S (B8) wF

Reversal of provision for central
pension scheme

Depreciation and amortisation

Net impairment loss on financial
and contract assets

frE R
BEEA

Impairment loss on property, plant  #1% « B B K 3% 65 2 BEE 18

and equipment
Impairment loss on mining rights  #REE#E 2 B E E5 18

+-BA=+—-HILEE
Revenue from external customers R EINIER P 7 Wz R IRTER

BE R RRRE A8 B

TREERANEEZRE

274,893 225,762 500,655
- 3,881 3,881
274,893 229,643 504,536
(67,325) 984 (66,341)
22,720 1,390 24,110
(46,146) (24,150) (70,296)
(368) (18,222) (18,590)
(995) - (995)
(32,926) - (32,926)
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 B Z_—FT—hF+-_H=1+—HIFE

5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 5. DHERE)
(a) Segment revenue and results (continued) (a) oHURBREEE)
Building
Coal Materials
Business Business Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Bk 1 BMER st
TAT FET FET
For the year ended 31 BE-_T-N\E+=A
December 2018 =+—HLEE
Revenue from external customers 2R BSMIE P 2 Wiz K iR FER
and disaggregated by timing of Wizk Z B 48
revenue recognition
Point in time e S B 763,432 198,008 961,440
Segment (loss)/profit S (E1E) /A (40,364) 14,886 (25,478)
Reversal of provision for central ~ B[Efp RIBR G 518 2 B
pension scheme 23,189 1,344 24,533
Depreciation and amortisation e Y (44,649) (23,885) (68,534)
Net reversal of/(impairment loss) & ®RAKNEEZ
on financial and contract assets BE OREER)FE 2,412 (12,038) (9,626)
Impairment loss on property, plant #13 « B = & %46 2 BEEE
and equipment (5,693) - (5,693)
Impairment loss on mining rights  IRIEHE 2 & B &5 18 (8,544) - (8,544)
2019 2018
HK$'000 HK$'000
—B-hAE —E-NF
FExT FAT
Reconciliation of segment DEBEFREEHER:
profit or loss:
Reportable segment loss from REAKENSEF 2
the Group’s external customers 2w EE (66,341) (25,478)
Share of results of associates JEIEEEE R AR (1,692) (12,826)
Share of results of a joint venture [E{F— &L DEEE 23 51
Finance costs % E R (84,526) (101,514)
Interest income F B WA 53,544 2,296
Unallocated head office ROBEBERARRX
and corporate expenses (11,529) (17,422)
Loss before income tax B 1S 7% A E5 18 (110,521) (154,893)
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 B Z_—FT—hF+-_H=1+—HIFE

5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 5.

(b) Segment assets and liabilities

T HRVER(#)

(b) SBEEREME
BATS AARAE 4 R A R ) 5D 819
MAEBEEREBEHN -

The following is an analysis of the Group’'s assets
and liabilities by operating and reportable segments:

Building
Coal Materials
Business Business Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
e BMEL @Et
TAT FAT TAT
At 31 December 2019 R=-B-h&E+=A=+—8H
Segment assets THEE 168,060 344,777 512,837
Additions to non-current segment ERIERE D HEERE
assets during the year 6,806 4,015 10,821
Segment liabilities aHEE (201,073)  (200,639)  (401,712)
At 31 December 2018 R-ZE-NE+=-A=+—H
Segment assets PBEE 1,354,909 549,715 1,904,624
Additions to non-current segment FRIERB O LEERE
assets during the year 10,865 300,622 311,487
Segment liabilities TEHEE (1,215,714) (94,028)  (1,309,742)
2019 2018
HKS$'000 HK$'000
—E-AF  ZE-N\F
FExT FAT
Reconciliation of segment PHEEHR
assets:
Reportable segment assets AR E D EEE 512,837 1,904,624
Interests in associates NI X - 100,046
Interest in a joint venture RN—EEELE DR - 5,973
Financial assets at FVTOCI RO ER AR E WD
TREE - 682
Deferred tax assets REFIEE = 3,148 =
Tax recoverable A] Y [B] 7 30 8,081 9,433
Restricted bank deposits X PR HI SR 1T E R - 1,621
Cash and cash equivalents RekHFeFEEE 15,904 35,789
Unallocated corporate assets ROBEEEE 7,430 12,734
Consolidated total assets EEERE 547,400 2,070,902
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 &% — &

—NFF+-A=+—HIFE

5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 5. oZERE)
(b) Segment assets and liabilities (continued) (b) HEEREE(E)
2019 2018
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E—-hE —F-N\F
FET THT
Reconciliation of segment PEMEEHER:
liabilities:
Reportable segment liabilities AR/EDZPEE 401,712 1,309,742
Amount due to an associate i —REBEAT - 14,640
Amounts due to and loans from  JEfTIREZRIENR K BIRE E
shareholders 58,572 63,626
Bank and other loans IRIT R EMEK 147,014 840,564
Lease liabilities HEEE 665 =
Deferred tax liabilities EEFREEE - 489
Unallocated corporate liabilities KoL EEE 23,007 5,308
Consolidated total liabilities TR BREEE 630,970 2,234,369
(c) Geographical information () HEER

The Group's revenue from external customers is
all derived from the PRC and most of its non-
current assets are located in the PRC. The Company
is an investment holding company incorporated
in Bermuda, in where the Group does not have
any activities. The Group has the majority of its
operations and workforce in the PRC, and therefore,
the PRC is considered as the Group's country of
domicile for the purpose of disclosures as required
by HKFRS 8.

The geographical location of customers is based on
the location at which the services were provided or
the goods were delivered. The geographical location
of the non-current assets is based on the location of
assets.

Rosan Resources Holdings Limited Annual Report 2019
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 B Z_—FT—hF+-_H=1+—HIFE

5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 5. oZERE)
(d) Information about major customers d EBEZTEFEFz2EHR
Revenue from customers contributing over 10% of KEBRMAEEFBAIWZR BB
the total revenue of the Group. 10%HEE 7 Iz
2019 2018
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-NEF —E-N\F
FET FABTT
Customer A' ZEA 112,766 357,446
Customer B! ZFEB! 69,649 249,974
Customer C' BEC 83,138 99,375
i Revenue from Coal Business i W R B R E IR ET
6. REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME AND 6. WERHMKARBZHE
GAINS
Revenue represents the income arising from the Group’s WS IEREE T B EKE(BIE)ERE
principal activities which include (i) production and sale ERHEE  (VBAKKES © (iIEM
of coal; (ii) trading of purchased coal; (iii) production and AERBEE: RiVEERMEKBE
sale of building materials; and (iv) leasing of aluminum B)EEZIA -

boundary wall moulds.

Revenue and other income and gains recognised during FERNER WS REMITA R
the year are as follows: T
2019 2018
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-NF —E-N\F
FET FHET
Revenue from contract with BEEEMBEHREERE15RE
customers within the scope of BzEFEWs REYE
HKFRS 15, types of goods: Al :
Production and sale of coal BREENEE 205,244 324,515
Trading of purchased coal BAKKE 69,649 438,917
Production and sale of EMEEREE
building materials 225,762 198,008
500,655 961,440
Revenue from other source: REEMBRBHBA :
Rental income arising from leasing MERMEREAESE2HS
of aluminum boundary wall moulds A 3,881 -
504,536 961,440

RESFERERAT 2019558 129
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 B Z_—FT—hF+-_H=1+—HIFE

6. REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME AND 6. WEREMBAREBZEE)

GAINS (continued)

2019 2018
HK$'000 HK$'000
—B-AF  —ZE-NF
FERT FHET
Gross (loss)/profit derived from: RBEL T &IEMN
(£8) EA:
Production and sale of coal HREEREE (30,316) (4,712)
Trading of purchased coal BAKKES (693) (330)
Production and sale of building EMEENEE
materials 72,310 64,582
Leasing of aluminum boundary wall 8 & 5 %L & & & B
moulds 3,310 =
44,611 59,540
2019 2018
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-NF —ZE-N\F
FExT F&T
Other income and gains HinW ARER
Bank interest income AT B WA 53,544 2,296
Discount at inception of deposit EiRE 2 MR RE
received (note 31(c)) (KiaE31(c)) - 2,458
Government subsidies (note (a)) BT 8L (KraE(a)) 17,160 16,372
Gain on bargain purchase arising WHENB AR EHEELSZ
from acquisition of subsidiaries HEEBE W (fat40)
(note 40) - 2,629
Gain on disposal of coal production HERKEREHLEERES
capacity replacement quota (note (b))  (KfaF(b)) 16,853 5,747
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HENBRARMNSEE
(note 14(b)) (HtzE14(b)) - 62
Rental income M A 3,511 1,210
Reversal of provision for central BEPRRARSFTE BB
pension scheme 24,110 24,533
Others Hih 3,689 436
118,867 55,743
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 B Z_—FT—hF+-_H=1+—HIFE

REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME AND
GAINS (continued)

The Group has applied the practical expedient in
paragraph 121 of HKFRS 15 to its sales of coal
and building materials contracts that regarding the
performance obligation that has an original expected
duration of one year or less, the Group does not make
disclosure in accordance with paragraph 120 of HKFRS
15, that is the aggregate amount of the transaction
price allocated to the performance obligations that are
unsatisfied (or partially unsatisfied) as of the end of the
reporting period and an explanation of when the Group
expects to recongise as revenue.

Notes:

(@) The Group received unconditional subsidies from local
government during the year as recognition of the Group’s
sale of building materials which considered as the
environmental-friendly products in the PRC.

(b) The Group disposed of coal production capacity
replacement quota to a coal mining company during
the year with a cash consideration of RMB14,858,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$16,853,000)
(2018: RMB4,950,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$5,747,000)). The consideration of RMB14,858,000
(2018: RMB4,950,000) was received during the year.

Wz Rk E ARG

AEEEKEBM B REERE 155
F1I21BRMAITTRE 2T AR Y ME
HWEELRES —FAATREHAR
ZHERREEMBH  NREEYL &
RIRE BB RELERFE15585120
BEE R BEHRRSIEEHARE
T(RBDRAREIT) ZBHEEZHE
R PR RAEETBRRER WA 2 B
Z M-

izt :

(@) FR AKREESGE MR EF
{4 #8 Bh + 1 A5 B8 P A 5% B 10 R B 8
ERRRREROEM -

by FR AEER—FRERBARQ
AILERKRELREREE B
RIE A AR#14,858,0007T (HE
7 #916,853,000%8 L) (ZF— N
F: AR#4,950,0007T (HHE R
495,747,000 ) ) - REAR K
14,858,000 (=T —\F: AR
#4,950,0007T, ) B 75 A UER ©

FINANCE COSTS B 5 & B
2019 2018
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-NF —E-N\F
FET FHETT
An analysis of finance costs is as FIEERZMMAT:
follows:
Unwinding of imputed interest on K ERREERZ EEN S E B
loans from shareholders (Kt7E30(b))
(note 30(b)) 3,746 8,750
Unwinding of imputed interest on B iR ® 2 E S o
deposit received (note 31(c)) (KM1aE31(c)) 174 72
Interest expenses on lease liabilities MHE&BBEZF S X 67 -
Interests on bank and other loans BITREMERZFEMAX 60,647 60,527
Bank charges on discounted bills BB EKRER ZRITHRE
receivable 19,892 32,165
84,526 101,514
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 B Z_—FT—hF+-_H=1+—HIFE

8. LOSS BEFORE INCOME TAX 8. KRFFSBIAIEIR
Loss before income tax is arrived at after charging: BRETISTLAIES B E 0Bk -
2019 2018
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-NF —T-N\F
FET FATT
Amortisation of mining rights** PR iy~
(note 19) (K1at19) 6,464 7,805
Amortisation of other intangible Hfh P g EE
assets** (note 21) (KtaE21) 134 80
Amortisation of prepaid land lease FE A 1 b FH & R g *
payments** (note 16) (Hiat16) - 1,569
Auditor's remuneration** = ERD B & * >
— Auditor services —BZ RS 1,000 1,030
— Non-audit services — BB 965 360
Cost of inventories recognised as BRARIZ 2 FEK A
expenses? 455,368 895,813
Write-down of inventories included in 5t ATF &K A 2 17 E iR
cost of inventories 997 56
Depreciation of property, plant and ME R NEREITE
equipment* (note 15) (Ktat15) 62,048 e
Depreciation of right-of-use assets** {FHEEEFTE**
(note 17) (Ktat17) 2,845 -
Employee benefits expense (including EE®@FIM (BIEEFHI)
directors’ remuneration) (note 11) (Ktat11) 158,151 206,528
Expenses relating to short-term lease*** 45 HAFAE B RE < F Sz *** 13 -
Loss on disposals of property, plant HEYE BMELKEKEZ
and equipment, net EEFEE 70 95
Minimum lease payments under Bt BFERBAERME
operating leases on land, buildings ZRETAEIA
and office equipment*# =K &~ Ft - 1,593
Provision for reclamation obligations 5128 & R # & (H15132)
(note 32) 4,556 6,087
Research expenses R 15,778 1,963
* Depreciation of property, plant and equipment * 4950,661,0008 70 (=& — )\ &£ :
approximately HK$50,661,000 (2018: approximately #950,626,0005 Jt) ~ 11,362,000
HK$50,626,000), HK$11,362,000 (2018: approximately BT (ZF— J\F : 48,607,000/
HK$8,607,000) and HK$25,000 (2018: HK$99,000) has T) }225,00058 7T ( = B — N\ 4F : 4
been included in cost of sales, administrative expenses and 99,0008 7T) Z T EE 5 Bl ET A Y
selling and distribution expenses respectively. ERRN THASZREEERDHEE
=

** Included in administrative expenses in the consolidated ** B AGAEKRBENTHREYR-
income statement.

*** Expenses relating to short-term lease of approximately *xx 45 HATE B A B 2 B 2 4913,0000 T
HK$13,000 (2018: Nil) has been included in administrative (ZE—N\FE:8)EH R AT
expenses respectively. F e
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 B Z_—FT—hF+-_H=1+—HIFE

LOSS BEFORE INCOME TAX (continued)

i Cost of inventories included approximately
HK$173,363,000 (2018: approximately HK$221,513,000)
relating to employee benefits expense and depreciation
which amounts are also included in the respective total
amounts disclosed separately above for each of these
types of expenses.

i Amount in 2018 represents the operating lease charges
recognised over the lease terms for operating leases under
HKAS 17. Upon adoption of HKFRS 16 as disclosed in
note 2(b), the minimum lease payments under operating
lease charges (except for short-term leases) are no longer
recognised under operating expenses.

INCOME TAX CREDIT

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of Bermuda and the
British Virgin Islands (the “BVI"), the Group is not subject
to any income tax in Bermuda and the BVI (2018: Nil).

No Hong Kong Profits Tax has been provided for the year
in the consolidated financial statements as the Group has
tax losses brought forward from previous years (2018:
Nil).

Corporate income tax arising from operations in the
PRC was calculated at the statutory income tax rate of
25% (2018: 25%) of the estimated assessable profits as
determined in accordance with the relevant income tax
rules and regulations in the PRC.

8. KBRATBHAIEBEE)
8 GFERABEL RSB &I
EHREMW173,363,0008 T (=&
— J\4F : #9221,513,000& 7T) * &
BeENDAARSZSHZER
R EXEBFEENRBGESRE-

#oORZE-N\FZEREREEES
SHERE1TSRENEEAN 2 EEAR
BRZKEHEZR RERMAKE
20T E 2 BEM B HRELERF
165%1% - REHEER (RHHEER
SN BT 2 EEEN R BRELE
FIXIE T HER -

9. PSR

BRENUBRELHS([KBELH
BDMRAIRER AEBRERE
MR BE TS BAEBMERER
(Z2—N\F : #)-

ENAEEFANEFEAE 2HIA
BRI E T E SRR &
BHMBHRRELBEB(ZT—\F:
=)o

REHEAAREASHARR LR -+
BELEBEE 2 CEMFRIER
B 2 il AT R AR U A 2 VR E S
HE25%(—F—\F : 25%)xt&E -

2019 2018
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-hFE ZE-N\F
FET FHET
Current tax - PRC corporate BB IE - PR EFBH
income tax
— Current year —ARFEE 607 375
Deferred tax I 7iE B 18 K %
— Current year (note 36) —AREE (Kat36) (3.679) (2,636)
Income tax credit PG % (3.072) (2,261)
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INCOME TAX CREDIT (continued)

A reconciliation between income tax credit to loss before
income tax at applicable tax rates is as follows:

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2019 B Z_—FT—hF+-_H=1+—HIFE

FriEBiiE R (@)

P15 R G B2 Rk AT 15 B4 A B 48 1% 8
HEZEERAT

2019 2018
HK$’000 HK$'000
—B-AF  ZE-NF
FERT FATT
Loss before income tax BR PTG A AT S 18 (110,521) (154,893)
Tax on loss before income tax, RIS A AR B AR R 5t
calculated at the applicable rates in  EH TS AIEE 2 FiE
the tax jurisdictions concerned (16,511) (35,479)
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses 7~ 154 5 & 2 % 18 57 2 2,687 15,887
Tax effect of deductible temporary REEAR R INE S 1 = E NS
differences not recognised T (3,682) (537)
Tax losses not recognised RIERBIIEEE 17,776 21,731
Effect of tax reduction (note) W28 (M) (3,299) (4,046)
Utilisation of previously unrecognised f) 3 38 1F 7k #E R 74 1B 5 18
tax losses (43) (32)
Under-provision in respect of BEFERETRE
prior year - 215
Income tax credit FrigfiE ® (3,072) (2,261)

Note:

Pursuant to relevant pronouncement issued by the State
Administration of Taxation of the PRC, a subsidiary of the
Company, is eligible to reduce its assessable profit by 10%
of the revenue generated from the sales of certain building
material products, for tax reporting purpose. The list of
approved building material products is issued by the Ministry of
Finance of the PRC, the State Administration of Taxation of the
PRC and National Development and Reform Commission of the
PRC.

As the associates and the joint venture did not generate
any assessable profits during the year, no income tax
expense arising from their operations has been provided
for the year (2018: Nil). There is no share of income tax
expense attributable to associates and a joint venture
(2018: Nil).
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REMBRRWE

For the year ended 31 December 2019 B Z_—FT—hF+-_H=1+—HIFE

10. LOSS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO THE 10. AR BB ABEEBRERE

OWNERS OF THE COMPANY

The calculation of basic loss per share attributable to the RATIEE ANEMR 2 FREKRERT
owners of the Company is based on the following data: AT EIEATE -
2019 2018
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-hE ZE-N\F
FHET THET
Loss for the year attributable to the A EESREREIEB 2
owners of the Company for the AR E ABLEFEANEE
purpose of basic loss per share (99,922) (142,747)
2019 2018
Number of Number of
Shares Shares
‘000 ‘000
—2-hAE —E-NF
ROEE gry- 4=
Weighted average number of ordinary FBIAstE SR EAEE 2
shares in issue for the purpose of BEITEMREE NETH
basic loss per share 1,040,174 1,038,379
There were no dilutive potential ordinary shares during BE_ZE-NFER-_ZE—N\F+_HA
the years ended 31 December 2019 and 2018 and T HLEFETEETH L H
therefore, the amount of diluted loss per share is same as B At E ik s EaFIRE
the amount of basic loss per share. REESZEAER -

BEERERERARA 2019FF#H
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 B Z_—FT—hF+-_H=1+—HIFE

11. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE
(INCLUDING DIRECTORS’
REMUNERATION)

M. EERIRX(BREEHNE)

2019 2018
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E—-hE —T-N\F
FET FHET
Short-term benefits: RERF
Fees, salaries, allowances and other ®W& %4 ZEILREMEY
benefits in kind Al 125,230 149,252
Post-employment benefits: BB 12 12 7 -
Retirement benefit scheme ROKAEFIET B K
contributions (defined (EREHERETED)
contribution plans) 32,921 57,276
158,151 206,528

At 31 December 2019, the Group had no forfeited
contributions available to reduce its contributions to the
pension scheme in future years (2018: Nil).

Rosan Resources Holdings Limited Annual Report 2019
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBRRWE

For the year ended 31 December 2019 B Z_—FT—hF+-_H=1+—HIFE

12. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S 12. EERFETHAEMS
REMUNERATION
The emoluments paid or payable to the directors, BN EEe(BE LR
disclosed pursuant to the Listing Rules and section REBAAMEFIZE383(1)@) * (b) ()
383(1)(a), (b), () and (f) of the Hong Kong Companies ROBARA A GREEEFEEE)
Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies (Disclosure of BHIF 2L 7T T ARE )T -
Information about Benefits of Directors) Regulation, were
as follows:
Salaries,
allowances Retirement
and other benefit
benefits in scheme
Fees kind contributions Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
1D
REMEY RBAER
e Rz FHEIER A5

FET FEx FRET FET

For the year ended BEEZ-Z-NE+=H

31 December 2019 =t+—-HLEEE
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Dong Cunling BERlkEE - 1,046 - 1,046
Mr. Sun Shusheng'® BREEEE - 1,200 - 1,200
Mr. Li Xiangfei ("Mr. Li")®  FHRELE ([ZEE])S - 12 - 12
Mr. Zhang Yi R3S A - 12 - 12
Mr. Zhou Guangwen? JE & 3L 5t A8 - 300 - 300
Non-executive director FHTES
Mr. Li Chunyan TEELE 300 - - 300
Independent non-executive BIFHTESE

directors
Dr. Chen Renbao’ PRECEFEL 150 - - 150
Mr. Ma Wai Tong® BEEEAES 147 - - 147
Mr. Ma Yueyong?® FRE LA 150 - - 150

747 2,570 - 3,317

RERFERERAT 201906568 137
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e BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2019 B Z_—FT—hF+-_H=1+—HIFE

12. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S

REMUNERATION (continued)

12. EERFTETHAEME (&)

Salaries,
allowances  Retirement
and other benefit
benefits in scheme
Fees kind  contributions Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
e 2B
REMEY RN
e Ak FTEIf R Bt
TAT TAT FAT FAT
For the year ended BE-Z-N\§+=A
31 December 2018 =t+—BLFE
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Dong Cunling BFEEE = 1,042 = 1,042
Mr. Yang Hua' HGEL A = 26 = 26
Mr. Sun Shusheng'-® BRELF LS - 653 - 653
Mr. Chen Xu' BB A A - 26 - 26
Mr. Li° Z5 P S - 7 - 7
Mr. Wu Jiahong? RRR AT S 43 - 450 14 464
Mr. Zhang Yi oR 3% o A = 11 = 11
Mr. Zhou Guangwen?® JB & S % A8 - 300 - 300
Non-executive director EHITEE
Mr. Li Chunyan THRERYE 300 - - 300
Independent non-executive B FHTES
directors
Dr. Chen Renbao’ PRCEE L7 150 = = 150
Mr. Jiang Xiaohui? R 69 = = 69
Mr. Ma Wai Tong® BEE K AES 45 - - 45
Mr. Ma Yueyong? BB 5B S e 150 - - 150
714 2,515 14 3,243

! Mr. Yang Hua and Mr. Chen Xu resigned as Executive

Directors with effect from 8 February 2018. Mr. Yang Hua
remained as the chief executive of the Company until 31
December 2018. Mr. Sun Shusheng was appointed as the
chief executive of the Company with effect from 1 January
2019.

Mr. Jiang Xiaohui resigned as an independent non-
executive director of the Company with effect from 15
June 2018.

Mr. Wu Jiahong resigned as an Executive Director with
effect from 14 September 2018.

Mr. Zhang Yi was appointed as an Executive Director with
effect from 8 February 2018.

Mr. Li and Mr. Sun Shusheng were appointed as Executive
Directors with effect from 15 June 2018.

Rosan Resources Holdings Limited Annual Report 2019
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBRRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2019 B Z_—FT—hF+-_H=1+—HIFE

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
REMUNERATION (continued)

g Mr. Ma Wai Tong was appointed and resigned as an
independent non-executive director of the Company with
effect from 14 September 2018 and 24 December 2019
respectively.

U Dr. Chen Renbao resigned as an independent non-
executive director of the Company with effect from 1
January 2020.

& Mr. Zhou Guangwen and Mr. Ma Yueyong resigned as
an Executive Director and an independent non-executive
director of the Company respectively, with effect from 1
April 2020

During the year, no emoluments were paid by the Group
to the directors or chief executive of the Company as
an inducement to join or upon joining the Group, or as
compensation for loss of office (2018: Nil).

During the year, no share options were granted to the
directors or chief executive of the Company in respect of
their services to the Group (2018: Nil).

There was no arrangement under which a director or
chief executive of the Company waived or agreed to
waive any remuneration during the year (2018: Nil).

FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT EMOLUMENTS

The five individuals whose emoluments were the
highest in the Group for the year included two (2018:
three) directors of the Company whose emoluments
are reflected in the analysis presented in note 12. The
emoluments paid or payable to the remaining three
(2018: two) individuals, during the year were as follows:

12.

13.

EERFETBRAEME @)

2 EREEAERN T N\FLA+HT
Ak—ZE—NEF+-_A=-+WmAH
FIEZ T A REEARD R B M IEH
TES-

7 RCEMETRN T -_TF—HF—H
BIARR B IEMITES-

8 FEXEERERBELEEN T

ZTEMNA—BARIBEAR RN
EERBYFATES-

FR AKRERESTARREEH
EBTBRABEAMMESESMARSE
B A FEMAR B 2 BRI X
Bz mE(—T—N\F : &)

FR TERARTESZTHTIETH
A B AR B IR IR MR B
(Z2—N\F : #E)-

FR WEITIEMNEEARFNES
HEBITRABREXRENELM
e LB (ZT—N\F : &)

IEBERHFALTREREERE
<=

FR AEBRAERSHFALEEM
Z(ZEB-N\F: ZR)KARFESE
REZMESERHIFE1225 20T R
Re FRENKENBHT=R(=F
—N\F:mE)ALTHMEIT

2019 2018
HK$'000 HK$'000
e = S\
FH T F#& T

Salaries, allowances and e R REMEYH S
other benefits in kind 2,409 2,518

Retirement benefit scheme RIREFET SR

contributions 46 36
2,455 2,554

BMEERZERERAR 2019FFH
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e BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2019 B Z_—FT—hF+-_H=1+—HIFE

13. FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS AND 13. IEEEFALIREREERE
SENIOR MANAGEMENT EMOLUMENTS [0 EACED)
(continued)
The emoluments paid or payable to the remaining three EffENBT =82 —\F:
(2018: two) individuals with the highest emoluments ME) RS FATZHMENF U TE
were within the following bands: :
2019 2018
No. of No. of
individuals individuals
—B-AF  ZE-NF
A" A B
Emolument band B & &5 [
Nil — HK$1,000,000 £ 21,000,000/ 7T 2 1
HK$1,000,001 — HK$1,500,000 1,000,001% 75 21,500,000 7T 1 =
HK$2,000,001 — HK$2,500,000 2,000,001/ 7T £2,500,000/% 7T - 1
During the year, no emoluments were paid by the Group FA -AEBEVTENRAERSHFAL
to the five highest paid individuals as an inducement to XNERMESERMAREE KBS
join or upon joining the Group, or as compensation for MAREE R 2 2Bk I8 KRB AL 2 #
loss of office (2018: Nil). B(ZE—N\F: &)
During the year, no share options were granted to the FRN WTEAAEZSHFALIREE
five highest paid individuals in respect of their services to ERMEREMKLEERE(ZZE—N
the Group (2018: Nil). F |
The emoluments paid or payable to members of senior EfENEREIREEBKRE 2N
management were within the following bands: FLATEE -
2019 2018
No. of No. of
individuals individuals
—E-hEF —ET-)N\F
A" A
Emolument band B <& %5 [
Nil — HK$1,000,000 £ 21,000,000/ 7T 7 12
HK$1,000,001 — HK$1,500,000 1,000,001% 75 21,500,000/ 7T 3 1
HK$2,000,001 — HK$2,500,000 2,000,001/ 7T 2£2,500,000/%5 7T - 1
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBRRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2019 B Z_—FT—hF+-_H=1+—HIFE

14. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

As at 31 December 2019 and 2018, the Company had
direct and indirect interests in the following subsidiaries,
which principally affected the results, assets or liabilities

of the Group:

14. RMB AR ZRE

RZB-NFR-_F-NF+=HA
=t+—8 ARERATHBRRE
BXEREREB XE EENEA

BZEERKEZEES -

Percentage of

ownership interest Place of
Place of Issued and held by the operation
incorporation and paid up Company and principal
Name type of legal entity capital as at 31 December activities
KARFEHEEA
TR B 4 B R BRTR BZADL RewHER
2% EREREY BERRA R+=A=+-H TERH
2019 2018
—E-hE ZE-N\E
% %
Directly held
HEERE
(1) CIL (note (a)) BVI, limited liability company United States - 100 Investment holding in
Dollars (“US$") the PRC
200
CIL (#at(a)) RERAHS AREAAR 200% 7T R EREREER
) Bermusa Limited BVI, limited liability company US$1 100 100 Management service
in Hong Kong
Bermusa Limited RREAHE AREMELA (E REBREEERB
3) Goal Getter Ventures Limited BVI, limited liability company US$50,000 100 100 Investment holding in
("Goal Getter”) (note 40) the PRC
FEARERRAA ([FE]) EBRAHE ERALAR 50,000t RPERERERK

(HaE40)

BMEERZERERAR 2019FFH
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e BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2019 B Z_—FT—hF+-_H=1+—HIFE

14. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Percentage of

14. RMB AR ZRE (&)

ownership interest Place of
Place of Issued and held by the operation
incorporation and paid up Company and principal
Name type of legal entity capital as at 31 December activities
UNCIESE 2o DN
1A B A 4 B R BRTR EEEAL KEBER
a8 rEERER BRRE R+=ZA=+-8H TRER
2019 2018
“E-RE 2N\
% %
Indirectly held
BEEE
(4) Popular Sky Coal Industrial Limited ~ Hong Kong, limited liability HK$1 100 100 Investment holding in
company the PRC
EREEBERRA B BEREMERA 17T NP EREREER
(5) Hong Kong Zhongyuan Energy Co., Hong Kong, limited liability HK$1 100 100 Investment holding in
Limited company the PRC
P RERERAR BB BEREALA BT RRBERERERK
(6) Hong Kong Zhongzhou Energy Co., Hong Kong, limited liability HK$1 100 100 Investment holding in
Limited company the PRC
EEDMERBR AR & BEREMERA 17T R B EREER
@) Highlink Investments Limited BVI, limited liability company Us$1 100 100 Investment holding in
Hong Kong
Highlink Investments Limited EBRUHE BREELA (E REBREREER
(8)  Alive Investments Limited BVI, limited liability company Us$1 100 100 Investment holding in
Hong Kong
Alive Investments Limited RBRAEE AREMLDA (E REBRERERR
9) Yopland Limited BVI, limited liability company Us$1 100 100 Investment holding in
Hong Kong
Yopland Limited ABRAEE FREMLRA (E REBREREER
(10)  Dynamic Energy Development PRC, wholly foreign-owned HK$20,000,000 100 100 Investment holding in
(Shenzhen) Company Limited* limited liability company the PRC
(“Dynamic Energy”)
AEARRE (RY)AERLDA HE NEBERRAA 20,000,000/ 7T R EREREER
=20
(11)  Beijing Zhongyue Heneng PRC, wholly foreign-owned HK$160,000,000 - 100 Investment holding in
Technology Company Limited* limited liability company the PRC
("Zhongyue Heneng")
(note (a))
ERPEMRERBBRAE PR SMEEEAERAR 160,000,000 70 R B ERERR

142
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REMBRRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2019 B Z_—FT—hF+-_H=1+—HIFE

14. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 14. AMIBARIZERE (&)

Percentage of

ownership interest Place of
Place of Issued and held by the operation
incorporation and paid up Company and principal

Name type of legal entity capital as at 31 December activities

ARRFEHEEA
TR 4 B R BRTR EEEDML ReEwHR
a8 EEERERY BRRE RT=A=+-8H TEXH
2019 2018
—E-hE ZE-N\F
% %

Indirectly held

BEEs

(12)  Jinfeng (note (a)) PRC, limited liability company ~ RMB118,000,000 - 90  Production and sale of

coal in the PRC
©% (K@) mE BREEAF AR 118,000,000 NP BEREREREER
HE

(13)  Shenzhen Zhongzhou Energy PRC, limited liability company ~ RMB10,000,000 - 90  Investment holding in

Company Limited* (note (a)) the PRC
YT MNEERER R A (Hat@) P FREERR AR 10,000,000 RPBEREREER

(14)  Xingyun Coal Industry Company PRC, limited liability company ~ RMB60,000,000 - 90  Production and sale of
Limited* (“Xingyun") (note (a)) coal in
BHMEEREBEREEANA e FREEAF AR 60,000,000 RRBERERREER

([RE]) (M) HE
(15)  Xiangyang (note (a)) PRC, limited liability company ~ RMB50,000,000 90 90  Production and sale of
coal in the PRC
mF (Hizt ) HE BREAAA AR #50,000,0007 R RRREER
HE

(16)  Zhengzhou Huirui Shangmo PRC, limited liability company ~ RMB125,000,000 - 96  Trading of purchased
Company Limited® (“Huirui") coal
(note (a))

BIEREEERAR B HEREEAR AE#125,000,0007T BAEKES
(M8%]) (M)

(17)  Henan Zhongyuan Jiuan Foundation PRC, sino-foreign equity joint ~ RMB272,387,000 100 100 Investment holding in
& Investment Co., Ltd.* venture the PRC
("Zhongyuan Jiuan")

AERRARAZREBERLA  TE-PHRELE AR #272,387,0007 R B ERERR
(TmRAZ])

(18)  Beijing Kaisheng Guanhua PRC, sino-foreign equity joint ~ RMB80,000,000 - 91  Project investment,
Investment Company Limited* venture asset management
(“Kaisheng") (note (a)) and consultation of

investment in the
PRC
ERIBREERERRA HE A ERE AK%80,000,0007T NG ESEEER G
([EN&]) (M) BEEBRREHA
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e BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2019 B Z_—FT—hF+-_H=1+—HIFE

14. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Percentage of

14. AMB AR ZRE (&)

ownership interest Place of
Place of Issued and held by the operation
incorporation and paid up Company and principal
Name type of legal entity capital as at 31 December activities
UNCIESE 2o DN
1A B A 4 B R BRTR EEEDM ReEwHR
a8 EEERERY BRRE R+=A=+-H TRER
2019 2018
“E-AE Z2-)\F
% %
Indirectly held
BEEE
(19)  Winkin Construction Materials Hong Kong, limited liability HK$10,000 100 100 Investment holding in
Company Limited company the PRC
RERMER AR B BEREMERA 10,000/ 7T RABEREREER
(200 Rong Jian (Shenzhen) Consulting  PRC, wholly foreign-owned US$500,000 100 100 Investment holding in
Company Limited* limited liability company the PRC
R ORI BEABRAR mE NEEERRAA 500,000% 7T RRERERERK
(21)  Zhengzhou Shen Zhi Rong PRC, limited liability company RMB2,000,000 100 100 Investment holding in
Construction Materials Company the PRC
Limited*
BNRZ REVBRAR e AREEAF AR #2,000,0007C R EREREER
(22)  Henan Xingan New Construction ~ PRC, limited liability company ~ RMB20,000,000 51 51 Production and sale of
Material Company Limited* building material in
("Xingan") the PRC
ARRRHAEEMKRERAF  PE FREERR AR #20,000,000 NSl E =y 2o
(TRZ]) T ERHEE
(23)  Zhengzhou Tairun Aluminum Mould PRC, limited liability company RMB 10,300,000 60 60  Production and
Technology Company Limited* (2018: leasing of aluminum
("Tairun") RMB10,000,000) boundary wall
moulds in the PRC
BMFERERRERAA e AREEAF N A B SRR E R
(I=®]) 10,300,0007T BEEREE
(ZB-N\%F:
AR
10,000,0007C )
# For identification purpose only o EHBR
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RE BB HRRKE

For the year ended 31 December 2019 B Z_—FT—hF+-_H=1+—HIFE

14. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Notes:

(a)

During the year ended 31 December 2019, before the
Group disposed of its entire equity interest in CIL, the
Group underwent the reorganisation to rationalise the
Group’s structure in preparation for the disposal. The
reorganisation involved the followings:

(i) Jinfeng, an indirect subsidiary of CIL, transferred
its 90% equity interest in Xiangyang to Dynamic
Energy, an indirect subsidiary of the Company that
remains in the Group. Subsequent to such transfer,
Xiangyang ceased to be an indirect subsidiary of CIL
and remains in the Group after the disposal; and

(i) Zhongyuan Jiuan, an indirect subsidiary of the
Company, transferred its 96% equity interest in
Huirui to Zhongyue Heneng, an indirect subsidiary
of CIL. Subsequent to such transfer, Huirui became
an indirect subsidiary of CIL and was disposed of
together with CIL.

For details of the reorganisation, please refer to the
announcement of the Company dated 3 May 2019 and
the circular of the Company dated 25 November 2019.

The reorganisation is merely a reorganisation of the
business of the Group with no change in management
and the owners of the business remain substantially the
same. As such, there is no financial impact on the Group's
consolidated financial statements.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group
disposed of its entire equity interest in CIL and its
subsidiaries after the above mentioned reorganisation
(the "CIL Group"”) which is principally engaged in
production and sale of coal and trading of purchased coal
in the PRC, for a consideration of US$200 (equivalent to
approximately HK$2,000) to Right Success Investments
Limited, a limited liability company incorporated in
the BVI, and wholly-owned and controlled by Mr. Bao
Hongkai (“Mr. Bao"”), a substantial shareholder of the
Company, who is interested in approximately 23.27% of
the issued share capital of the Company as at the date of
disposal. He was also appointed as an Executive Director
subsequent to the year-end date. The disposal was
completed on 30 December 2019, since then, the Group
has no equity interest in and control over the CIL Group.
Please refer to note 41 for details.

14. AMB AR ZRE (&)

Hizt -

(a)

BHE-_Z-NAF+ZA=+—8HL
FE RASBLHEERCALZEH
R AEELEEARAEBETE
HMUBIEAREE BE-FEHI K
IIESEE

i)y L CIzEEMBRAR)RM
AHER(NBRAEE X
ARz EEHBAR) EEHE
R RIS 2 90% A% HE - BErZ 3 5%
2% ABTEACILE EE
MEBAR  BRHEZENE
RAEE: &

(i) FRAZ (KRR ZMEEW
BAR) P EMEE (CILZH
EHEAR) BEEENERZ
96% Mk 1 - BEZ HE R 2 18 - 1B
I BCILZ K B A R
BERCL—HEE-

EHEAZFHE H2EARAAR
HA-—ET-NFRA=ZAZRAER
AABBHMAE-Z—HE+— A
—t+RAZEBH-

BREAAEELS BE R
BitmEHE LKL WA ARKR
B o e SRR E Y R A B
FERLEMAGLE-

BE_ZT-AFt_HA=t+—HL
FEAEER LA SHEBHER
MREER B EEREERH
EUREBERXRE S ZCILLHK
BAR ([CLEBE])Zz 25 BET
Right Success Investments Limited
(— A 70 3R /&8 B & &F & R AK 32 9
BRAR BAAGEERE B
gEE([BEE)2EHER RIE
H-RHE RS EERER
Bl#2327%E BITRATHEE
HoRMERFEBREZERH
TEE) KRER200ET (HER
#492,00087L) M- —NF+ =
A=+HZEXRLE Bt REER
CILE= [ N7 8 1 (A P A I 428 Wl e o 5
B 2R 41 -
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 B Z_—FT—hF+-_H=1+—HIFE

14. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(b)

(0

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group
disposed of its entire equity interest in Rosan Clean Energy
Development Company Limited (“Rosan Clean Energy”),
a 51% directly owned subsidiary and an investment
holding company, for a consideration of approximately
HK$5,000 to an independent third party. The disposal
was completed on 26 November 2018, since then, the
Group has no equity interest in and control over Rosan
Clean Energy. Gain on disposal of this subsidiary of
approximately HK$62,000 was recognised as other income
and gains in the consolidated income statement (note 6).

During the year ended 31 December 2019, a non-
controlling shareholder of Tairun injected RMB300,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$335,000) (2018:
RMB4,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$4,757,000)) to Tairun.

Rosan Resources Holdings Limited Annual Report 2019

14. RMB AR ZRE (&)
BisE: (4)
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HERZZE—\F+—HA=+7"H
TR Bt AEBEREEREER
WA AT HEZME R
A Z 1525 4962,000/8 T E R 4R & I
mRERABEMIRA RS (K E
6) °
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REMBRRWE

For the year ended 31 December 2019 B Z_—FT—hF+-_H=1+—HIFE

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15. W% BEKRE
Furniture,
Mining ~ fixtures and
Buildings related  equipment
and Plant  machinery and Aluminium
mining and and leasehold Motor  houndary
structures  machineries  equipment improvement vehicles  wall moulds ap Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
-
EE RB
BFRER REEER REENX Fib

BEY HEREE HERRR £ nE  ERER  ARIE &t
THL TERL THL TEL TEL TER TEL TER

Year ended 31 December 2018 HZ=F-\f

TZAZT-ALEE

Opening net carrying amount HRERE 197,003 5,504 33,840 2,69 - - - 239,133
Additions RE 335 7532 5,660 79 473 - 14,867 32,613
Additions through acquisition of ~ EBNEKBATFE

subsidiaries (note 40) (Frt40) 108,289 86,669 - 43 2670 = 9329 207,400
Transfer in/{out) &)/ (84) 12,59 9,035 - - - - (21,631) -
Disposal He - - - - (150) - = (150)
Impairment loss (note 20) REBE (M0 (4,193) (790) (665) (12) (33) = - (5,693)
Depreciation bif (31,525) (13.442) (13,301) (529) (535) - - (59,332)
Exchange realignment EiHAE (12.916) (3,183) (1419 (163) (75) = (28) (17,784)
Closing net carrying amount EREMFE 272,606 91,415 2115 3,164 2,350 - 2531 396,187
As at 31 December 2018 R-E-NE+-B=1-H
Cost A 634,745 126,964 201,609 12,287 24,354 - 2537 1,00249
Accumulated depreciation ZithE (167,963) (30535)  (128316) (7,233) 21,663) = - (355,710)
Accumulated impairment loss ZirREEE (194,176) (5,014) (49,178) (1,890) (341) - - (250,599)
Net carrying amount BEFE 272,606 91415 24115 3,164 2350 - 2537 396,187
Year ended 31 December 2019 HZ=F-hE

TZRZT-ALEE

Opening net carrying amount ENREEE 272,606 91,415 2,115 3,164 2,350 - 2,537 396,187
Additions hE 1,146 2313 3,704 m 762 - 1923 10,080
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 1) HEMBRA (Hfzt41) (141,303) (252) (11.811) @) (1,619) - - (154,988)
Transfer in/fout) g)/(81) 136 3,584 - - - - (3,720) -
Transfer in from inventories AEEEA - - - - - 1812 - 1812
Disposal e - - - - (41) - - (241)
Impairment loss (note 20) HEBE (Wit) (847) @ (145) - (1) - - (995)
Depreciation it (33.818) (12,817) (13,956) (359) (533) (565) - (62,048)
Exchange realignment EXAE (4,170) (1,425) (537) (1) (49) (100) ©) (6,290)
Closing net carrying amount ~ FREAFE 93,750 82,876 1370 2973 669 7,207 3 189,577
As at 31 December 2019 RZB-AE+=A=t-H
Cost A 370,639 106,837 70575 11,808 1311 1763 m 569,665
Accumulated depreciation ESEil (102,908) (21,940) (51,820) (6,990) (294) (556) - (184,508)
Accumulated impairment loss ZiTRESE (173,981) (2.021) (17,385) (1,845) (348) - - (195,580)
Net carrying amount REFE 93,750 82,876 1370 2973 669 7,207 732 189,577
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15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(continued)

Provision for impairment of approximately HK$995,000
(2018: approximately HK$5,693,000) has been made
during the year for those property, plant and equipment
within the Coal Production CGU (note 20).

At 31 December 2018, the Group entered into 1-year
and 3-year agreements with two different financing
companies, independent third parties, to transfer the
ownership of certain property, plant and equipment
with aggregate net carrying amount of approximately
HK$64,639,000, and lease back the respective property,
plant and equipment to the Group for 1 to 3 years.
Despite the agreements involve a legal form of leases,
the Group accounted for the agreements as collateralised
loan according with the actual substance of such
agreements. Thus, as at 31 December 2018, property,
plant and equipment with aggregate net carrying amount
of approximately HK$64,639,000 was considered to
be pledged to secure other loans (note 34(b)). On 25
and 26 June 2019, other loan regarding to the 1-year
agreements with the financing company was fully settled.
On 30 December 2019, the Group disposed of certain
subsidiaries together with other loan regarding to the
3-year agreement with the financing company. As of
31 December 2019, there is no property, plant and
equipment was considered to be pledged to secure other
loans (note 34(b)).

The Group does not have the title certificates for certain
items of buildings with an aggregate net carrying amount
of approximately HK$71,448,000 (2018: approximately
HK$105,544,000) as at 31 December 2019. With
reference to the legal opinion received by the Group,
the directors of the Company are of the opinion that
the Group is entitled to lawfully and validly occupy and
use the above mentioned properties and therefore the
aforesaid matter does not affect the ownership rights of
the Group over these assets and hence did not have any
significant impact on the Group's consolidated financial
position as at 31 December 2019.

One of the subsidiaries of the Company entered into
a rental agreement with an independent third party to
lease certain of its property, plant and equipment with
net carrying amount of approximately HK$17,672,000
(2018: HK$19,941,000) and leasehold land for a lease
term of 10 years. As the insignificant portion of the
leasehold land and building leased out could not be
sold separately and significant remaining portion is held
for use in production, the respective leasehold land and
building are classified and recognised as right-of-use
assets (2018: prepaid land lease payment), and building
and plant and machineries under property, plant and
equipment, respectively.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 B Z_—FT—hF+-_H=1+—HIFE

16. PREPAID LAND LEASE PAYMENTS

16. LA EFKIE

HK$'000
FHET
Cost 24N
At 1 January 2018 RZZF—-NF—H—AH -
Additions through acquisition of subsidiaries & @K EH B R FRE (HfiF40)

(note 40) 71,530
Exchange realignment bE i E B (2,321)
At 31 December 2018 R-_E—-—NE+=—_B=+—8H 69,209
Impact on initial application of HKFRS 16 IR E AV B mELERE 1655

(note 2(b)) 22 (M) (69,209)

At 1 January 2019 and 31 December 2019

Accumulated amortisation
At 1 January 2018
Amortisation for the year
Exchange realignment

At 31 December 2018
Impact on initial application of HKFRS 16
(note 2(b))

At 1 January 2019 and 31 December 2019

Net carrying amount
At 31 December 2018

At 31 December 2019

R-ZE—-hF—-—HA—HBK
—E-hF+=-A=+-—H

REt#E
R-ZT—-—N\F—H—H
F N
BEE 3 9 B

R-ZZE-N\Ft+-_A=+—~H
VIR M BB MR E LA FE 1657
& (Kfat2(b))

R-B-hE-A—HR
—2-AfE+=A=+-8

AR EFE
R-_TE—NF+-_A=+—H

R-Z-h&+-A=+—~H

1,569
(63)

1,506

(1,506)

67,703

2018
HK$'000
—T)N\F
THET

Current portion
Non-current portion

5 3

TT
=
& oy

1,506
66,197

67,703
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 B Z_—FT—hF+-_H=1+—HIFE

16. PREPAID LAND LEASE PAYMENTS

17.

(continued)

The balance represented the amount paid to the PRC
government authorities for the land use rights of lands
situated in the PRC, which are amortised on the straight—

line basis over the lease periods of 50 years.

As at 31 December 2018, the land use rights of the
Group with net carrying amount of approximately
HK$67,703,000 have been pledged for the bank loans

(note 34).

Upon the adoption of HKFRS 16, an opening adjustment
as at 1 January 2019 was made to reclassify prepaid land
lease payments to right-of-use assets (note 2(b)).

RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS

16. FE{ L HFEERE (&)

AL REERTE AL R B A 3 2
FA#E R [A) o B B 4% R S < RO K08 -
RE0FHHNIZEAREHEH -

R—ZFE—NE+_A=+—H K&
[ BR T SR {E 4967,703,00078 T B 1 4
FRAEE BN IRITER(MIFE34)-

KRR BB B RE LR FE16571K -
R-ZE—NF—A—AELHTH
B PAR TR LA

ERREBH IR

AEREEE(ME2(b))°

17. EREEE

HK$'000
FHET
Cost 24N
At 1 January 2018 and 31 December 2018 RZZE-—NEF-—HA—BK
—E-NF+ZA=+—H =
Impact on initial application of HKFRS 16 WA FE FB B /8 BT i s &5 ZE B 55 1653
(note 2(b)) T8 (Krat2b)) 68,912
At 1 January 2019 R-ZZE—-hF—H—AH 68,912
Addition for the year FARE 864
Exchange realignment PE 7 E B (1,194)
At 31 December 2019 R=ZB-hE+=-A=+-—H 68,582

Accumulated depreciation
At 1 January 2018, 31 December 2018 and
1 January 2019

Depreciation for the year
Exchange realignment

At 31 December 2019

Net carrying amount
At 31 December 2018

At 31 December 2019
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17. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (continued)

17. ERBEE#)

31 December 1 January 31 December

2019 2019 2018

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

—B-hE —T-NE —B-N\F

+=A=+-H —A—B +=-—RA=+—8

TERT FET FTET

Leasehold land in the PRC RABEHEE Lt 65,112 67,703 =
Leased properties MEWME 587 1,126 =
Leased office equipment HERRNEHRME 64 83 -
65,763 68,912 -

Upon the initial application of HKFRS 16 as at 1 January

2019, operating lease

commitments related to leased,

properties and leased office equipment were remeasured

and recognised as ad

justments to right-of-use assets

and prepaid land lease payments were reclassified as

adjustments to right-of
application (note 2(b)).

-use assets as at the date of initial

As at 31 December 2019, the right-of-use assets of
the Group with net carrying amount of approximately
HK$65,112,000 have been pledged for bank loans (note

34).

R-ZZE-NE-A—BVIFEREL
MBRELERFI6RE  BHEYE
LEERNERBABNOKEHER
EEHTE IRAEAEEEAE
KRR B R TRN Lt HE
REHFDBREREEEFRE(ME
2(b))-

R-E—hE+-_A=+—H0 &&
B8R %8 4965, 112,0005 T Y {8
HEED TIEM WESRITER(M
£¥34)
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 B Z_—FT—hF+-_H=1+—HIFE

18. GOODWILL 18. &
The net carrying amount of goodwill can be analysed as EEERMFER DWW T ¢
follows:
2019 2018
HKS$'000 HK$'000
—E-hEF —E-N\F
FET FET
Cost 2N
At 1 January m—HA—H 246,227 259,690
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 41) LEKB AR (HEd41) (241,929) —
Exchange realignment PE W A2 (4,298) (13,463)
At 31 December R+-—HA=+—H - 246,227
Accumulated impairment loss A HEER
At 1 January n—H—H (246,227) (259,690)
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 41) HEKB AR (KMaEd1) 241,929 -
Exchange realignment bE W A2 4,298 13,463
At 31 December R+-_HA=+—H - (246,227)
Net carrying amount BREFRE - -

Goodwill arising in prior years related to the acquisitions
of CIL and its subsidiaries for the Coal Production CGU
and Huirui for the CGU of trading of purchased coal,
respectively. Goodwill arise from these acquisitions
have been fully impaired in the previous years and the
differences between the years solely represents the
realignment of exchange differences. On 30 December
2019, the goodwill arising in prior years was disposed of
during the disposal of the CIL Group.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 &=

REMBRRHE

—E-NFT_A=1+—HIEFE

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had 5 coal mining

rights in Dengfeng City, Zhengzhou, the PRC. Amongst
these mining rights, one coal mine and the related
property, plant and equipment, Xiaohe Coal Mine No.
2, had been fully impaired and the Group has decided
to close permanently in prior year. During the year
ended 31 December 2018, the Group had not applied
to renew Xiaohe Coal Mine No. 3, one of its coal mining
rights, since the expiry date, taken into account that its
productivity is low and scale is small, full impairment
was recognised on coal mining rights and the related
property, plant and equipment of Xiaohe Coal Mine No. 3
and the Group had decided to close permanently.

19. MINING RIGHTS 19. BRIERE
2019 2018
HK$'000 HK$'000
—ZE-RAFE ZZE-N\F
FET FHET
Cost AR
At 1 January w—H—H 672,998 709,796
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 41) HEWB R (Kat41) (187,029) -
Exchange realignment BEE 3 o 2K (11,745) (36,798)
At 31 December N+—B=+—H 474,224 672,998
Accumulated amortisation EitEy
At 1 January R—H—H (130,775) (130,026)
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 41) LEWB AR (HaF41) 68,950 -
Amortisation for the year F N H (6,464) (7,805)
Exchange realignment PE 5, 38 =& 2,371 7,056
At 31 December Nt+=—B=+—H (65,918) (130,775)
Accumulated impairment loss ZitRERE
At 1 January n—H—H (248,306) (253,235)
Impairment loss for the year (note 20) 4 MR EEIE (H17£20) (32,926) (8,544)
Exchange realignment PE 55, 5 B 4,787 13,473
At 31 December R+=—A=+—H (276,445) (248,306)
Net carrying amount BREFE 131,861 293,917

RZBE—NEFE+_A=+—H K&
B 72 R B BB B T A STE R HE 3%

TS —ERERAREDE -
R K A — R T AR EURE

AAREBRNEFREKABRA -BE

- \F+_A=+—HILFE "
Hep —HR R RIERE /A =752 3
B AEBEARPFEY - ENHLE
BERAR  RR/ BNV =R
KRR RARRE Y X - B MR e FE
RBBRERAEE DR E AR -
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19. MINING RIGHTS (continued)

On 30 December 2019, the Group has disposed of
certain subsidiaries as well as the ownership of the coal
mining rights, held by Jinfeng and Xingyun. As of 31
December 2019, the Group has one coal mining right
remained in Dengfeng City held by Xiangyang.

The remaining coal mining right will expire in June 2029.
In the opinion of the directors of the Company, with
reference to the legal opinion received by the Group,
there should be no legal barrier for the Group to renew
such coal mining right and that renewal can be obtained
for indefinite times period at minimal cost.

For the year ended 31 December 2019, provision
for impairment of coal mining right amounting to
approximately HK$32,926,000 (2018: approximately
HK$8,544,000) has been made by the Group's
management in respect of the only one coal mining right
held by the Group as at 31 December 2019. Particulars
of impairment testing of mining rights are set out in note
20.

As at 31 December 2018, coal mining rights with net
carrying amount of approximately HK$293,917,000
have been pledged to banks to secure the Group’s bank
loans as included in the asset-backed financing (note
34). During the year ended 31 December 2019, the
bank loans, which have been pledged by the coal mining
rights, has been fully repaid. As at 31 December 2019,
the coal mining right of the Group has not been pledged
for any borrowing.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 B Z_—FT—hF+-_H=1+—HIFE

20. IMPAIRMENT TESTING ON PROPERTY,

PLANT AND EQUIPMENT, PREPAID LAND
LEASE PAYMENTS, RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS
AND MINING RIGHTS

For the purpose of impairment assessment as at 31
December 2019, property, plant and equipment, prepaid
land lease payments, right-of-use assets and mining right
set out in notes 15, 16, 17 and 19 respectively have
been allocated to individual CGUs, (i) Building Materials
Business CGU, which represents Xingan; (ii) Coal
Production CGU, which in the opinion of the directors
of the Company, the coal mine owned by the Group is
regarded as a single CGU; and (iii) Boundary Wall Moulds
Business CGU, which represents Tairun (2018: (i) Building
Materials Business CGU; and (ii) Coal Production CGU).

Building Materials Business CGU

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, there is
no impairment indication identified in this CGU as at 31
December 2019 and 2018. There is no impairment of
property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets
(2018: prepaid land lease payments) associated with this
CGU as at 31 December 2019 and 2018.

Boundary Wall Moulds Business CGU

Boundary Wall Moulds Business CGU suffered operating
loss during the year, as a result, the Group assessed the
recoverable amount of Boundary Wall Moulds Business
CGU as at 31 December 2019. The management of
the Company determined that the carrying amount of
Boundary Wall Moulds Business CGU does not exceed the
recoverable amount of Boundary Wall Moulds Business
CGU as at 31 December 2019. In the opinion of the
directors of the Company, there is no impairment of
property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets
associated with this CGU as at 31 December 2019.

20. ¥ BERRE AT

HERE £ AEEERKRR
R 2 R BRI

RR-_ZE-NEF+A=+—B&RE
BERffEmME - D RIRHEE15 1617
FAOFTE M 5% - B Kak e~ TAT
THMEEFR  EREEEMRER
EPEZEEBNREELEMN ()&
MEBRSELEBMEEL ; (i)FiK
EERCELEMN ARAFREER
B AKBEHREANRBEREL/E R
TEAEN  RilERREARBEE
EEBM BRBE(ZT—N\F ()i
MEBRSELEN - RNVEREE
ReEESB)-

EMERRSELEN
ARAREERE R_E—NEK=
E-NE+-A=+—8 ZHLE
ABRWENFHANOBETR - R
TN EFER BT N\F+_A=+—
H ZBReELEUMNEBYE K
EREBEBRERAEEE(ZE—\F:
TE A+ AR & FROB ) W R A

EREAXRBREELEN
RAFE EREAXBREELE
fIsGEE it R_F—-NF
TZHA=+—H AEEHERER
EGReELEMN A RO EETT
Hh-ARAEEERE R_F
—NFT-A=1+—H EREAZE
BHREELEMHNREEY REBBE
AR ReEEEMN A WO S
B-ARRESFAR R-T—NF
TZA=1+—R ZReELEMNN
AR BEEREREREEE
I BERAE

BMEERZERERAR 2019FFH

155



156

20. IMPAIRMENT TESTING ON PROPERTY,

PLANT AND EQUIPMENT, PREPAID LAND
LEASE PAYMENTS, RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS
AND MINING RIGHTS (continued)

Coal Production CGU

As the Group depletes its coal reserves, the recoverable
amount of Coal Production CGU will also decrease.
Also, Coal Production CGU suffered operating loss
during these years, as a result, the Group assessed the
recoverable amount of Coal Production CGU by using fair
value less costs of disposal (2018: fair value less costs of
disposal), which was based on income approach using a
cash flow projection covering a detailed five-year budget
plan, followed by an extrapolation of discounted cash
flows, by reference to the actual selling price and the
average market coal price with similar heating power in
the PRC with adjustments, where necessary, to reflect
the differences. In determining the recoverable amount
of Coal Production CGU, the directors of the Company
have taken account of the coal reserves of the mines
after deducting the cumulative amounts of coal already
extracted and sold.

The recoverable amount of Coal Production CGU is less
than the carrying amount of Coal Production CGU as
at 31 December 2019. As a result, the Group made an
impairment loss of approximately HK$995,000 (2018:
approximately HK$5,693,000) and approximately
HK$32,926,000 (2018: approximately HK$8,544,000)
on property, plant and equipment and mining right
respectively associated with Coal Production CGU (notes
15 and 19 respectively) during the year. The impairment
loss is allocated to net carrying amounts of property,
plant and equipment and mining right associated with
Coal Production CGU.
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20. IMPAIRMENT TESTING ON PROPERTY,

PLANT AND EQUIPMENT, PREPAID LAND
LEASE PAYMENTS, RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS
AND MINING RIGHTS (continued)

Coal Production CGU (continued)
Fair value hierarchy

An independent valuation was performed by the valuer,
Asset Appraisal Limited (2018: Asset Appraisal Limited),
to determine the fair value less costs of disposal of
the Coal Production CGU as at 31 December 2019.
The impairment losses are included in consolidated
income statement. The fair value measurement of Coal
Production CGU is classified as a Level 3 (2018: Level 3)
fair value measurement.

Valuation processes of the Group

Coal Production CGU was valued as at 31 December
2019 and 2018 by independent professionally qualified
valuer, Asset Appraisal Limited, who have among their
staff fellows of the Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors
and have recent experience in the valuation of mining
industries.

The Group’s finance department, which directly reports
to the chief financial officer, reviewed the valuations
performed by the independent valuer for financial
reporting purposes, which is determined based on the
cash flow projection prepared by the management.
The finance department holds discussions with the
independent valuer on the valuation assumptions and
valuation results.

Management's key assumptions were used in the
determination of recoverable amount of Coal Production
CGU for the years ended 31 December 2019 and 2018.
The following described each key assumption on which
management has based its cash flow projections to
undertake impairment testing of Coal Production CGU.

Net profit margins — Management determined net profit
margin based on past experience in this market and its
expectations for market development.

Discount rate — The discount rate reflects specific risks
relating to the mining industry.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #HZ—F

20.

IMPAIRMENT TESTING ON PROPERTY,
PLANT AND EQUIPMENT, PREPAID LAND
LEASE PAYMENTS, RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS
AND MINING RIGHTS (continued)

Coal Production CGU (continued)
Valuation processes of the Group (continued)

Selling price - Forecast selling price of coal are based on
the actual selling price and average market coal price
with similar heating power in the PRC with adjustments,
where necessary, to reflect the differences.

Sales and production volumes — Estimated production
volumes are based on detailed life-of-mine plans and
take into account development plans for the mines
established by management as part of the long-term
planning process. Production volumes are dependent on
a number of variables, such as the recoverable quantities,
the production profile, the cost of the development of
the infrastructure necessary to extract the reserves, the
production costs, the contractual duration of mining
rights and the selling price of coal.

The discount rate and growth rates on the estimated
selling price used to extrapolate in the cash flow
projection of Coal Production CGU are shown as below:

—NF+ZA=1—HILFE

20. ¥ -BERRZE FAMLib

HERE - £ AEEERRKER
BE2RERRE)

BErREERESEEEMN(E)
rEFZIEEERF (&)
EE-RRBAESEENEREER
B AR AR RE Y I T IS IR IR (B 4% -
WHEVRRELAE ARRER-

HERES -Gt E2ERFANE
ILWEm:tE sEEEEEARBNR
ERRF—HomelENEEER
g -EEFUARZIBAIERAE A7
ARSE £SERR ARHFEMS
EMEMEORERA £EMAE
BHENESNHREERER-

BrEEReELEMN 2 ReRETE
AR HEE R 2 ITRERIBREN
™~

2019 2018
—B-AE  —2-)\F

Growth rate on the estimated selling
price of coal

Growth rate on sales and production
volumes of coal

ek

Discount rate
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21. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS

22.
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21. HELEE

Computer software licence

BB
2019 2018
HKS$'000 HK$'000
—E-NF —E-N\F
FET THETT
Cost 2N
At 1 January m—A—H 2,591 1,891
Additions NE 218 730
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 41) HEWE AT (Hfita1) (1,901) =
Exchange realignment PE X & (15) (30)
At 31 December W+=—B=+—H 893 2,591
Accumulated amortisation ST
At 1 January n—H—H (1,968) (1,891)
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 41) HEKE AR (KfaF41) 1,901 =
Amortisation for the year F A 5 (134) (80)
Exchange realignment b 5 8 B 3 3
At 31 December Rt+_A=+—H (198) (1,968)
Net carrying amount REFE 695 623

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES AND AMOUNT

22. REFE QR ZREEREN—H

DUE TO AN ASSOCIATE 4N S|
2019 2018
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E—hEF = )\F
FET FAETT

Interests in associates — Share of REE AR 2 s EEEE

net assets FE - 100,046
Amount due to an associate JiE 5 — eI Bt & A B A - (14,640)

BEERERERARA 2019FF#H
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22. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES AND AMOUNT
DUE TO AN ASSOCIATE (continued)

The particulars of the associates of the Group as at 31
December 2019 and 2018 were as follows:

22. REFE QR REBEREN—HF

Bt N R FRIE(E)
AEBR_ZF-NFR-_Z-N\F
T A=+ —BMEBEQFFEN
I

Place of
incorporation and Particular of Percentage of voting  Attributable equity  Place of operation and
Name type of legal entity registered capital right held by the Group interests to the Group principal activities
ARRIEER AEEfE BEHAR
£ HERRED AMEAFHE RERADL AREEGZRARE  IERR
2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018
S$-Af ZTAE SEAE STAE SR-AE SRR
(1) Beijing Zhaohua Hefu Investment ~ the PRC, limited RMB2,000,000  RMB2,000,000 - 25.00% - 2500%  Investment management,
Management Limited® liability company asset management and
("Zhaohua Hefu") consultation of investment
in the PRC
PRAERERAERARAR TH FREMAT ARH NG ReE{EERAER
(Pk2RE)) 2,000,000 2,000,007 HERRRRERS
(2)  Beijing Shuozhan Zhongfu the PRC, limited RMB100,000,000  RMB100,000,000 - 3333% - 9925%  Project investment,
Investment Centre partnership investment management,
(Limited Partnership)* (the assets management and
"Partnership”) (Note) consultation service in the
PRC
TRERPERERD hE ARELAY AR# N RAEESERRE
(BRa%) ([aBLE]) 100,000,000 100,000,000 RAER ZEEER
(Hit) AR

#  For identification purpose only

Note: Pursuant to the partnership agreements entered into in
May 2012 and June 2012, the general partner of the
Partnership is Zhaohua Hefu (the “General Partner”),
which is an associate of the Group, owns 1% of the
equity interest of the Partnership. The General Partner is
responsible for management and control of the business
of the Partnership through the power to appoint two-
third of the committee member of the investment
committee while Kaisheng, a subsidiary of the Company
and the limited partner of the Partnership, possesses
significant influence over the operating and financial
policies of the Partnership through the power to appoint
the remaining one-third of committee member of the
investment committee. As abovementioned, although the
Group owned 99.25% equity interest in the Partnership,
the Group only possessed significant influence over
the operating and financial policies of the Partnership,
therefore, the investment has been classified as interests
in associates in the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 December 2018.

On 30 December 2019, the Group disposed of certain
subsidiaries (note 41) together with the interests in associates
and amount due to an associate which was held by Kaishing. As
of that date, the Group ceased to have significant influence over
Zhaohua Hefu and the Partnership.
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22. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES AND AMOUNT
DUE TO AN ASSOCIATE (continued)

The following illustrates the summarised financial
information of the Group’s material associate as at 31
December 2018, the Partnership, extracted from its
management accounts which have been adjusted to
ensure consistency in accounting policies adopted by the

22. NME QR ZzEm R EN—E
BtE A RRIE(E)
AT AAEBMEABEAR (DALY
LEIR=B-—N\F+=-A=+—H
ZHBENME DR E HERER
B (EEARARREAEBRAZ
BEHE )

Group.
HK$'000
THTT
As at 31 December 2018 R-ZE—-NF+=-HA=+—H
Non-current assets ERIEE 24,452
Current assets mENE E 83,608
Current liabilities MEEE (10,255)
Net assets & E TR 97,805

Year ended 31 December 2018

BE_Z-N\F+-A=1T—-HLEE

Revenue W -
Loss for the year FAEE (13,366)
OCl for the year FREME2EKE 10,857
Total comprehensive loss for the year FAZEEBERRE (2,509)

Note: The Partnership was disposed of together with the CIL
Group and was not an associate of the Group as at 31
December 2019. Therefore, the financial information of
the Partnership for the year ended 31 December 2019 is
not presented.

faix: R=ZFE—NAF+=—A=+—H'4&
BLEEBERCLEEE LS R
REBZEE AR -Et WAZ
NEBLERBE_T—NF+=
A=t—BHLFEZHEER -
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22. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES AND AMOUNT 22, ABE ATz EERENS—E

DUE TO AN ASSOCIATE (continued) P& N BFIE(E)
Reconciliation of the above summarised financial N EBGMEIEER ER —F— )\ F
information to the carrying amount of the interests in +=—A=+—B8% Aﬁﬂ“#ﬁi‘%ﬁﬁﬁ?’ém
the associates recognised in the consolidated financial REENRNEREMENYERN
statements as at 31 December 2018: T
HK$'000
FET
Net assets of the associate BERRZEEFR 97,805
Group’s interest in the associate AEBERBE AR 2R 99.25%
Carrying amount of the Group'’s interest in REBREE N NR 2 2 RAE
the associate 97,071
The financial information of Zhaohua Hefu, an immaterial R-E—-—NE+=-_B=+—H B
associate of the Group as at 31 December 2018, is set KELAT(ARAEB A AETEERE N
out below: A 2 B EREININT ¢
HK$'000
F&TT
Year ended 31 December 2018 BE-Z-\F+=-A=+—HLFE
The Group’s share of profit for the year AEEEAGEFE N @A 438
The Group's share of other comprehensive loss RNEEE(HF AN HEEELE
for the year (91)
The Group's share of total comprehensive AREBEEFRNEMEEBNZZLLEE
income for the year 347
Note: Zhaohua Hefu was disposed of together with the CIL M RZE—AF+_A=+—H Kk
Group and was not an associate of the Group as at 31 ELEERCLEEE L E R
December 2019. Therefore, the financial information of AEBEZHE AT -Eit  WKRE
Zhaohua Hefu for the year ended 31 December 2019 is FIEAERBE T —LF+—
not presented. A=+—BILFEZHBER -

1 62 Rosan Resources Holdings Limited Annual Report 2019
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23. INTEREST IN A JOINT VENTURE 23. RA—HeEL¥ o ER
2019 2018
HK$'000 HK$'000
—ZE-RAFE ZZE-N\F
THET THET
Share of net assets EIEEEFE - 5,973
The particulars of the joint venture of the Group as at 31 RZE—NhEFER=ZE—N\FE+=A
December 2019 and 2018 were set out as below: =t—H AEBEELEREZFEN
T
Place of
Place of operation
incorporation and Percentage of issued and principal
Name type of legal entity Particulars of registered capital capital held by the Group activities
AEE
AR AR 2 s B ERTRA REhHR
a8 ERERERY EMEARFE Bak TEEK
2019 2018 2019 2018
ZE-NE 2N\ ZE-AF ZT)\F
Henan Chalco Li Chuang PRC, other limited RMB10,000,000  RMB10,000,000 - 51%  Sale of alumina in
Resources Company Limited? liability company the PRC
("Henan Chalco”) (note)
AR AR A RA A hE At EREE N NG R ESHE a1k ik
(hasEseEl) () N 10,000,007 10,000,000

*  For identification purpose only

Note: Although the Group owned 51% equity interest in Henan
Chalco, the Group and the other shareholder of Henan
Chalco had joint control over Henan Chalco and none of
the participating parties had unilateral control over the
economic activity pursuant to the joint venture agreement
entered into in July 2012. Therefore, the Group classified
the investment in Henan Chalco as a joint venture as at 31
December 2018.

On 30 December 2019, the Group disposed of certain
subsidiaries (note 41) together with the interest in a joint
venture which was held by Jinfeng. As of that date, the
Group ceased to have joint control over Henan Chalco.

# EXeE %l

ffit BEASBEHEB A BT E51%E
& BN E KR P8R 2 A Ak
R A PR A KRR SR - R
T HFLARTUZAZE B
BE2E SR ES A E T T
HwE-Ei- K- NFE+_-A
=t—H ARE&TEFTREZER
BNRRAERE-

RZE-—h&E+_A=+8 X5E
BEHESETHEB AR (MEs)ERE
ERAZR—RaELEZEE R
ZB AEET B TETEAFR
[ 4% I
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23. INTEREST IN A JOINT VENTURE (continued)

Set out below is the summarised financial information for
Henan Chalco which was accounted for using the equity

23. R—BE¥ X fE)
AR R R (AR EAR) 2 B AN
BT -

method:

HK$'000

FHET

As at 31 December 2018 R=ZZE-NE+=-HA=+-—H
Cash and cash equivalents RekHFeZFEER 7,810
Other current assets Himeh & E 3,901
Current assets mENE B 11,711
Year ended 31 December 2018 BE-Z-\F+-A=+—HLEE
Interest income FE WA 101
Profit for the year 1A 5 A el
Other comprehensive loss for the year FRNE M EEEE (639)
Total comprehensive loss for the year FANEHEEARE (540)

Note: Henan Chalco was disposed of together with the CIL
Group and was not a joint venture of the Group as at 31
December 2019. Therefore, the financial information of
Henan Chalco for the year ended 31 December 2019 is
not presented.

There were no contingent liability or other commitments
relating the Group’s interest in its joint venture.

Reconciliation of the above summarised financial
information to the carrying amount of the interest in a
joint venture recognised in the consolidated financial
statements as at 31 December 2018:

Hiat: R=T—AF+=—A=+—8'W
MPRERCILEEE HE RIIE
REBZzAEERE-Ft WAZ
I mREREE - AFE+ =
B=+—BLEEZHEER-

AEELEPENS LRI ERE
ISR B B A AR

S EEREB EE R ER = — N\
t= A=+ BEAMBREFER
R—EIa Lo 2miEsREEENHE
m :

HK$'000

FHET

Net assets of the joint venture BETEBEETHE 11,711

Group’s interest in the joint venture REBREGEDFE 2R 51%
Carrying amount of the Group’s interest in the AREBERAL ¥R EEE

joint venture 5,973
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24. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE 24. AV EFAHMEZE W
THROUGH OTHER COMPREHENSIVE cREE
INCOME
2019 2018
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-NE —E-)N\F
T8 F#T
Non-current ¥R
Financial assets at FVTOC]| BAFEEFAEMEERZD
SWMEE
— Unlisted equity securities in the — P EEETRAES Ib

PRC, Beijing Baiyitong Technology TEGBRI AR AR
Co., Ltd.* (dtRfAsmBEHE

BRAR]) - 682
The above unlisted equity securities was designated as LFtIE EMRABSBIEERIKRATF
financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive Bt At 2EKE (TR 88 ) R
income (non-recycling) as the investment was held for R AZIRE B ERIEEER -

long-term strategic purposes.

For the details of the fair value measurement as at 31 RZEBE—NEFE+_A=1+—"HZA¥F

December 2018 are set out in note 45(f). Bt 22 FI5E R MEE45(f) -

On 30 December 2019, the Group disposed of the CIL R-E—NF+-_A=1+H KA&£H

Group together with the financial assets at FVTOCI. BEHECILEEERRA FEF AR
2EHNGEZEREE -

No dividends were received on this investment during the FARAWEBZIRERRERBRE(Z

year (2018: Nil). T—\F |

*  For identification purpose only *EHEE R
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25. INVENTORIES 25. 78

2019 2018
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-AFE ZZE-N\F
FET FHET
Coal jL ! 2,440 2,999

Building materials B
— Raw materials — B 4,492 5,327
— Finished goods — 2P 6,961 13,762
Spare parts and consumables T RFEM 2,244 2,761
16,137 24,849

R—ZE—h&E+—_A=+—080 %k
HHBE—F(ZT—\F: —F)H%
EFEFRTEEREL,711,0008
TT(ZZ— )\ : #2,021,000/87C)°

As at 31 December 2019, provision for inventories
amounting to approximately HK$1,711,000 (2018:
approximately HK$2,021,000) were made against those
inventories which aged over one year (2018: one year).

26. ACCOUNTS AND BILLS RECEIVABLES AND 26. EWERFIREBRENEE

166

CONTRACT ASSETS

2019 2018
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-nE —T-NF
FET FEIT
Accounts receivable JE UG BR 7k 124,035 254,529
Bills receivable JE W = 15 2,293 259,433
126,328 513,962
Less: Allowance for credit losses B S EEEEME (fiE45))
(note 45(a)) (30,938) (61,313)
Accounts and bills receivables, net of FEUBE X R Z 4 - HFR E 18 B4
loss allowance (note (a)) (Kiit(a)) 95,390 452,649
Contract assets BHEE 2,267 2,371
Less: Allowance for credit losses B S EEEEE (Mit45))
(note 45(a)) (1,408) (451)
Contract assets, net of loss allowance & #)&E @ K BB R E
(note (b)) (Krax b)) 859 1,920
Total et 96,249 454,569

Rosan Resources Holdings Limited Annual Report 2019
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26. ACCOUNTS AND BILLS RECEIVABLES AND
CONTRACT ASSETS (continued)

Notes:

(a)

Accounts and bills receivables

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group
discounted part of its trade debtors with full recourse to a
financial institution. In the event of default by the debtors,
the Group is obliged to pay the financial institution the
amount in default. During the year ended 31 December
2019, interest was charged at a range from 3.30% to
4.79% (2018: 3.30% to 4.57%) per annum on the
proceeds received from the financial institution until the
day the debtors pay. During the year ended 31 December
2019, all the discounted trade debts were settled and,
as at 31 December 2019, the Group did not have any
discounted trade debtors with full recourse to a financial
institution. The Group was therefore exposed to the
risks of credit losses and late payment in respect of the
discounted debts as at 31 December 2018.

The discounting transactions did not meet the
requirements in HKFRS 9 for derecognition of financial
assets as the Group retained substantially all of the risks
and rewards of ownership of the discounted trade debts.
At 31 December 2018, trade debts of approximately
HK$205,500,000 continued to be recognised in
the Group’s consolidated financial statements even
though they have been legally transferred to the
financial institution. The proceeds of the discounting
transactions were included in borrowings as asset-
backed financing (note 34) until the trade debts were
collected or the Group settled any losses suffered by the
financial institution. At 31 December 2018, the asset-
backed financial liability amounted to approximately
HK$153,400,000. Because the trade debts have been
transferred to the financial institution legally, the Group
did not have the authority to determine the disposition of
the trade debts.

The Group's sales are billed to customers according to the
terms of the relevant contracts. Normally, credit periods
for Coal Business ranging from 30 to 180 days (2018:
30 to 180 days) are allowed to certain customers. While
relatively longer credit period will be granted to customers
of Building Materials Business depending on the terms of
the relevant contracts.

26. ERRRRRERBRENEE
(%)
Wizt -

(a) EWEIREE
RBE-ZZ—hhF+=A=+—H
EFE AEEBEAGEBREDN
BRI D AR F — R mh i
BoMEBAELY AEBEERBR
ZEeRBESINENSE -HEZ
E-AE+-A=+—HItFE"
BB BN Z S B R U B A SR B
BN T EFF3.30%24.79% (==
— N\ :3.3%%4.57% ) E - BE
BEAEBRAL-BE-_T—NF
+—A=+—HLEE FFECH
HESEKCERHESE RRZ
E-—hE+-_A=+—8B &X&£H
WEFAMNUEREE -—RemEELS
2 EPIBREREUERTK - Btk - A&
ER—E—N\F+=-_A=+—A8%
EMREFEEREEERAR AR

& o
N

IR ZIEE BB SRS %R
FOFRRIERECREENRTE
REZAEBE (RSB E B HEE WK
HHBRIDRBEER RN
—N\E+-A=+—8 ERERXK
#9205,500,0005% JT 4 8 A AN &
REVBRERPER REMCLE
FEEETZERERE RIS
FIBRBIEAEEIFRETAE
B (f1at34) EEIFEUERE Yl
FARELEEZ S REEZI T
fiEXABLE- RZTE—NF+=A
=t B BAEXHSREENA
153,400,000/ 7T ° B R FER R K E
BEEETZERKE AEET
BHEERTERKIRKEAR o

AEERBEBENGRAETR
RAHEER -BHRREBRET
EFRTZEEH KN F30R
Z£1808 (=ZF — /\%:30H £180
B) - MRFHEEAONARK T
MEBEEZEERRERE-
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26. ACCOUNTS AND BILLS RECEIVABLES AND 26. EWERRRZEBREHNEE
CONTRACT ASSETS (continued) (4&)
Notes: (continued) Hist: (&)
(b) Contract assets (b) EHEE
Typical payment terms which impact on the amount of HEERENEESHEENTEN
contract assets recognised are as follows: — R T
- Building materials contracts - EWEH
Certain of the Group’s building materials contracts AEENETEMAHBE
include payment schedules which require stage FEEBFREERDBEEMN KL
payments depends on when the respective MHERE (BTERSEESE
constructions’ milestones are reached. For major BRENER) RITEEMS
building materials contracts, the Group general Hms  ANEBR—RIKERE T
receives certain deposits payable up front, which is SCHIE IR & TR B xR (EE
negotiated on a case by case basis with customers, BHEEPEREmE  RALLS
and this has resulted in a contract liability at early BRBEYVHELAAHEE-
stages of the projects. However, for major building A EHREBEMESL &K
materials contracts the Group also typically agrees SETATERER1%E16%
to a retention period for 1% to 16% (2018: 1% (ZZ2E—N\F:1%ZE16% )&
to 16%) of the contract value. This amount is ABHEBERE—EREZEH A
included in contract assets until the end of the AR B8 5% B R BUR R
retention period as the Group’s entitlement to this AEBENE DM=HEBMm
final payment is conditional on the Group’s product B RELZeHTAGNEE
satisfactorily passing inspection. BEEREBER-
Details of impairment assessment of accounts and bills HE 22— L 4Frk_Z—N\F+=A
receivables and contract assets for the years ended 31 December T+ —HIFENERERRERREH
2019 and 2018 are set out in note 45(a). & ERERT b S B R 3E45(@)
The ageing analysis of the accounts and bills receivables and AEEREHAHERUERREREREL
contract assets of the Group, net of loss allowance, based on BE(HBREBERE) ZESBDTIOT :
the due dates is as follows:
2019 2018
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-hEF —E-N\F
FET AT
Current T E 13,070 295,396
Past due for less than 3 months wmEAL R =1EA 49,240 85,354
Past due for more than 3 months but less #H3 =& A A F18 R /< 1E A
than 6 months 22,804 47,297
Past due for more than 6 months but less #3518 A LA B DR —4
than 1 year 11,135 26,522
96,249 454,569
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PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 27. AR - RERHMWEWRR
RECEIVABLES yi]

2019 2018

HK$'000 HK$'000

—E-NEF —E-)N\F

FET TETT

Prepayments A RIE 4,206 10,107

Deposits b g 4,538 11,775

Other receivables H fth B U SR I8 12,661 8,127

21,405 30,009

Provision for impairment (note 45(a)) BB & (H#fa£45(@a)) (1,420) (5,529)

19,985 24,480

Details of impairment assessment of deposits and other
receivables for the years ended 31 December 2019 and
2018 are set out in note 45(a).

PLEDGED AND RESTRICTED BANK
DEPOSITS, CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS AND OTHER CASH FLOW
INFORMATION

(a) Pledged and restricted bank deposits

As at 31 December 2018, the effective interest rates
of the pledged bank deposits are at 0.31% per
annum. As at 31 December 2018, pledged bank
deposits are used to secured bills payables (note 29)
and letter of credit (note 34(b)) of the Group. As at
31 December 2019, no bank deposits were pledged.

No bank deposits (2018: approximately
HK$1,621,000) were restricted for use in relation to
the administrative proceedings.

28.

BE_Z—NWEFK-_FT—N\F+=-A8
= +—BIEFEMNES R EMmEWR
TE BB A B A M FE45(a) o

ERH R ZRHEVRITER
ReRReESEEBREMWER

EREBEH
() BEARZRHWGBTER

RZZE—NF+=_A=+—8"
BERBIRITTEAROERF X AT
F£031% - R-_ZE—N\E+_-A
=+—8 BEBERTERAR
ERASENEMNEBR(KZE
29) Rz A& (K1 5E34(b)) e A=
E-NF+-A=+—8 #&
IR EAIERTTIE N ©

BMERTER(ZZE—NEF: L
H

1,621,000 70) ATTHEF<SH
135 A T3 R il o
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28. PLEDGED AND RESTRICTED BANK
DEPOSITS, CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS AND OTHER CASH FLOW
INFORMATION (continued)

(b) Cash and cash equivalents
As at 31 December 2019,

28. CHEARZRFPRITENR
ReEkBEFEEARAEMR
TREER(#)

(b) BRERBEEFEERE
R_B-NAF+-A=+—8"

included in cash and

cash equivalents of the Group is approximately AREFRHES NIESEFEERBE
HK$15,023,000 (2018: approximately LAA R B BE N 17 AU B R $R 1T
HK$33,377,000) of bank balances denominated in 2 R 1T %5 £2 4915,023,00078 T
RMB placed with the banks in the PRC. RMB is not (ZZ— )\ F : 433,377,000/

a freely convertible currency; however, under the
PRC’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and
Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment
of Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group is
permitted to exchange RMB for other currencies
through the banks authorised to conduct foreign

T ARBA T BEHERZ
B AT REBEREZINEE
Tl 16 171 B A BE - 5 I e N I 22
RE AEBERAEFEETEE
RIEETINERB 2 RITHAR
BRI REME -

exchange business in the PRC.

(c) Reconciliation of liabilities from financing () METEMEENEEHER
activities
The table below details changes in the Group’s TREFMANEE R E BN FTEL
major liabilities from financing activities, including NEIEEEES BIEEERE
both cash and non-cash changes. LIRS mEEHHEE -
Amounts due Advance
to related ~ from certain
parties parties
Amounts included included in
due to and in other other Amount
Bank and Lease loans from payables payables  duetoan
other loans liabilities  shareholders ~and accruals ~ and accruals associate
(note 34) (note 33) (note 30) (note 31) (note 31) (note 22) Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AR
TARMER  EARER
REREHER EfERZ
B8R ENRFZER cEAERHBE HATAL Ef-BEE
&R HEEE RERRER ] 233 AARE
(Wit)  (Wit33)  (Wids0)  (Was) (K1) (WGt) &t
T Thr T i T T TR
At 1 January 2018 RZE-\E-A-H 646,900 - 41,097 7,09 2814 99,589 817,499
Changes from financing cash flows: BER&FNEE:
Proceeds from bank loans POERFBE 207,618 - - - - - 207,618
Repayments of bank loans BRBTER (182,704) - - - - - (182,704)
Proceeds from other loans B ENHERE 201,975 - - - - - 201,975
Repayments of other loans E‘Eﬁm% (37,584) - - - - - (37,584)
Proceeds from loans from shareholders  RERE &3 2 i3 a0 - - 94,800 - - - 94,800
Repayments of loans from shareholders iR (EE &3 ZW%?A - - (29,660) - - - (29,660)
Repayment to shareholders ARRER - - (31,962) - - - (31,962)
Repayments to related parties, net AEEATEN 58 - - (109,669) - - (109,669)
Repayment to an associate W-ABRERTEH = - = - = (79,785) (79,785)
Repayment to certain parties included i /1% T A&7 (GEAEMER
other payables, net HE) 38 - - - - (15,828) - (15,828)
Total changes from financing cash flows  BER & FEELNE AR 189,305 - 33,178 (109,669) (15,828) (79,785) 17,201
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REMBRRWE

For the year ended 31 December 2019 B Z_—FT—hF+-_H=1+—HIFE

28. PLEDGED AND RESTRICTED BANK 28. EEFRZRFMVBITER
DEPOSITS, CASH AND CASH RekBEEEEEB RHEMR
EQUIVALENTS AND OTHER CASH FLOW EREERE)
INFORMATION (continued)

(c) Reconciliation of liabilities from financing () METBRMELENEBEYHER
activities (continued) (&)

Amounts due Advance
to related ~ from certain

parties parties
Amounts included  included in
due to and in other other Amount
Bank and Lease loans from payables payables  duetoan
other loans liabilities  shareholders and accruals ~ and accruals associate
(note 34) (note 33) (note 30) (note 31) (note 31) (note 22) Total
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AR

SARMES  ENRER
WARESER ERERZ
#IR EORRUAR <EMEMEE  &TAL EN-BHE
AfEH  REAR RERREX THE Z8%  LARA
(Bize) (W) (WEs0) (W) (K (D) &t
TEL THL TEL THL TEL TEL TR

Other changes: 228
Exchange realignment A% (42,701) - .04 (330) - (5,164) (50,409)
Addition through acquisition of FRRENBARNE (Hita0)

subsidiaries (note 40) 47,060 - - 103,070 - - 150,130
Discount at inception of loans RERREFZMNEE

from shareholders - - (17,185) - - - (17,185)
Unwinding of imputed interest on loans RERREFEEFSEE

from shareholders - - 8,750 - - - 8,750
Total other changes Ep2Eng 4359 - (10,649) 102,740 - (5,164) 91,286
At 31 December 2018 R=E-\F+-f=1-H 840,564 - 63,626 170 6,986 14,640 925,986
Impact on initial application of HKFRS 16 1A ERE B K REER Z16

(note 2(b)) R2FR (W) = 1,209 = - = - 1,209
At 1 January 2019 RZE-NE-A-H 840,564 1,209 63,626 170 6,986 14,640 927,195
Changes from financing cash flows: BEREFNEE:
Proceeds from bank loans ROERZMEHE 859,145 = = = - - 859,145
Repayments of bank loans BERTER (827,857) - - - - - (827,857)
Proceeds from other loans EBERAETE 5,671 - - - - - 5,671
Repayments of other loans EREBER (196,738) = - = - = (196,738)
Capital element of lease rentals paid ~ EFEERE 2 BAZH - (1,402) - - - - (1.402)
Interest element of lease rentals paid ~ 2RERS 2 FIEHH - (67) - - - = (67)
Advance from related parties, net REBEATZBH 58 - - - 79393 - - 79,393
Advance from shareholders RESH - - 26,636 - - - 26,636
Advance from certain parties included in & T Atz (GtARER

other payables, net ) 7 - - - - 17,176 - 17,176
Total changes from financing cash flows BER £ FEELMEHEE (159,779) (1,469) 26,636 79393 17,176 - (38,043)
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mEMBRRWE

For the year ended 31 December 2019 B Z_—FT—hF+-_H=1+—HIFE

28. PLEDGED AND RESTRICTED BANK 28. EEARZRENBITFR
DEPOSITS, CASH AND CASH RERRESEEEHREMIE
EQUIVALENTS AND OTHER CASH FLOW EREER (&)
INFORMATION (continued)

(c) Reconciliation of liabilities from financing () RMETHFELANESYHIER
activities (continued) (&)

Amounts due Advance
to related  from certain

parties parties
Amounts included included in
due to and in other other Amount
Bank and Lease loans from payables payables  duetoan
other loans liabilities  shareholders and accruals and accruals associate
(note 34) (note 33) (note 30) (note 31) (note 31) (note 22) Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AR

HARMES  EAHER
HERESER EHERZ
BTR BHRFAER 2EAHMABE £TAL Ef-BHE
28R  REEE KERRER FHE 288 ARRE
(W#4)  (W#3) (KE0)  (W#31) (W#31) (H#22) @it
TEx THTL Tix THTL T TERL Tz

Other changes: 2
Exchange realignment EiAE (12,467) 6) (1,547) 48) = (255) (14,323)
Addition of lease liabilties REREEE - 864 - - - - 864
Interest expenses on leases liabilities & A EFIEHx - 67 - - - - 67
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 41) LERBAA (Ha41) (521,304) - (33,887) (3,048) - (14385 (572,624)
Consideration in relation to disposal of ~ HECILEBABENA(E
the CIL Group (note 41) (Ha1) - - 2 - - - 2
Unwinding of imputed interest on loans K& R & (85| 5 B&
from shareholders - - 3,746 - - - 3,746
Total other changes L0 DEs (533,771) 925 (31,690) (3,096) = (14640)  (582,272)
At 31 December 2019 RZE-NE+-R=1-H 147,014 665 58,572 76,467 24,162 - 306,880
29. ACCOUNTS AND BILLS PAYABLES 29. EERIRERE
2019 2018
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-hEF —E-N\F
FERT FHET
Accounts payable FE T BR 3K 32,456 50,349
Bills payable R - 607,783
32,456 658,132
As at 31 December 2018, the bills payable was mainly R-FE—NE+-_A=+—8 " EfR
issued to the Henan Coal Jiatuo Trading Company ERETER T ERREREES
Limited* R RHAEKEFEBR LA ), major supplier RAR EA[BARKRES | 280
under the “trading of purchased coal” operation (the TEHER([TEMERD])-
“Major Supplier”).
#  For identification purpose only * (R
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REMBRRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2019 B Z_—FT—hF+-_H=1+—HIFE

29. ACCOUNTS AND BILLS PAYABLES

(continued)

The Group was granted by its certain suppliers with credit
periods normally ranging from 30 to 90 days (2018:
30 to 90 days). As of the end of the reporting period,
the ageing analysis of accounts payable of the Group
presented based on the invoice dates was as follows:

29. ENBEFRRERE (&)

AETHERRAEEE T —MN T30
Z290H(=Z—/\%F : 30290H ) 2 &
BRE-RIEHR HEZEHHER
ZAEEEMERRZERRATOT ¢

2019 2018

HK$°000 HK$'000

—E-NnEF —FE-N\F

FET TAETT

0 — 90 days 0£90H 19,999 21,493
91 - 180 days 91£180H 4,309 3,779
181 — 365 days 181£2365H 3,635 19,299
Over 365 days #BiB365H 4,513 5,778
32,456 50,349

As at 31 December 2019, the Group has no bills
payable (2018: approximately HK$485,851,000) secured
by the pledged bank deposits of the Group (2018:
approximately HK$461,487,000) (note 28(a)).

As at 31 December 2019, the Group has no bills payable
(2018: approximately HK$152,387,000) were guaranteed
by Henan Zhongfu Industrial Company Limited* (Ja]
FAREEERMAERLT) (“Henan Zhongfu”) or
its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as “Zhongfu
Group”), the major customer under the “trading of
purchased coal” operation (the “Major Customer”).

*  For identification purpose only

R_ZE—NAF+-_A=+—8 4%
BUYEEMNEE(ZE—/N\F: 4
485,851,000/ 7T ) LAZN &£ B 2 K 1 5R
THER(ZE—N\F : 49461,487,000
ST )VE BRI (FI5E28(a))

R-_ZE—NAF+-_A=+—8 &%
BUYEENZEERE(ZTE—N\F: 4
152,387,000/8 7)) A R E X%
MAERAG(AEPE ) EMBEA
A PEEE (R BARKE
BIEBNEFERF((XEEF]))E
R

o EHET

BMEERZERERAR 2019FFH
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e BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2019 B Z_—FT—hF+-_H=1+—HIFE

30. AMOUNTS DUE TO AND LOANS FROM 30. ENREFERREREER
SHAREHOLDERS
2019 2018
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E—hEF —E—)N\F
FET FAETT
Current RED
Amounts due to shareholders eI R R (Mfat(a))
(note (a)) 1,337 9,135
Non-current R B
Loans from shareholders (note (b)) KEREER (fzzob)) 57,235 54,491
58,572 63,626

Notes: Bfat -

(@) Current portion of amounts due to shareholders (a)
The balance of current portion of amounts due to
shareholders included the followings:

(i) As at 31 December 2019, balance amounting to
approximately HK$1,337,000 (2018: HK$7,838,000)
was advanced from Mr. Bao; and

(i)  As at 31 December 2018, the balance amounting
to approximately HK$1,297,000 was advanced from
Mr. Yang Hua, a shareholder of the Company, who
was also a then Executive Director till 8 February
2018 and chief executive of the Company till 31
December 2018. The balance was disposed of
during the disposal of the CIL Group.

These balances are unsecured, interest-free and repayable
on demand.

Rosan Resources Holdings Limited Annual Report 2019

BARRREBEZRBEBD
FER R IR B B 2 SRR B IE
IAT&IE:

(i)

(ii)

RZFB-NEFTZA=+—
H-#1,337,0008 ¢ (==&
— )\ : 7,838,000/ 7T ) K £4
BEHRBELERE: &

RZFE-—NF+_A=+—
H SBEXxE(BEARER
H-RZZE—N\F=ZAN\HA
MEARRERZHTERER
R_ZE—NF+=-_A=+—8H
LEARRBIITERAR) R
FRFE#91,297,000/8 I © #4258
ERHECILEEHHELE -
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REMBRRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2019 &% — =

30. AMOUNTS DUE TO AND LOANS FROM
SHAREHOLDERS (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(b)

Non-current portion of loans from shareholders

On 14 February 2018, the Group entered into loan
agreements with Mr. Bao, Mr. Zhang Xinzhi (“Mr.
Zhang”) and Mr. Li, all of them are shareholders of the
Company in which Mr. Li is also an Executive Director
since 15 June 2018 and Mr. Bao was appointed as an
Executive Director subsequent to the year end date.
Pursuant to the loan agreements, these shareholders
agreed to provide unsecured and interest-free loan with
an aggregate amount of RMB600,000,000 (equivalent
to approximately HK$671,172,000) for a term of three
years to the Group. The loans are repayable in full or by
instalment to further negotiations, within 36 months of
the drawdown date. During the year ended 31 December
2018, aggregate loans amounting to RMB80,000,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$94,800,000) have been
advanced from Mr. Bao, Mr. Zhang and Mr. Li, these
loans will be repayable in full within 36 months since the
drawdown date. As detailed in note 3.1, such loans were
transferred to and taken up by Xiangyang from a then
subsidiary. The effective interest rate at 6.90% per annum
for imputed interest expense for these interest-free loans
is determined based on the cost-of-funds of the Group per
annum. Movement has shown as below:

30. BRRE
(%)

—NF+-A=+—HIFE

RIER KB RRERK

Hiat: (&)

(b)

REBRRERZEREBIBS
R-ZE—NFE-_A+WA K~&EE
HefE RESEE([RELE])
EEEE(BEZZE—N\FXA+H
BEHARNDGIKE ZELENA
%ﬂﬁ%%@ﬁ%i#i BigEER
EENITES )TN ER R - RIE
BERWE Exﬁﬁxiﬂ AL E
?ﬂ,\, @58 A R#600,000,0007T (18

R 49671,172,0005% 7T ) B £ 35 7
ﬁ,é'\,\/ﬂ’ BE=F c BEFARRE
HEA#E3618 A A2 SR EES H HE
B(AE—PER) - BHE-_Z—N
FE+-_A=Z+—BHIFE BEXRHE
%8 A R #:80,000,0007T (48 & 7/ ’J
94,800,00078 7T ) I E A B LA
REERTRERE ZEERAE
R IRER B Hi#E361E A A& %z'é‘z%
MK FE3 AR AL ZEE N E B
R B A R EE T R IEE,EE;%
B-ZEREEFNHEMNSAX
ZEBEERR690%IENRKER
BFNESKEAETE - EHINT
X.

2019 2018

HK$'000 HK$'000

ZE-NF —T-N\F

FET FAT

At 1 January R—H—H 54,491 -

Proceeds from shareholders’ loans REERETEHIE - 94,800

Discount at inception (note (i) EITIRE (K aEG)) - (17,185)
Early settlement by the Group AEBREEE (MaE3))

(note (ii) - (29,660)
Unwinding of imputed interest HEF S B (FE7)

(note 7) 3,746 8,750
Exchange realignment PE 5, 3 B (1,002) (2,214)
At 31 December Rt+tZA=+—H 57,235 54,491
Notes: HifaE -

(i) The discount of the loans from shareholders at inception 0) RBEER VNI EREREE

was recognised as deemed capital contribution from
shareholders as other reserves in the equity of the Group
(note 38(a)(iii)).

(ii) During the year, the Group did not voluntary repay
(2018: RMB25,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$29,660,000)) to the shareholders.

EREEE EAREEERTH
H b (P aE38(a)ii) ) °

(ii) FRA-AEEHEARRRK
%%ETAIE(—:;_/\E /\
R #25,000,0007T (A&
29,660,000 7T ) ) °

BMEERZERERAR 2019FFH
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e BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2019 B Z_—FT—hF+-_H=1+—HIFE

31. OTHER PAYABLES, ACCRUALS AND 31. HMENRIE - EstEARE

DEPOSIT RECEIVED Wik4$
2019 2018
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-NEF —E—)\F
FHET FAETT
Current B
Accruals Bt &R 114,905 293,640
Other payables (note (a)) H AR RIE (A aEa)) 230,709 243,774
Contract liabilities (note (b)) aMaE (KiEmb)) 17,261 13,247
Deferred income (note 35) RIEI A (Hf7#35) 772 786
363,647 551,447
Non-current EFR B
Deposit received (note (c)) B E (MaE(c)) 2,299 2,165
365,946 553,612
Notes: Bk -

(a)

The balances of other payables as of 31 December 2019
included the followings:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

#

The balance amounting to approximately
HK$1,038,000 (2018: approximately HK$170,000)
was advanced from a family member of Mr. Bao;

The balance amounting to approximately
HK$22,372,000 (2018: nil) was advanced from
a non-controlling interest holder of one of the
subsidiaries of the Company;

The balance amounting to approximately
HK$75,429,000 (2018: nil) was advanced from
Henan Minan Guotai Investment Holdings
Development Co. Ltd,* CIERZBEZFIZEZRK
ERAMRAT) which is beneficially owned and
controlled by Mr. Zhang;

The balance amounting to approximately
HK$1,790,000 (2018: HK$6,986,000) was advanced
from an individual. In the opinion of the directors of
the Company, the individual is an independent third
party; and

For identification purpose only
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BE_Z—NF+=-_A=+—8"
Hih Ul ZERESTEA TSR

()

(ii)

#

491,038,000 T (= &
—/\: #7170,000 7T ) K g2 58
HELEEN—BREMKEIR
e

#922,372,000% L (= — N\
FE)NBBHRAARF—M
MB AR Z IEERERF A A

Rt

4975,429,000%8 7L (= — N\
FE)NBERARRETEH
RIREERERBRAT (B
RAEEESHMAERZEH) IR
i

#91,790,0008 T (=ZZF— N\
F 16,986,000/ 7T ) M #A ZE FR
—BATRE-ARAEER
B RATRBBYE=T K

12 385



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

31. OTHER PAYABLES, ACCRUALS AND
DEPOSIT RECEIVED (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(a)

(b)

(continued)

(v The remaining balances of approximately
HK$130,080,000 (2018: approximately
HK$236,618,000) mainly comprises accrued coal
mines related to removal and relocation expenses,
payables to suppliers for acquisition of property,
plant and equipment and certain miscellaneous
expenses payables.

These balances are unsecured, interest-free and repayable
on demand or within one year.

At 31 December 2019, contract liabilities represent
receipts in advance from customers, which the Group
is required to refund to the customers if the customers
cancel the orders. However, the Group does not expect
to refund any of the advance payments. The Group does
not separately presented this item on the consolidated
statement of financial position as, in the opinion of
directors of the Company, the amount involved was not
material.

Typical payment terms which impact on the amount of
contract liabilities recognised are as follows:—

- Coal business contracts

When the Group receives a deposit before the
customers obtain the coal from the predetermined
location, this will give rise to contract liabilities,
until the revenue recognised exceeds the amount
of the deposit. The Group typically receives certain
deposit on acceptance of coal sales orders, which is
negotiated on a case by case basis with customers.

- Building materials contracts

For major building materials contracts, the Group
generally receives certain deposit from customers
when they sign the building materials contracts,
which is negotiated on a case by case basis with
customers. These deposits are recognised as a
contract liability until the revenue recognised
exceeds the amount of the deposit.

. AR
RS ()

REMBRRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2019 &% — =

—NF+-A=+—HIFE

RIH - BETERAKRE

Hiat: (&)

(a)

(%)

(v) #2%849130,080,000% 7T (=
T — )\ 4 : 49236,618,000/8
JL) EE B IER ST IEE
FERRRBERAS W
55 % 5t e A A FE R AR E
BTEMHEERS -

ZERBEREER 2ERARE
REEIN—FAER-

E-hEF+_-_A=+—B H
W%ﬁ AERBHNBBERAREZA
REFBHRIERERETEF A
i 7% 65 [ 78 A 3 R R T TR K
FIH -ANARREERR IFE
B TEXR BWASELRNES
MBRARANEBE25IZ AR -

WA WA ESBERE EH
B — A FRIERE TN AT+ —

- BEREBEYN

EAKENEF B BT K
AR AR B IR S EHE

A@EL\EiEﬁWWA
BEREHA AEEET
REXRRIHERTE MWW
The eREABBERER
FipmE -

- EBHEN

REZREMENME  A&EH
—&%ﬁMJ@M OB B
HETHR: BREREERET
FREr - 2 F R e N ER RS
BARSSBZAERRAL

BfE-
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e BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2019 B Z_—FT—hF+-_H=1+—HIFE

31. OTHER PAYABLES, ACCRUALS AND 31. Hn BN =IE - B EARE
DEPOSIT RECEIVED (continued) W& (&)
Notes: (continued) Htat: (&)
(b)  (continued) (b) (&)
Movements in contract liabilities SHEBENET
2019 2018
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-hEF —E—N\F
TET FAT
At 1 January n—H—H 13,247 43,253
Decrease in contract liabilities as SFAFVEYBENFERNER
a result of recognising revenue WAEERNEHEBRD
during the year that was included
in the contract liabilities at the
beginning of the year (2,620) (36,470)
Increase of receipts in advance B ETEURGRIE L N
from customers 36,820 1,575
Addition through acquisition FERWENBARRE
of subsidiaries - 7,131
Disposal of subsidiaries HENE AT (29,483) -
Exchange realignment [E B (703) (2,242)
At 31 December R+—A=+—8” 17,261 13,247
(©)  One of the subsidiaries of the Company entered into a (0 #HEZZ—N\F+-_A=+—8H1L

rental agreement with an independent third party to lease
its certain property, plant and equipment for a lease term
of 10 years during the year ended 31 December 2018.
Pursuant to the rental agreement, the independent third
party paid RMB4,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$4,554,000) to that subsidiary as a deposit. The deposit
is refundable at the end of the lease term. The effective
interest rate at 7.91% for imputed interest expense for
this deposit is determined based on the cost-of-funds of

that subsidiary per annum.
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HETYWE BEREE HEA10
FoREHERRE BUF=HEM
Z Mt B A A4 AR%4,000,0007T
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 B Z_—FT—hF+-_H=1+—HIFE

OTHER PAYABLES, ACCRUALS AND
DEPOSIT RECEIVED (continued)

Notes: (continued)

REMBRRWE

. HtENRIR B EARE

WizE ()
Wikt (&)

() (continued) (0 (#%&)
2019 2018
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-hEF —ET—-N\%F
FET FiHBT
At 1 January n—A—H 2,165 -
Deposit received BlEe - 4,554
Discount at inception (note 6) eI R E (fiate) - (2,458)
Unwinding of imputed interest HENS R (HE7)
(note 7) 174 72
Exchange realignment e 54, o 2 (40) 3)
At 31 December R+-—A=+—H 2,299 2,165
PROVISION FOR RECLAMATION . HEBERRE
OBLIGATIONS
2019 2018
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-hEF —E-N\F
FERT FAT
At 1 January Kn—H—H 100,164 99,480
Provision made during the year FAERE (F1:E8)

(note 8) 4,556 6,087
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 41) HEMB AR (Hat41) (78,908) -
Exchange realignment FE o, 3 B (1,811) (5,403)
At 31 December R+=ZRA=+—H 24,001 100,164

Provision for land restoration, environmental restoration
and safety costs pursuant to the relevant PRC regulations
and current mining activities are determined by
management based on their best estimates. However,
the estimate of the associated costs may be subject to
change in the near term in view of the effect of land and
the environment from current mining activities becomes
apparent in future periods. The amounts provided in
relation to restoration and safety costs are reviewed
regularly based upon the facts and circumstances
available at the time and the provisions are updated
accordingly.

RIFHARE P BIR O N3RS BRAB R TS P
EZLHER RRERMRLZEHA
ZBEREEERREEMGMERT -
A ENIREG 2 KBRS E L1 N
REFEZEERARRBEEFH
B HEERAZGRERERNSEA
BB BEHERRRENAZEER
BIRERAANEE REREHETTR
1 - WARRELD B BB -

BMEERZERERAR 2019FFH

179



180

v:'_

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2019 B Z_—FT—hF+-_H=1+—HIFE

33. LEASE LIABILITIES

The following table shows the remaining contractual
maturities of the Group's lease liabilities at the end of the
current and previous reporting periods and at the date of

transition to HKFRS 16:

33. HERE
TRETREMBERSHIANS
BEFEMBHREEAF 165 A HA
SEHEREZRGADIMA

31 December 2019 1 January 2019 (note) 31 December 2018 (note)
ZE-AETZB=1-H “E-N\5-A-H ZE5-\EtZA=t-A
(i) ()
Present Present Present
value of the Total  value of the Total  value of the Total
minimum minimum minimum minimum minimum minimum
ease ease lease lease lease lease
payments payments payments payments payments payments
HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
EERE BERE HERE HERE HERE HERE
fIFRE DEFE RS e A fzeE
TiEx TiEx Thn Thn Thn Thn
Within 1 year —£R 622 634 980 1,015 - -
After 1 year but within 2years ~ —EEBRAER 2 3 185 188 = =
After 2 years but within 5 years ~ FERBRRER 2 23 4 46 = =
665 630 1,209 1,249 - -
Less: total future interest expenses 5 : K KFI S B % 258 (15) (40) -
Present value of lease liabilities ~ EEEB(E 665 1,209 =
Note: ff it -

The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 using the modified
retrospective approach and adjusted the opening balances at
1 January 2019 to recognise lease liabilities relating to leases
which were previously classified as operating leases under HKAS
17. Comparative information as at 31 December 2018 has not
been restated. Further details on the impact of the transition to

HKFRS 16 are set out in note 2(b).
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LEASE LIABILITIES (continued) 33. HEAE®)
Amounts included in the consolidated statement of cash AAGERERERZHEESLERT
flows for leases comprise the following: PAR&IE -
2019 2018
HKS$'000 HK$'000
—B-AF  ZE-NF
FExT FETT
Current E
Within operating cash flows BREEHERE - 1,593
Within financing cash flows BERmEReRE 1,469 -
1,469 1,593
Note: it -
As explained in the note 2(b), the adoption of HKFRS 16 LN 5E2(b) AT il + BR 4R B 7 B 1S 3R A5 ZE
introduces a change in classification of cash flows of rentals paid F16HRERHECNHLNELREDLE
on leases. The comparative amounts have not been restated. EHEH otk RE I RKETY o
BANK AND OTHER LOANS 34. RITREMER
2019 2018
HKS$'000 HK$'000
—E-hEF —E—)N\F
FERT THTT
Current ?m@)
Bank loans (note (a)) RITER (KiF@)) 147,014 563,257
Other loans (note (b)) Hf@%“ (KizE®b)) - 198,943
147,014 762,200
Non-current 3E?m§iJ
Bank loans (note (a)) RITER (KaF@)) - 51,232
Other loans (note (b)) Hf@%“ (KizE®b)) - 27,132
- 78,364
147,014 840,564
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34. BANK AND OTHER LOANS (continued) 34. § HMERE)
Detail annual effective contractual interest rate and %%Hﬂ El’\] Eﬁ% SH4FEFERFEE B
maturity is as below: T
2019 2018
ZE-nE “3-)\F
Annual Annual
effective effective
contractual contractual
interest interest
rate (%) Maturity HK$'000 rate (%) Maturity HK$'000
E%ég‘} E o=} Aq
EFIE(%) L Tin EF1%(%) 55 Tin
Current ok
Secured BEE - - 330%-457%  ondemand 153,400
BREK
Secured Lpiig 6.50% - 12.52% 2020 145,420 5.87% - 8.00% 2019 295,715
S 3: ZE-NE
Unsecured i 1321%  ondemand 1,594 4.85%-1043%  on demand 170,774
BREX BREX
Unsecured BEA - - 1.20%-12.80% 2019 142,311
=y K3
147,014 762,200
Non-current £k
Secured AEHR - - 587%-800% 2020 -2021 78,364
2
ik St
147,014 840,564
Notes: Bk -
(@) As at 31 December 2019, bank loans were secured by (i) (@ RZZE—NF+=-_A=1+—H

certain of the Group’s right-of-use assets, (ii) buildings
located in the PRC which are owned by Henan Mintai Real
Estate Company Limited* (GIERZBEXAMR A A)
("Henan Mintai”), an entity incorporated in the PRC
which is beneficially owned and controlled by Mr. Zhang;
and (iii) bill receivables owned by a subsidiary of CIL, a
company which was disposed of on 30 December 2019
(note 41). Those bank loans were also guaranteed by (i)
Mr. Zhang, a substantial shareholder of the Company, (ii)
Henan Minan Real Estate Development Company Limited*
CIMRZEMERZEARAT) (“Henan Minan”), an
entity incorporated in the PRC which is beneficially owned
and controlled by Mr. Zhang, (iii) Henan Mintai, or (iv)
Major Supplier.

#  For identification purpose only
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34. BANK AND OTHER LOANS (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(a)

(b)

As at 31 December 2018, bank loans were secured by (i)
certain accounts receivable, (i) all mining rights, (iii) all
prepaid land lease payments, or (iv) certain bill receivables.
Those bank loans were also guaranteed by (i) Major
Customer, (ii) Mr. Bao, (iii) the spouse of Mr. Bao, (iv)
Major Supplier, (v) Mr. Zhang, an/or (vi) Henan Minan.

On 25 and 26 June 2018, the Group entered into
agreements with a financing company, an independent
third party, pursuant to which the Group has agreed
to transfer the ownership of certain machinery and
equipment under production of building materials (the
“Machinery and Equipment 1”) to the financing
company as disclosed in note 15, at an aggregate
consideration of approximately RMB169,660,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$193,140,000) and
lease back the Machinery and Equipment | for a period
of 1 year, subject to the terms and conditions of the
agreements. The transaction was completed in June
2018. The financing company will return the ownership
of the Machinery and Equipment | to the Group if all the
rental fee has been settled fully. Despite the agreements
involve a legal form of a lease, the Group accounted
for the agreements as collateralised loan according with
the actual substance of such agreements. This loan
was secured by stand by letter of credit issued by a
bank for RMB170,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$193,543,000). During the year ended 31 December
2019, such other loan was fully settled.

On 6 July 2017, the Group entered into an agreement
with another financing company, an independent
third party, pursuant to which the Group has agreed
to transfer the ownership of certain mining machinery
and equipment (the “Machinery and Equipment
II”) to the financing company as disclosed in note 15,
at a consideration of RMB30,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$34,155,000) and lease back the
Machinery and Equipment Il for a period of 3 years,
subject to the terms and conditions of the agreement. The
transaction was completed in July 2017. Upon discharging
all the Group’s obligations under the agreement, the
financing company will return the ownership of the
Machinery and Equipment Il to the Group for a nominal
amount of RMB1. Despite the agreement involves a legal
form of a lease, the Group accounted for the agreement
as collateralised loan according with the actual substance
of such agreement. On 30 December 2019, the Group
disposed of certain subsidiaries together with such other
loan and ceased to have obligation on such other loan.

34. RITREMERE)
BsE: (4)

(a)

R-ZE—NE+-A=+—0H 4§
TEFAGNS T RIBRF - (ihFTH
B (ira B LA EREA
H(iv)E TR EEIRF - 2 ERTT
BEFULOEERE (VBELE (i)E
SEZERB  (vEZHRER (VIRE
E RSy R TR

R-E—NENA-_+HHRK
“t+tABH AEEE-—HEHREA
Al (ABE=7) 3%
Bt AEBERESSETEE
EMABEREE ([HMERRE
—VNMEREETZRERA
(WM sE1SATIE) - BRE ALY
AR #169,660,0007T (HERL
193,140,000/ ) + I 16 B # 28
KB — R —F (RRRZB
EHER RGNS ZRHRNE
—NFARAEK-WAEHEEA
EREAEST BERARGHERE
B NHEEERETAEE-BRE
ZHESRAERNEEZEN  EBAR
SERBZEHENEL B
PIR A E R - ZERUBITER
LM AR #170,000,0007T (HE
R #9193,543,0005% 7T ) 2 B 1= B
BEER -HE-_ZTE—HhhFE+-A
=+—BLFE FHEHEMERE
BEET -

R-B—tFLARNBE AEEHH
S HEREAR(RBILE=77)
R —Dh#E Bl AKEER
ERAETREMSE L RE ([HE
ERE-I)NAEESET A
BRw (MM EISHKRE) KB
73 A\ R #30,000,0007T (HHE R4
34,155,000 7T ) » W 1H B 28 K &
w= BR=F (RERN&ZmHFEAF
BRIEN) - ZRHN_F—LF+
HEm EAREBERZGHEER T
BEEBETER ZBRERAKAA
REITHEESER BB LRE—
MARERETARE -BE M
WRAERMARLN BEAKER
B ) B AR % 5 Bk
REBER-R_FE—NEFE+ R
=tR AEEEHEETHER
FERZFHMIGER B TBHZ
SHMGERAEFEMEE-
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35. DEFERRED INCOME 35. IEZLEW A
2019 2018
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-NF —E-N\F
FExT FAT
Net carrying amount at 1 January R—A—BZ&EFE 3,928 -
Additions through acquisition of BRWERBEARRE
subsidiaries (note 40) (KtzE40) - 5,164
Amortisation for the year N (783) (1,115)
Exchange realignment FE 5, 3 & (57) (121)
Net carrying amount at 31 December R+ A=+—H ZEmFE 3,088 3,928
Less: current portion (included B mEIE S (Bt AEAM
in other payables and J& 1~ 518 K
accruals (note 31)) EstER (FaE31) ) (772) (786)
Non-current portion FEmENE S 2,316 3,142
The Group received government subsidies for capital REBEFFTEENS BEEE MR
expenditure incurred for the plant and machinery. The B AR X WENE T AL o Z A D R
amounts are deferred and amortised over the estimated BEERMGT A E B FEHRNELE & #
useful lives of the respective assets. 8 o
36. DEFERRED TAX 36. EERIE
As at 31 December 2019, all tax losses and deductible A—E—HE+_A=+—H E£E
temporary differences of the Group have no expiry IR B R SR - AN EEBE T A B IE e
dates under the current tax legislation except for the Ko A] $00RUET e 1 = 0 A ERER - —
tax losses amounting to approximately HK$110,649,000 FHEMHBAT(ZZE—N\F: =K
(2018: approximately HK$349,624,000) incurred by one fiiEE AR )EEMEFEA110,649,000
subsidiary (2018: three subsidiaries) in the PRC, which BI(ZZF—\F : 49349,624,0007%8
will expire after 5 years from the year in which the losses TO)RRIEEBRIN  ERRNERES
were incurred. The Group has taxable losses arising FERFTAFEREM AEERE S
in Hong Kong of approximately HK$818,000 (2018: EAERTEIE4818,0008 (=&
approximately HK$1,080,000). The unused tax losses — \4F : 491,080,000/ 7T ) K &) A
are subject to the approval by the respective local tax TMIBEEBES SIS PTHE -
authorities. Deferred tax assets have not been recognised B AR BETE ST AR R % A R » B 1t 1
in respect of these losses due to the unpredictability of ERZEBERRRLERIBEE -

future profits streams.
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36. DEFERRED TAX (continued) 36. IEIEMIE ()
Movement in deferred tax liabilities/(assets) during the FNELEHEBEEE (BE) 22800
year is as follows: T
Fair value
adjustments on
property, plant
and right-of-
Amortisation use assets (2018:
allowance on equipment,
mining rights for prepaid land
Impairment of  tax purpose in  lease payments)
mining rights ~ excess of related ~ and inventories  ECL on accounts
and property,  amortisation arising from the and bills
plantand  foraccounting  acquisition of  receivables and
equipment purpose subsidiaries  contract assets Others Total
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$:000 HK$'000 HK$:000
wE BER
RERERREE
(ZB-0§:
RE BT
AEBREMEN HEAKRE
REEBEERE  WERWELY  AEKEIR
REERYE (REAEHRE MELIRE  RBRANEE
BERRERE MmENEEEE) 2AVTEIR  CRBGEER -4 a3t
TEL TEL Tin T T T
At 1 January 2018 RZE-\E-A-H (31,908) 31,908 - - - -
Aditions through acquisition of ERKERBARNE (W)

subsidiaries (note 40) - - 2,719 - 400 3,119
Charged(credited) to profit or loss 33/ (&) Mg (Hit9)

(note 9) 1,005 (1,005) (509) (2,406) 219 (2,636)
Exchange realignment EiEE 1614 (1,614) 67) 97 (24) 6
At 31 December 2018 and 1 January 2019 R=E—-\E+-A=1—H

“E-NE-A-A (29,289) 29,289 2143 (2,309) 655 489
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 41) HERBAA (Mita1) 25263 (25,263) = = - -
(Credited)icharged to profit or loss (note 9) (&) /R AIEE (#29) = = (82) (3.874) 2 (3679
Exchange realignment ERAZ 4,006 (4,026) (36) 9 (16) Y]
At 31 December 2019 RZB-AE+=A=1-A - = 2,025 (6,089) 916 (3,148)
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36.

37.

DEFERRED TAX (continued)

As at 31 December 2019, deferred tax liabilities
amounted to approximately HK$2,519,000 (2018:
approximately HK$2,488,000) in respect of the aggregate
amount of temporary differences of approximately
HK$25,190,000 (2018: approximately HK$24,877,000)
associated with the undistributed earnings of certain of
the Group’s subsidiaries have not been recognised. No
deferred tax liabilities have been recognised in respect of
the differences because it is considered that the Group's
subsidiaries in the PRC will not pay any dividend to their
overseas holding companies in the foreseeable future
and the Group is in a position to control the dividend
policies of these subsidiaries and it is probable that such
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

36. IELEBIE (&)

R-ZFE—h&E+=-_A=+—H ¥k
HALEE THEBAR XD EAFE
B2 E R = B 48%84925,190,00078
To( =—ZF— )\ : #924,877,000% 7T )
T SR IR XE 77 18 B (& 492,519,000 7T

—ZT—\F : #)2,488,000/87T)°
AREEBRAELCREBEIARAE
EERFRZHBRARBRAERTR
15 RN [ /8 HME IR A R AR A%
B BAREBENEHZENBRARZ
BMERE BZSZERTEeRAIR
2 PR AR

SHARE CAPITAL 37. BR&
Number
Ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each of shares
‘000 HK$'000
BREEIBIZEBER i &vig: 2 4E|
T FATT
Authorised: ERE
At 1 January 2018, R_E-—NF—-—HA—8"
31 December 2018, —E—N\F+—_A=1+—8"
1 January 2019 and —FE-NF—H—BX
31 December 2019 —E—hEt+t=B=+—8H 30,000,000 3,000,000
Issued and fully paid: ERITRAR:
At 1 January 2018 R-FE—N\F—H—H 712,674 71,267
Shares issued in consideration for the FUREEKTEB A B MmEEITRERD
acquisition of subsidiaries (note (a)) (KtiE(a)) 127,500 12,750
Issuance of shares pursuant to the RIERESFBERTERG
subscriptions (note (b)) (Hfat(b)) 200,000 20,000
At 31 December 2018, R—E—N\E+=-HA=+—H-
1 January 2019 and —E-NF-—HA—BK
31 December 2019 —E-NAF+A=+—H 1,040,174 104,017

Rosan Resources Holdings Limited Annual Report 2019
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37. SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

Notes:

(a)

(b)

Pursuant to the SPA (as defined in note 40) in relation
to the acquisition of the entire equity interest in Goal
Getter, the Company had issued 127,500,000 new
ordinary shares at a market price of HK$0.151 at the
date of issuance for settlement of the consideration. The
fair value of the consideration at the date of acquisition
was approximately to HK$19,253,000, out of which
approximately HK$12,750,000 and HK$6,503,000 were
recorded in share capital and share premium account
respectively. Further details are set out in the note 40.

Pursuant to the two subscription agreements dated 31
October 2017 entered into between 1) the Company
and Retop International Investment Limited, a company
which is wholly owned by Mr. Bao, a substantial
shareholder of the Company during the years and was
appointed as an Executive Director subsequent to 31
December 2019; and 2) the Company and Mr. Li, an
Executive Director and a shareholder of the Company,
respectively (the “Subscription Agreements”), in
which Retop International Investment Limited and Mr.
Li had conditionally agreed to subscribe for and the
Company had conditionally agreed to allot and issue of
an aggregate of 100,000,000 new ordinary shares to
Retop International Investment Limited and an aggregate
of 100,000,000 new ordinary shares to Mr. Li at the
subscription price of HK$0.20 per share respectively. Part
of the proceeds of HK$20,000,000 were received before
31 December 2017 and recognised as other reserves as
at 31 December 2017 (note 38(a)(iii)). The remaining
proceeds of HK$20,000,000 were received on 3 January
2018.

The proceeds of HK$40,000,000 over the nominal value
of HK$20,000,000 was credited to the share premium
account. All of the conditions precedent set out in
the Subscription Agreements had been fulfilled and
the subscriptions were completed on 3 January 2018.
For details, please refer to the announcements of the
Company dated 13 October 2017, 18 October 2017 and 3
January 2018, and the circular of the Company dated 28
November 2017.

37. RA& (&)

Hizt -

(a)

BREEARBESEZTIRAERS
2 BEEHE(EERWE40) - K
ARBRESTHEZEME0.151)8
JC 3 17127,500,0000% 37 & 38 A
RAUAEERE-RIERBRREZ
A F{E 419,253,000/ T HAF 4
12,750,0007% 7T f2 #496,503,000/% 7T
DR ERBRARKR G BEIRE -
#— R B E N M FE40 ©

RIFENAR R B E I E R IR E B R
AR (ABREE (FRAEARREE
BRERER-_E—NAF+_A=1+—
HEEZTEANTTES) 2EH
) R2)ARBEEFLAE (KARQF]
WMITEZEREE) D BIFI LA B H
ABZE—tF+A=+—HHNRM
RED®E ([RBHE])  HAEE
SEERATHEFEEDBIKER
EREMARAEEKERES A
i 2% K 3174 #£100,000,000% #7 &
BRTHABEBREEER ARG
$£100,000,000% 7 & @ A% F 2 %
4 REBEASRR0.20/8 T - 5 FT
53 3820,000,0008 TR —F—+
F+_A=+—HKIIEIR=_F
—tF+-_A=t—HERAEHEM
o fi (BT &E38(a)(ii)) < 88 T FT 15 3K
1620,000,0008 L E RN =T — \4F
—A=B%E-

Fff 18 2L 1840,000,0007% 7T A H E &
20,000,000/ T B #B B 5 AR D
i B BR o SR B W AR FTEFT B o R 1R
HEEK REBESER-_Z—/\F
— A=K -FBEFLEARA
BEEA=-T—+tF+A+=H =
Z—+tF+A+NBR=ZZF—NF
—AZBZRAEURAAGT R A
—E2—+tF+—RAR=Z+ N \HZHE
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38. DEFICIT IN RESERVES
(a) Group

The

amounts of the Group’s reserves and the

movements therein for the current and prior years
are presented in the consolidated statement of
changes in equity of the consolidated financial
statements.

(i)

(i)

(iii)

Share premium

Share premium account of the Group includes
the premium arising from issue of shares of
the Company at a premium.

Capital redemption reserve

Capital redemption reserve arose from
the purchase of the Company's share for
cancellation and represents a transfer from
the Company’s retained profits equivalent to
the nominal value of the shares purchased for
cancellation.

Other reserves
Production maintenance fee and safety fund

Pursuant to regulations in the PRC, certain
subsidiaries of the Group were required to
make a transfer of production maintenance
fee and safety fund to other reserves based on
fixed amounts per tonne of raw coal mined
(net of usage). According to the relevant
regulations, production maintenance fee,
safety fund and other expense of similar
nature are required to be charged to cost
of production and credited to reserve.
Accordingly, the related funds are appropriated
from accumulated losses. The reserve can
be utilised for improvements of safety on
production.
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38. DEFICIT IN RESERVES (continued)
(@) Group (continued)

38. R A (&E)
(a) XEE(E)
(iii) BEbiE (&)

(iii) Other reserves (continued)

Fair value reserve (non-recycling)

The Group and its associate designated their
equity securities at FVTOCI (non-recycling), as
the investment is held for strategic purposes.

The fair value reserve (non-recycling) includes
accumulated gains and losses arising on the
revaluation of financial assets at FVTOCI of
the Group and its associate that have been
recognised in OCIl. On 30 December 2019, the
Group disposed of certain subsidiaries together
with the interests in associates and these
equity securities at FVTOCI. The balance of fair
value reserve was transferred to accumulated
losses upon the disposal.

Cash advanced for the subscription of
ordinary shares of the Company

Deposit of approximately HK$20,000,000
was received before 31 December 2017 from
Retop International Investment Limited, an
entity indirectly wholly-owned by Mr. Bao,
for the subscription of ordinary shares of
the Company which was completed on 3
January 2018. Substantive conditions including
approval from shareholders of the Company
were satisfied before 31 December 2017 and
hence the amount was recognised in equity
under other reserves as at 31 December 2017.
The deposit was transferred to “share capital”
and “share premium” when the relevant
shares were issued on 3 January 2018 (note
37(b)).

NFEREE (1T 2)8)
ANEE R HE SRR E
HRAEFRDFERTA
Hfb 2 m WA 3
B) ARZRERFER
HABKEE A Y

NEEREE(TA 8 )R
BAEERHEBL QAR
AEEFAEMEERRES
BEHTEEREENEL
MRS RER 252
BEEERNEMLEES WG
FHER - R NFt+=
A=+H A&EBELHES
FHBRARERRE LR
Rz ETRZEEREATE
FFAE A 2 a2 B AR
BH - NTEBEBEZEHE
R EREREREE -

REEA N A EERZ AT
He

% & #920,000,0007% 7T T3
R=ZZT—+tF+ = A
=+ —BAIRREARRQR]
BN -_Z=—N\F—A
= HZERK) R Inth BRI E
ERAG(BEERERZE
BEEMNER) KR -BEE T
& (B IR A QA AR R it
EIER-_E—+E+—-A
=+—BAEK - AR
EHREBER-ZZE—+tF+=
AR=+—H®EMEER
RESTER RSB EAARK
MR_E—N\F—H=H
BITREAIRA] R
158 J(KIaE37(b)) >
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38. DEFICIT IN RESERVES (continued)

(@) Group (continued)

(iii) Other reserves (continued)

Deemed capital contribution from
shareholders

During the year ended 31 December
2018, loans of aggregated amount of
RMB80,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$99,480,000) were advanced from
the shareholders of the Company. These
shareholders’ loans are unsecured, interest-free
and will be repayable in full within 36 months
since the drawdown date. These shareholders’
loans are discounted as detailed in note 30(b).
The difference between the principal amount
and discounted amount at the drawdown date
was deemed as capital contribution from the
shareholders to the Company and recognised
in other reserves.

During the year ended 31 December 2019,
the Group entered into the share purchase
agreement to dispose of its entire equity
interest in the CIL Group at a consideration
of US$200 (equivalent to approximately
HK$2,000) to Right Success Investments
Limited, a limited liability company
incorporated in the BVI wholly-owned by Mr.
Bao, who is a substantial shareholder of the
Company during the years and was appointed
as an Executive Director subsequent to 31
December 2019. The amount of approximately
HK$184,319,000 was recognised as deemed
capital contribution from the shareholder and
recognised under other reserves (note 41).
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38. DEFICIT IN RESERVES (continued)
(@) Group (continued)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

Contributed surplus

Contributed surplus of the Group arose as a
result of (i) the Group reorganisation in 1997
and represents the difference between the
nominal value of the Company’s shares issued
under the reorganisation scheme and the
nominal value of the aggregate share capital
of the subsidiaries then acquired; (ii) the
Group reorganisation in 2007 and represents
the reduction of capital of HK$64,137,000
pursuant to a special resolution passed
on 1 November 2007; and (iii) the Group
reorganisation in 2012 and represents the
reduction of capital of HK$641,407,000
pursuant to a special resolution.

Exchange fluctuation reserve

The exchange fluctuation reserve comprises
all foreign exchange differences arising from
the translation of the financial statements of
foreign operations. The reserve is dealt with
in accordance with the accounting policies set
out in note 3.6.

Capital reserve

The capital reserve arose from the
capitalisation of retained profits of a PRC
subsidiary.

(vii) Statutory reserve fund

In accordance with the relevant PRC
regulations, the Group’s PRC subsidiaries are
required, at the discretion of their directors,
to appropriate a certain percentage of
their profit after tax, if any, to the statutory
reserve fund for the future development and
capital expenditure on staff welfare facilities
purposes.

38. R All(47)
(a) A&KE(H)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

A BB

AEBEZHAABTIERR
IWR—hhtFETZE
BlE=4 - JisiREEATE
ARRZEBITRMOEE
3 A7 Uk B8 B /BB A B) Z AR AR
BHEEZEZE (N _Z
TLFHETZAEEE
M THERE T LF
+—A—BRAZERR
& TR BE 4864,137,000
B RNRZE——F
EITZAEBEEAR  JHER
BRE R RZEZRR DR
641,407,000 7T, °

E 5B #E
EXRLRBREEHEERERRE
8 N SR T B 7 R 1 A A
HFTBE 5 Z 58 - X B IR
R 3.6 M E AT R
BRI o

EXEE
BEAREETBER—FEF
Bt A B AR BB A E AR
{fEmEL -

HEEREE
RIEBBEREER  A&E
RPBEZHBRRALEE
EMBERBRT  AGER
B M(mA ) 2E T
BB REELTEEZUER
BEBERZA  RERFHZIA
B TA&FIRME < -
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38. DEFICIT IN RESERVES (continued)

38

. et Al ()

(b) Company (b) A7
Capital
Share redemption Other Accumulated  Deficit in
premium reserve reserve losses reserves
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
EXER
A3 5 E fife HRE  RHER  REF4Y
TAT TAT TAL TAT TAL
At 1 January 2018 R-Z-\F-A—H 235,334 50 20,000 (330,333) (74,949)
Loss and total comprehensive FERNEERZABEER
loss for the year = = = (26,936) (26,936)
Shares issued in consideration for HUENBARMETRE
the acquisition of subsidiaries  JR1) (A7£37(a) R40)
(notes 37(a) and 40) 6,503 - - - 6,503
Issuance of shares pursuant REZBSZEETRG
to the subscriptions (B :£37(b) % 38(a) i)
(notes 37(b) and 38(a)(iii)) 20,000 - (20,000) - -
At 31 December 2018 and RZE-N\F
1 January 2019 +ZA=+-Ak
“Z-N&-F—H 261,837 50 - (357,269) (95,382)
Loss and total comprehensive loss FREERR 2 EERLEE
for the year - - - (11,397) (11,397)
At 31 December 2019 R-E-h&E+-RA=1+-H 261,837 50 - (368,666) (106,779)
39. NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS 39. FIERER

As at 31 December 2018, Jinfeng, a 90% owned
subsidiary of the Company, and Xingan, a 51% owned
subsidiary of the Company, have material non-controlling
interests (“NCI”). On 30 December 2019, NCI of Jinfeng
and its certain subsidiaries have been disposed of. As at
31 December 2019, Xiangyang, a 90% owned subsidiary
of the Company, and Xingan have material NCI. The NCI
of all other subsidiaries that are not 100% owned by the
Group are considered to be immaterial.
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39. NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS (continued)

(a) Xiangyang (a)
Summarised financial information in relation to
Xiangyang for the year ended 31 December 2019,
before intra-group eliminations, is presented below:

39. FEERER(F)

@ &
E@ERBEE—_ZT—NF+=A
=T —HBIEFEZHBERR
S E AP T FE S8 AT ) 8Tt 40
™

HK$’000
FExT

As at 31 December 2019 R=F—-hE+=HA=+—H
NCI percentage ERERB DL 10%
Current assets MEEE 56,337
Non-current assets IERBEE 135,846
Current liabilities mEEE (473,880)
Non-current liabilities ERBAGE (57,235)
Net liabilities BEFEE (338,932)

Accumulated balance of NCI

For the year ended 31 December 2019

Revenue
Loss for the year
Loss allocated to NCI

Cash flows from operating activities
Cash flows from investing activities
Cash flows from financing activities

Net cash inflows

RS 2 BT AR

(33,893)

BE-ZE—N&F

+=ZA=+—HILEE

g =5 96,709
FREIE (65,050)
DA E IR RE RS 1R (6,505)
KEEYH R RE 623
KEEZH RERE (1,355)
ME RS zEeRE 1,616
BERNFE 884

As Xiangyang was one of the subsidiaries of Jinfeng
and its financial information for the year ended 31
December 2018, before intra-group eliminations,
is presented in note 39(c). After the reorganisation
before the disposal of the CIL Group, Xianyang is
no longer a subsidiary of Jinfeng. Therefore, the
financial information of Xiangyang for the year
ended 31 December 2019 is separately disclosed.

mRAE AL ZHEBAR RE
REZEZT—\F+ZA=*+—
BIEFEZHBER(SEB A
N A HEE A 25 R MR
39(c)e REBAZENEALEE
ZH - AETEAESLEZHEBA
AleA MEBEREBEE=ZT—N
F+-_A=Z1+—BHULFEZHH
B EBHE-
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39. NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS (continued)
(b) Xingan

Summarised financial information in relation to
Xingan from 3 January 2018 (date of acquisition
of Xingan) to 31 December 2018 and for the year
ended 31 December 2019, before intra-group

eliminations, is presented below:

39. FERER(F)
(b) ®Z

BT T — N\F—H=H
(KWEEZHB)ZE=_F—N\F
+—A=+—HBKkEBEE-_ZT—H
F+-A=+—BUHFEZHE
ERH(REB R T R AT
Batian T

2019 2018
HKS$'000 HK$'000
—E-NEF —E-N\F
FExT AT
As at 31 December R+=—A=+—8H
NCI percentage B EE B DL 49% 49%
Current assets MBEE 89,242 297,805
Non-current assets JEMENEE 243,294 262,871
Current liabilities mENBE (281,480) (452,287)
Non-current liabilities EREEE (6,961) (59,417)
Net assets EEFHE 44,095 48,972
Accumulated balance of NCI IR 2 REH & 21,607 23,996
For the year/period ended BEZ+=-A=+—H
31 December IHEE HE
Revenue W 25 225,761 198,008
(Loss)/profit for the year/period FRNHA(BER), & T (4,077) 8,536
(Loss)/profit allocated to NCI DR EIEE IR =
(EB#8) &= F (1,998) 4,182
Cash flows from operating KETH RS RE
activities (5,086) (78,347)
Cash flows from investing REEH RERE
activities (2,861) (17,919)
Cash flows from financing MEEHZIRER=E
activities (187,429) 275,390
Net cash (outflows)/infows Be (FRd)  FRAFEE (195,376) 179,124
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39. NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS (continued)

(c)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2019 &=

Jinfeng and its subsidiaries

REMBRRHE

—E-NFT_A=1+—HIEFE

39. FFERER(E)
() SBRHKEA

Summarised financial information in relation to HE-_E—N\E+t=-B=+—H
Jinfeng and its subsidiaries for the year ended 31 HFEEREcLERENBARZ
December 2018, before intra-group eliminations, is AR (REB R IR A
presented below: SHAT) BT

HK$'000

FHET

As at 31 December 2018 . )\$+:HE+—EI
NCI percentage FERERB DL 10%
Current assets mENE E 992,393
Non-current assets IERBEE 596,199
Current liabilities mEIEE (2,337,946)
Non-current liabilities ERFBEE (41,772)
Net liabilities BEFE (791,126)

Accumulated balance of NCI

For the year ended 31 December 2018

Revenue

Loss for the year

Loss allocated to NCI

Cash flows from operating activities
Cash flows from investing activities
Cash flows from financing activities

Net cash outflows

IV e 2 RET AR (82,839)

HE2—_2—\F+-_A=+—H

As at 31 December 2019, there is no NCI of Jinfeng
and its subsidiaries, which was disposed of together
with the CIL Group. The financial information of
Jinfeng and its subsidiaries for the year ended 31
December 2019 is not presented.

I3
Y & 751,057
M5  (132,559)
B E SRS 2 A a3
REEHZREME 81,373
REEHZREME (10,768)
BEEHIRERE  (214,899)
WEmEFE (144,294)
—n¢+:ﬂz+—a-

EREMBRR(EER
ClLEIﬁE)Z#? Pt
EREMBRRREBE—T N
Ft-A=+—BILFEZMK
BERAEET -
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40. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES

Pursuant to the sale and purchase agreement (“SPA")
dated 13 October 2017 entered into between the
Company and an independent third party, the Group
acquired all the equity interest in Goal Getter, together
with its subsidiaries (collectively the “Goal Getter
Group”) (the “Acquisition”). The nominal consideration
for the Acquisition of HK$25,500,000 was settled in
form of the allotment and issue of an aggregate of
127,500,000 new ordinary shares of the Company.

The Goal Getter Group is principally engaged in
production and sale of building materials, of which all
of its operations are carried out by Xingan, a subsidiary
which 51% is held by the Goal Getter Group.

The directors of the Company considered that the
Acquisition allows the Group to explore a new income
steam, diversify the Group’s business segments to engage
in the production and sale of building materials and
improve the Group's revenue and results.

The Acquisition was completed on 3 January 2018.
The fair value of consideration of approximately
HK$19,253,000 for 127,500,000 new ordinary shares
of the Company at the issue date was determined by
reference to the closing market price of the shares of the
Company at HK$0.151 per share at the issue date which
was also the date of completion of the Acquisition on 3
January 2018.

Rosan Resources Holdings Limited Annual Report 2019

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e R WK M

For the year ended 31 December 2019 EZ_—F—NWF+_-_H=1—HIFE

40. WEME LD 7

BIEARNGE—BBLE =R
—mARAEZT—tF+A+=02
EEm=((EEHE]) ~EEE K
BUEBSEZE(EREMNBARRBEIE
EEE N IRE(NKEBEE])-

I B8 = 18 2 & % X {825,500,0007%
JL ' B AR E K 3174 127,500,000

BARRFERRN ST NEE -

SEEBTEREEMEERBEE
BEFEESYREZT(REEEER
B51%MEm 2 HEB AR )EIT

ARAEZER R WEERASAE
EREFTWALR EAREELER
MOEERHEEERBOBLZ T A
HEAREEN N RAE

WEEER_ZE—N\NEFE—HA=H%E
X > 127,500,0000% 7K A &) ¥ I 8 I
RETHEHORERAFEAEY
19,253,000/ L 2 & AR 5] iR 15 Y 3
THBE(MAKBEEEEKABR-Z
—NE—A=ZH)WKTESH0.151
BILETE °
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40. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

40. WEMEB QT (&)

As at
3 January
2018
HK$'000
R-ZB-N\#F
—H—H
FH&ET
Assets acquired and liabilities assumed at the RUWEBHE  FINBEENMIAEARE
date of the Acquisition are as follows: R
Property, plant and equipment (note 15) M BB KRR (FaE15) 207,400
Prepaid land lease payments (note 16) AR+ AR ERRIE (Kt 16) 71,530
Inventories FE 9,682
Accounts and bills receivables and contract JEWEBRE R R BEE RN EEFE
assets, net (note (a)) (KtaE(a)) 49,448
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables Bt 518 - & & H fh fE I 18
(note (b)) (KtaE b)) 10,041
Cash and cash equivalents RekAELEMEER 19,586
Accounts and bills payables FE T BR B R B IR (62,709)
Other payables and accruals HMERNRIERETER (104,034)
Amount due to a related party JET — R BEE A TR (103,070)
Bank and other loans H|ITREMER (47,060)
Deferred income (note 35) EEW A (HaE35) (5,164)
Deferred tax liabilities (note 36) B IARE (fat36) (3,119)
Total identifiable net assets at fair value AHAEEFERE EKRFE 42,531
Non-controlling interests (note (c)) FEVERR R (MaE () (20,649)
Bargain purchase arising from the Acquisition WEEEHEEAZHEBE (A7)
(note (d)) (2,629)
19,253

Fair value of consideration shares

Acquisition-related costs (included in
administrative expenses for the year ended
31 December 2018)

Analysis of net cash inflows arising on the
Acquisition:

Consideration paid by cash

less: Cash and cash equivalents acquired

REBRD 2 AFE 19,253

HIWEEBRAGRAMNKA (GFARRE
B \FT+ZA=+—RHIFE

1T ) 3,112

RKBERRELNRSREFH

AT
NIRRT HHRE —
BOBEESERERBEEEEY 19,586
19,586
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40. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Notes:

(a)

(b)

(0

(d)

The

The gross contractual undiscounted balances amounted
to approximately HK$56,133,000. The fair values of these
accounts and bills receivables and contract assets at the
acquisition date were estimated to be approximately
HK$49,448,000, based on an assessment of the expected
credit risks of the balances. The fair values include
allowance of expected credit loss of approximately
HK$6,685,000, which is estimated based on the
estimated credit risk of the debtors, over the expected
life of the debtors and are adjusted with forward-looking
information that is available without undue cost or effort.

The gross contractual undiscounted balances of deposits
and other receivables amounted to HK$4,581,000. The
fair values of these deposits and other receivables at the
acquisition date were estimated to be HK$4,581,000,
based on an assessment of the expected credit risks of
the balances, which is estimated based on the estimated
credit risk of the debtors, over the expected life of the
debtors and are adjusted forward-looking information that
is available without undue cost or effort.

The non-controlling interests which represent 49% equity
interest in Xingan recognised at the acquisition date were
measured at the non-controlling interests’ proportionate
share of the identifiable net assets of Xingan at the
acquisition date.

The nominal consideration and the nominal issue price
for the Acquisition of HK$0.2 per consideration share
were determined after an arm’s length negotiation made
between the Group and independent third party at the
time when the agreement was entered into. The major
contributing factor to the gain on bargain purchase arising
from the Acquisition was the effect arising from the
nominal issue price determined at premium compare to
the market price at the agreement date and acquisition
date.

acquired business contributed revenue of

approximately HK$198,008,000 and net profit of
approximately HK$7,829,000 for the period from 3
January 2018 to 31 December 2018. If the acquisition
had occurred on 1 January 2018, there are no material
difference in the consolidated revenue and consolidated
loss of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2018.
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ESEATUENKANE DEIH
HEMEERMEL AR

(b) HERHEMERFBENELRITR
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41. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES

On 3 May 2019, the Group entered into the share
purchase agreement (including three supplemental
agreements) to dispose of its entire equity interest in
CIL and its subsidiaries after reorganisation (collectively
known as the CIL Group), with a consideration of
US$200 (equivalent to approximately HK$2,000) to
Right Success Investments Limited, a limited liability
company incorporated in the BVI with its entire issued
share capital owned by Mr. Bao, being the substantial
shareholder of the Company during the year. All the
conditions precedent set out in the share purchase
agreement had been fulfilled and the disposal was
completed on 30 December 2019. For details, please
refer to the announcements of the Company dated 3
May 2019, 27 May 2019, 28 June 2019, 30 July 2019,
5 August 2019, 30 August 2019, 16 September 2019,
30 September 2019, 31 October 2019, 14 November
2019, 25 November 2019, 12 December 2019 and 30
December 2019, and the circular of the Company dated
25 November 2019.

41.

HEME A F
R-ZE—-NFRA=H KEBIIL
BhinE(BRER=_OBRHERE) U
EHRALREMB AR (EHAR)(H
B ARCILE B ) 2 & &6 I # FRight
Success Investments Limited (— R
BREZESHMKZINER A A H
FHEBITRABARTRFRNLZE
ERRBEEHEE) RERK200ET
(FEE R 492,000 7T ) - B8 % & Pk
T B DR GHEERN R HETER
—E-NFF+_A=THEK-EH
HE B2HARRBHAEZZT—AN
FRAZB —E—NAFRHA=-tt
H-—Z—AFE~A-+/\H - =%
—NF+tA=+H ZF—hF/\H
AFR-ZFE-NAFNA=+H - =%
—AERA+ B -ZEE—hEHLA
=+tH-ZE—-—AF+A=+—8"
—E2-NF+—At+HEBA-ZE—AN
F+—A-+EHB —Z—h&FE+=
At+ZBE=ZFT—-—NF+ZHA=TH
ZREANRARABHE A -ZT—LF
+—A-+HRBZBEK-
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41. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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41. HEMB AT (&)

The net carrying amounts of assets/(liabilities) of the CIL RHEZEEKBH  CQILEBEE,/
Group as at the completion date of the disposal are as (BE)ZEmFENT :
follows:
HK$000
FHET
Property, plant and equipment (note 15) M - B MR (HTat15) 154,988
Goodwill (note 18) e (fE18) -
Mining rights (note 19) RuERE (Mfat19) 118,079
Other intangible assets (note 21) Hihma & (ffat21) —
Interests in associates NN E 77,198
Interest in a joint venture R—EEEDE I ER 5,892
Financial assets at FVTOCI (note 45(f)) BAFEFTAEMERMENEEE
(KzE45(f)) 670
Inventories FE 1,103
Accounts and bills receivables FEUW AR R R 1R 481,222
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables B 7K1 « 12 & I E th fE Uk 3B 367,218
Tax recoverable BEEEA 2,475
Pledged and restricted bank deposits B R X R I SRITIE K 225,321
Cash and cash equivalents RekREFEHIEHR 22,541
Accounts and bills payables FERBRR R EE (358,522)
Amount due to an associate J& < — [ETHSE & A RISRIE (14,385)
Amounts due to shareholders &I AR SR FIE (33,887)
Other payables and accruals H fth e /I8 R BT E A (648,379)
Provision for reclamation obligations (note 32) BAZRE A& (A1a£32) (78,908)
Bank and other loans RITREMER (521,304)
Deferred tax liabilities (note 36) EEF A& E(KE36) -
Net liabilities disposed of EHE8EFE (198,678)
Non-controlling interests PR RE 2 72,933
Cumulative exchange differences recognised MELENBAR BEFHEER R
in respect of the net liabilities of the FTER ZR
disposed subsidiaries (60,483)
Direct expenses in relation to the disposal HEHEFEHZEEMRX 1,911
Consideration offset with amount due to a LA E A~ B R F IR SR (B
shareholder (2)
Deemed capital contribution from a substantial —&*EREEETE (H1aF)
shareholder (note) (184,319)

Net cash outflow arising on disposal
Direct expenses paid
Cash and cash equivalents disposed of

Net cash outflow arising on disposal

Note:

The deemed capital contribution by Mr. Bao was recognised
under “other reserves” in the consolidated statement of
changes in equity for the year ended 31 December 2019.
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42. COMMITMENTS

(a)

(b)

Capital commitment

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had the
following capital commitments:

42, EEH

(a)

BAREE
R-—ZE—hE+=-_A=+—8"
REBBUATERER :

2019 2018
HK$'000 HK$'000
—B-hAE —E-NF
FHT FAET
Capital expenditure contracted but B ET4MERBHNE R :
not provided for:
Acquisition of property, plant WHEI 2 - B KRR
and equipment 103 4,091

In addition, registered capital of Tairun is
RMB20,000,000, of which RMB10,300,000
(2018: RMB10,000,000) has been paid-up as at
31 December 2019. The Group committed at 31
December 2019 to further invest in Tairun, an
indirectly owned subsidiary in which the Group has
60% equity interest, amounting to RMB6,000,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$6,712,000)
(2018: RMB6,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$6,831,000)).

Operating lease commitments
The Group as lessee

At 31 December 2018, the Group had minimum
outstanding commitments under non-cancellable
operating leases in respect of land and properties
which fall due as follows:—

(b)

SEAN  FEREMERABARE
20,000,000 E B A R ¥
10,300,000 (= — \4F : A
R #10,000,00070) R - — A
F+-A=1+—HEHRE -&&
ER=FE—NF+=-A=+—H
EFEE—SRERAEE
B0%RENMNBARRE €
% 4 A R#6,000,0007T (FHE R
#16,712,0008 Tt (=T — N\
F : AR¥6,000,0007T (FHER
#76,831,000/ 7T ) )

RS ERE
KEBELAHEA
R-_ZE—N\FE+-_A=+—8"
REBRBEITRGECEHES
70 B+ R ¥ v IR KME
BAEEROT - —

2018
HK$'000
—F-N\F
TAT

—FR

Within one year
In the second to fifth years inclusive

F_EFLF(BREREME)

1,022
177

1,199
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42. COMMITMENTS (continued)

(b) Operating lease commitments (continued)

The Group as lessee (continued)

The Group leases certain properties under operating
leases. The leases run for an initial period of one to
ten years, without option to renew the lease term at
expiry date. None of the lease includes contingent
rentals.

The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 using
the modified retrospective approach. Under
this approach, the Group adjusted the opening
balances at 1 January 2019 to recognise lease
liabilities relating to these leases (note 2(b)). From
1 January 2019 onwards, future lease payments are
recognised as lease liabilities in the consolidated
statement of financial position in accordance with
the policies set out in note 3.13, and the details
regarding the Group’s future lease payments are
disclosed in note 33.

As at 31 December 2019, total future minimum
lease receivables under non-cancellable operating
leases in respect of certain right-of-use assets (2018:
prepaid land lease payments) and property, plant
and equipment by the Group are as follows:
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42, FE (&)

(b)

REHEERR(E)
FrEBEBEMEANE)
AEERBEEENVHEES TY
X -HOZREHONIRE—ZE
TE REMBENAERZEELD-
HAMESRAEE -

AEBECRAKETEWEER
FERE B mEERFE 1655 -
RBHTE AEEHAE-F
—NE—A—BMEBELR A
fEREZSHERBNEERE
(FfsE2(b))- B = —NF— A
— B REEENFKREM
3I3FTEZ BRI 4R A B F5iR 0L
rERSHERAG ARAKHE
R & K9 R 15 70 M 5E33
W -

R-B-NAF+-RA=+—8H"
AEERETEREEE(ZE
— )\ : B EEFIE) R
YE - BE R REH R REER
EHERARRRIETHE & WA
I

2019 2018

HK$'000 HK$'000

—E-NF —ZE-N\F

FTHET FHET

Within one year —FRN 3,483 3,462
In the second to fifth years inclusive £ _ZFRF(BREEHEMFE) 13,932 13,847
After five years hF& 12,772 16,155
30,187 33,464

The Group leases its properties and aluminum
boundary wall moulds under operating leases. The
lease runs for an initial period from one year to ten
years (2018: ten years), without option to renew the
lease term at expiry date. The lease does not include
contingent rentals.
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43. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

In addition to the transactions and balances disclosed
elsewhere in the consolidated financial statements, the
Group had the following material transactions with
related parties during the year:

43. BEAETR S
RSN BHRELMBOFIBES X
SRESIN REBBEBEATRE
NERTEARS

(a) Compensation of key management (a) TEEEAEZEHE
personnel
2019 2018
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-hEF —E-N\F
FET FBIT
Short-term benefits: MHAfE A -
Fees, salaries, allowances and e Fre EMEREMAE
other benefits in kind WS 4,757 5,567
Post-employment benefits: BERL R A
Retirement benefit RIKEFFT B
scheme contributions 14 36
4,771 5,603
(b) Financing arrangement (b) BEZHE

Details of amount advanced from and interest-
free loans advanced from shareholders and family
member of Mr. Bao are disclosed in notes 30 and
31.

Details of guarantees provided by Mr. Zhang and
companies controlled by him, Mr. Bao and his
spouse are disclosed in the note 34.

(c) Disposal of subsidiaries

Details of the disposal of subsidiaries to a company
wholly-owned and controlled by Mr. Bao are
disclosed in the note 41.

IR N B R EERK B IRIER
FEREENBER R EEERFE
P30 %314 EE -

RREEREFMEHNAR 8
S REEBREE ZBRFER
P 34455

(© HEWBAT
HERBART AL ERE
] 2 A 7 2 FES B W Eat
B -
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44, SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES BY CATEGORY

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial assets and
liabilities recognised as at 31 December 2019 and 2018
are categorised as follows. See notes 3.14 and 3.15
for explanations about how the category of financial
instruments affects their subsequent measurement.

44. BERMO 2 EMEER TR

BEME
AEBR_ZTE—NLEFER_TE—NF
+- A=+ HERZEREEKE
ERMEMAIE TN ARNETOE-
ERemI AN BN EHEHE
2 BRRE - E2RMITE3.14%3.15 °

2019 2018
HKS$'000 HK$'000
—E-hEF —ET-N\F
FET FET
Financial assets eREE
Financial assets at FVTOCI BEAFEFARMEEKENS
BEE - 682
Financial assets at amortised cost REHEK AT EZ ERMEE
— Accounts and bills receivables —BUER R EBERENEE
and contract assets 96,249 454,569
— Deposits and other receivables — ke R E bW RIE 15,779 14,373
— Pledged and restricted — BERRZREIFRITER
bank deposits - 656,651
— Cash and cash equivalents —IRe MREEEIER 15,904 35,789
127,932 1,162,064
Financial liabilities Eal=h=Ri
Financial liabilities at amortised cost (RS AT B2 SR AE
— Accounts and bills payables —ENERRER 32,456 658,132
- Amount due to an associate — BT — & & A R FRIE - 14,640
— Amounts due to and loans — RS EIE R RE R R E
from shareholders TR 58,572 63,626
— Other payables, accruals —HMENTIE Bt ER K
and deposit received B Wik % 334,934 527,906
— Lease liabilities —HEAE 665 -
- Bank and other loans —RIT R EMER 147,014 840,564
573,641 2,104,868
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45. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR

VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The Group is exposed to a variety of financial risks which
results from both its operating and investing activities.
The Group does not have written risk management
policies and guidelines. However, the directors of the
Company meet periodically to analyse and formulate
strategies to manage the Group's exposure to market
risks, including changes in interest rates and currency
exchange rates. Generally, the Group introduces
conservative strategies on its risk management. The
Group’s exposure to market risk is kept to minimum. The
Group has not used any derivatives or other instruments
for hedging purposes. The Group does not issue
derivative financial instruments for trading purposes.

(@) Credit risk and impairment assessment
Risk management

Credit risk refers to the risk that the counterparty
to a financial instrument would fail to discharge
its obligation under the terms of the financial
instrument and cause a financial loss to the Group.
The Group’s exposure to credit risk mainly arises
from granting credit to customers in the ordinary
course of its operations and its investing activities.
The carrying amounts of the financial assets
represent the maximum exposure to credit risk.

Carrying amounts of the financial assets presented
in consolidated statement of financial position
are net of impairment losses, if any. The Group
minimises its exposure to the credit risk by
rigorously selecting the counterparties, performing
ongoing credit evaluation on the financial
conditions of its debtors and tightly monitoring the
ageing of the receivables. Follow-up actions are
taken in case of overdue balances.

The credit risk on pledged and restricted bank
deposits and cash and cash equivalents is also
limited because the Group’s pledged and restricted
bank deposits and cash and cash equivalents are all
deposited with major banks located in Hong Kong
and the PRC.

RE BB HRRKE

P AFEF A=+ —HILEE

HHAREERSBMIAZA
¥

AEE 2 EHRREREEH Z AM
%Rk ZXEIIEEEZJ—L ”:IE
R RIS - AR AR
%ﬁﬁéﬁ"ﬁ&ﬂﬂﬁﬁuﬁﬁ
AEBFEYH cHHEAR  SREMNEK
B REXTEH  —KM 5 AKE
FLE R E TR 5T SRR o ¢$l
P D £ 22 T 353 [ i e 5 MK
%E%Eﬁﬁiﬁﬁmiﬂuﬁﬁ
e AKBYBBEITIIESHMTAMN

EEE -

(a) 15 AR B B R B A A

B BB
CERBESRTAZRSHE
EEEMIACZKRBETEE
£ WEHAEE SRSV EEE
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45. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 45. BiIRERETERSB I A A
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS TiE (&)

(continued)
(a) Credit risk and impairment assessment (a) EHAREEBESE(Z)

(continued)
Risk management (continued)

The credit policies have been followed by the Group
since prior years and are considered to have been
effective in limiting the Group's exposure to credit
risk to a desirable level.

The Group's exposure to credit risk is influenced
mainly by the individual characteristics of each
customer. At the end of the reporting period, the
Group has a certain concentration of credit risk
as 21.1% (2018: 20.7%) of the Group's accounts
receivable was due from a major customer of the
Group.

The Group does not hold any collaterals or other
credit enhancements over accounts and bills
receivables, contract assets and deposits and other
receivables.

The Group does not provide any financial guarantee
at the end of the reporting period which would
expose the Group to credit risk.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group has two types of financial assets that are
subject to the expected credit loss model:

- accounts and bills receivables and contract
assets arising from contracts with customers;
and

—  deposits and other receivables.

While pledged and restricted bank deposits and
cash and cash equivalents are also subject to the
impairment requirements of HKFRS 9, the identified
impairment loss was immaterial.
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45. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 45. BiIRERETERSH I A A
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS TiE (&)
(continued)

(a) fERREBREBERTM ()

(@) Credit risk and impairment assessment

(continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued)
Accounts and bills receivables and contract assets

The Group applies HKFRS 9 and measures expected
credit losses based on a lifetime expected loss
allowance for all accounts and bills receivables and
contract assets.

To measure the expected credit losses, accounts
and bills receivables and contract assets have been
grouped based on shared credit risk characteristics
and the days past due. The contract assets relate
to balance under the retention period and have
substantially the same risk characteristics as the
accounts receivable for the same types of contracts.
The Group has therefore concluded that the
expected loss rates for accounts receivable are a
reasonable approximation of the loss rates for the
contract assets.

The estimated ECL loss rates are estimated based
on the Group’s estimates of the market borrowing
rates for each of the groupings, less risk-free rate,
which reflect the credit risk of the debtors, over
the expected life of the debtors and are adjusted
forward-looking information that is available
without undue cost or effort. The grouping is
regularly reviewed by management to ensure
relevant information about specific debtors is
updated. The Group has identified the default risk
forecast for energy industry in the PRC to be the
most relevant factors, and accordingly adjusts the
historical loss rates based on expected changes in
these factors.

TREERME (&)
EUEAREBEREKEE

AEEEREAVHRE LS
9% - WL AT A B MR R R &
K& #EERE = TR HE 1R
W EEHEERE -

SETERBEEER  BERR
EEBRANEECRERZRE
ERBRFBRARRBETD
e ARNEERKREHANSRE
BB Y HEARBLNAONE
Y Bk SX ELB A ERAR [ A L B
e Bt AERE R Eiw S &
WRRHEHERRRENEE
EBiEENAIBAIE -

HETRBEEBEEXRDREAS
EEEBANERFHARS D
A TS E BN R E - R
B AR (REEBANEERRE)
&4@%45\?\ ;imdzﬂjﬁm%%«
ARAEEEN 2B -EEE
EHEENHE UBRENEHE
BEGEBEANEBRER - AEE
E.;HEF'.HZ/ ?%E’Ué%@@ﬁ?ﬁ
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BZERENEREHRARESL
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45. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(continued)

(@) Credit risk and impairment assessment
(continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)
Accounts and bills receivables and contract assets
(continued)

On that basis, the loss allowance as at 31 December
2018 and 2019 was determined as follows for
accounts and bills receivables:

45.

BEERBEEREMIAZA
AE (%)

(a) fERREBREBERME ()

EHREERE (&)

EWIRFT R ERER SR E
(%)

BIEE R-E—\GFR_F
—NF+ZA=+—H sEK
RRLRREE 2 BREET
N

Gross Net
Expected carrying Loss carrying
loss rate amount allowance amount
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHERE IREALE BERE AREEHE
TAT FHET FET
Ageing based on the ERBEAHZER
invoice date
As at 31 December 2019 R=ZT—hF
+=—HA=+—H

0 - 90 days 0%90H 2% 62,773 (972) 61,801
91 - 80 days 91£180H 2% 23,090 (489) 22,601
181 - 365 days 1812365H 8% 11,879 (891) 10,988
Over 365 days B3E365H 100% 28,586 (28,586) -
126,328 (30,938) 95,390

As at 31 December 2018 R=Z— )\

+=-A=+—AH

0 - 90 days 0%290H 2% 213,353 (4,127) 209,226
91 - 80 days 91£180H 2% 224,489 (5,388) 219,101
181 - 365 days 1812365H 8% 26,304 (1,982) 24,322
Over 365 days 838365 H 100% 49,816 (49,816) =
513,962 (61,313) 452,649
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45. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 45. BiIRERETERSH I A A

VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS EE(E)
(continued)
(a) Credit risk and impairment assessment (a) EARMERET ()
(continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued) EHEERE (&)
Accounts and bills receivables and contract assets FEWBRZN R ZR G & H) B E
(continued) (&)
On that basis, the loss allowance as at 31 December BEZEE N N\ELK—
2018 and 2019 was determined as follows for T-hE+-_A=+—HuEY
contract assets: EEETZEEREDT
Gross Net
Expected carrying Loss carrying
loss rate amount allowance amount

HK$'000 ~ HK$'000  HK$'000
FAERE REAE BERE KREFR
TET TAT THET

Ageing based on the ERBEAHZER

invoice date
As at 31 December 2019 R=F— h &
+=HA=+—H
0 - 90 days 0%90H 1% 325 (4) 321
91 - 80 days 91%180H 5% 302 (16) 286
181 - 365 days 181£365H 9% 277 (25) 252
Over 365 days B3E365H 100% 1,363 (1,363) -
2,267 (1,408) 859
As at 31 December 2018 R=F— N\ £
+=HB=+—H
0 - 90 days 0%90H 1% 203 (3) 200
91 - 80 days 912 180H 2% 428 (9) 419
181 - 365 days 181%£365H 5% 1,375 (74) 1,301
Over 365 days BiE365H 100% 365 (365) -
2,371 (451) 1,920
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45. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 45. BiIRERETERSB I A A

VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(continued)

(@) Credit risk and impairment assessment

(continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Accounts and bills receivables and contract assets

(continued)

The movements of loss allowances for accounts and
bills receivables and contract assets are as follows:

E (&)

(%)

CTREERME (&)
EWRAREBEREKEE

(a) fERREBREBERME ()

YRR NEBRANEEZE
BRGSO

Accounts
and bills Contract
receivables assets
HK$'000 HK$'000
ERERREE BHEE
FET T
At 1 January 2018 RZZE-N\F—H—H 47,942 -
Additions through acquisition BRWERBARIRE
of subsidiaries 6,685 -
Increase in loss allowance FARERERZ BEREL
recognised in profit or loss hn
during the year 9,156 470
Exchange realignment PE If, g B (2,470) (19)
At 31 December 2018 and R-ZE—NF+-_A=+—H
1 January 2019 kZZ—-NFE—H—H 61,313 451
Increase in loss allowance FRARERRRZEBEREB
recognised in profit or loss 0
during the year 16,173 978
Disposal of subsidiaries HEMB AR (45,456) -
Exchange realignment bE i, EK (1,092) 21)
At 31 December 2019 R-ZE-NF+=-A=+-—H 30,938 1,408

On 30 December 2019, the Group disposed of
certain subsidiaries together with loss allowances
for accounts and bills receivables of approximately
HK$45,456,000 (2018: Nil) contributed to the
decrease in loss allowances for accounts and bills
receivables during the year ended 31 December

2019.
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45. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 45. BiIRERETERSH I A A
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS TiE (&)
(continued)

(a) fERREBREBERTM ()

(@) Credit risk and impairment assessment

(continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Accounts and bills receivables and contract assets
(continued)

Accounts and bills receivables and contract assets
are written off when there is no reasonable
expectation of recovery. Indicators that there is
no reasonable expectation of recovery include,
amongst others, the failure of a debtor to engage in
a repayment plan with the Group, and a failure to
make contractual payments for a period of greater
than 1 year past due.

Impairment losses on accounts and bills receivables
and contract assets are included in net impairment
loss on financial and contract assets under the
consolidated income statement. Subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written off are
credited against the same line item.

Other financial assets at amortised cost

ECL for other financial assets at amortised cost,
including deposits and other receivables, are
assessed on 12m ECL basis as there had been
no significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition.

To measure the expected credit losses, deposits
and other receivables have been grouped based
on shared credit risk characteristics. The estimated
ECL loss rates are estimated based on the Group’s
estimates of the market borrowing rates for each of
the groupings, less risk-free rate plus certain credit
risk premium, which reflect the credit risk of the
debtors, over the expected life of the debtors within
1 year and are adjusted forward-looking information
that is available without undue cost or effort.

TREERME (&)
EUEAREBEREKEE
(%)
REMER R RIEARANEE
I & A 12 1O U O TR HRRS - T AR
e WESENKWEIAHERE
mR(EHReRm)EBAREERS
BET S EREH S AR RBER B
Hiiad — FHEAa ON® e

e IR MR B ) & B EAR
BEEEAGERERNER N
BHEERERBRFE  REH
B2 RRERKRE - 5+ AR
HE YR

H b5k 2/
BE
REHRAGTENEMEREE
(BRZE MEAMEKFIR)HTE
HEEBRER2MEAEHREE
BEETHE ARBE B RER
PATRAE & R fea 3 S R 0

R ERHEEER SRIEHR
FEERREBEMZE M EME
WHRIRETT oM - hEt TREEE
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45. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(continued)

(@) Credit risk and impairment assessment
(continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Other financial assets at amortised cost
(continued)

The loss allowance for other financial assets at
amortised cost as at 31 December 2018 and 2019

45.

BEERBEEREMIAEZA

FE @
() EARBEBENE(H)

cEEERME (&)

HE 1z B H K A S BR 2 & Bt
BE (&)
RZE—-N\ERZZE—NF+=
A=+—H RBHEKANERZ

as follows: B & E 2 B ERES SN
N
Deposits and
other
receivables
HK$'000
BER
Hib
FIE
FHETT
At 1 January 2018 RZZE—-N\F—H—H 79,094
Written off s (73,263)
Exchange realignment BEE 5, o =8 (302)
At 31 December 2018 and 1 January 2019 R-ZE—N\F+_-_A=1+—HBHXK
—E-—NF—H—H 5,529
Increase in loss allowance recognised in FARARIBRER 2 EEREE N
profit or loss during the year 1,439
Disposal of subsidiaries HE T A A (5,436)
Exchange realignment bE 5, B (112)
At 31 December 2019 RZBE—-h&E+=A=+—H 1,420
(b) Interest rate risk (b) FEEp2
Interest rate risk relates to the risk that the fair value F=mEpIESE T A2 AN FEDK
or cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate B4 mEeREmiE R RgEm

because of changes in market interest rates.
Financial instruments bearing variable rates and
fixed rates expose the Group to cash flow interest
rate risk and fair value interest rate risk respectively.

The interest rates and terms of repayment of the
Group’s bank and other loans are disclosed in note
34. The Group's exposures to fair value interest rate
risk and cash flow interest rate risk on financial
liabilities are minimal. The directors of the Company
consider the Group's exposures to cash flow interest
rate risk on bank and other loans and bank balances
as follows:
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45. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(continued)

(b)

Interest rate risk (continued)

Sensitivity analysis

The following table illustrates the sensitivity of the
Group's loss after income tax and accumulated
losses to a possible change in interest rates of
+/-0.5% (2018: +/-0.5%), with effect from the
beginning of the year. The calculations are based on
the Group’s bank and other loans less bank balances
held at the reporting date. All other variables are
held constant.

45,

BEERBEEREMIAEZA
e (%)

(b) FIEEPE(Z)

HBEDHT
TREME FVR  KEERAT
SHrEBERRFTEBEEFE
BEH IR +/-05%( =T — )\ F :
+/-0.5% ) & 8) 7 RE - L THiR
BEAREBENHRE BEHEE 2 R1T
MEMEFRIRITE ST E o P
BHMATBRERRISTE -

Increase/
(decrease)

in loss after
income tax
and
accumulated
losses
HK$'000
HIBRFI B8
&Sy
#igm, Crd)
FAT

31 December 2019
+0.5%
-0.5%

+0.5%
-0.5%

31 December 2018
+0.5%
-0.5%

+0.5%
-0.5%

The assumed changes in interest rates are
considered to be reasonably possible based on
observation of current market conditions and
represents the management’s assessment of a
reasonably possible change in interest rate over the
period until the next annual reporting date.

The sensitivity analysis included in the consolidated
financial statements of the year ended 31 December
2018 has been prepared on the same basis.

The Group manages interest rate risk by monitoring
its interest rate profile regularly. The Group adopts
a policy of ensuring that most of its borrowings are
on a fixed rate basis. The policies to manage interest
rate risk have been followed by the Group since
prior years and are considered to be effective.

—E-hAEF+=ZA=t+—H

109
(109)

—T-\F+-A=t+—H

1,066
(1,066)

Rl 2 DR EREDDERRRTD
SRR BA B BT
% TAEREUBEF—EFEHR
& BRI 2 AR A AR B
S o

BE_ T \FS+-_A=+—HIt#F
B2 MR e RE DT
TEREREERE -

AEEFEERERNEBESEEH
A R E R o AN B RN — AR - 1
REZ BE T ER B E M REE -
AN REREERRE LFEEH
AEEER BRRBRITIER
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45. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(continued)

(c)

(d)

Foreign currency risk

The sales and purchases of the Group are
predominantly in RMB which is the functional
currency of the related group entities. The directors
of the Company therefore are of the opinion that
the Group’s sensitivity to the changes in foreign
currencies are low and the Group and Company do
not hedge their foreign currency risk.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk relates to the risk that the Group will
not be able to meet its obligations associated with
its financial liabilities that are settled by delivering
cash or another financial asset. The Group is
exposed to liquidity risk in respect of settlement of
its financial obligations, and also in respect of its
cash flow management.

The Group’s objective is to ensure adequate funds
to meet commitments associated with its financial
liabilities. Cash flows are closely monitored on
an ongoing basis. The Group will raise funds
from the realisation of its assets if required. As at
31 December 2019, the Group had net current
liabilities of approximately HK$412,721,000 (2018:
approximately HK$888,441,000) and a capital
deficiency of approximately HK$83,570,000 (2018:
approximately HK$163,467,000). The liquidity of
the Group is primarily dependent on its ability to
maintain adequate cash inflows from operations
and from the measures adopted by the directors
of the Company as detailed in note 3.1 to meet its
debt obligations.

The liquidity policies have been followed by the
Group since prior years and are considered as
effective in managing liquidity risks.
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45. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(continued)
(d) Liquidity risk (continued)

(e)

The table below summarises the maturity profile of
the Group’s financial liabilities based on contractual
undiscounted payments:

45.

—NFF+ZA=1—HILFE

BEERBEEREMIAEZA

FE (&)

(d)

RBESRE(E)

TERABHARITRNE %/ﬁ*ﬁ%
AEETRAE S

Within 6 Over Over
months 1 year 2 years Total
oron 6-12  butwithin  but within Over undiscounted Carrying
demand months 2 years 5 years 5 years amount Discount amount
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000
L NE BB-F BBRE KR
RER +={8A BRER BEFR BBAE Ex by 3] REE
TR THET TR THET T THET T TiET
At 31 December 2019 R=B-1%
tZB=t-H
Accounts and bills payables B RFRER 32,456 - - - - 32,456 - 32,456
Amounts due toand loans B RRFERRERR
from shareholders 6 1,337 - 61,524 - - 62,861 (4,289) 58,572
Other payables, accruals and ~ E-fEFTFIE B BR R
deposit received Blike 332,635 - - - 4,474 337,109 (2,175) 334,934
Lease labilities HEAR 400 24 b] 3 - 680 (15) 665
Bank and other loans RITREMETR 50,459 101,942 - - - 152,401 (5,387) 147,014
417,287 102,176 61,547 23 4,474 585,507 (11,866) 573,641
At 31 December 2018 R=E2-NE+ZA
=t-H
Accounts and bills payables R RFE 658,132 - - - - 658,132 - 658,132
Amount due to an associate J?EH EAUNGIERE] 14,640 - - - - 14,640 - 14,640
Amounts due to and loans BT IR R B R ELRER
from shareholders EX 9,135 - - 65,140 - 74,275 (10,649) 63,626
Other payables, accruals and Bt (78 - [EEH B &
deposit received Blke 525,741 = = = 4,554 530,295 (2,389) 527,906
Bank and other loans BOREMER 771,958 3,000 93,579 - - 868,537 (27,973) 840,564
1,979,606 3,000 93,579 65,140 4,554 2,145,879 (41,011) 2,104,868
Business risk (e) HEBREM
The Group's principal activities include production REBZFEXBRNTEAE
and sales of coal and trading of purchased coal in KIHEHKIARNEEEAERE
the PRC. The Group’s financial performance are G ARBE B EBEKER
influenced by the changes in prices of coal, as well EJJ&$E EHEFHREEAEEER
as by the Group’s ability to maintain or renew all HRNEBERARNEBRNFEHEER

requisite certificates, permits and business licences
from relevant regulatory authorities in the PRC
which is required for the Group to operate in
production and sales of coal in the PRC.

ﬁﬁﬁk%mﬁﬂﬁﬁ M EES /F
ERERPRZBENTE -

e
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45. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(continued)

(f)

Fair values of financial instruments

The following table presents the carrying value
of the Group’s financial instruments easured
at fair value across the three levels of the fair
value hierarchy defined in HKFRS 13 Fair Value
Measurement with fair value of each financial
instrument categorised in its entirety based on
the lowest level of input that is significant to that
fair value measurement. The levels are defined as
follows:
Level 1: fair values measured using quoted prices
(unadjusted) in active markets for identical
1 financial instruments.

Level 2: fair values measured using Level 2 inputs
i.e. observable inputs which fail to
meet Level 1, and not using significant
unobservable inputs. Unobservable inputs
are inputs for which market data are not
available.

Level 3: fair values measured using significant
unobservable input.

As at 31 December 2018, financial assets at FVTOCI
is measured at fair value and is classified as a
Level 3 fair value measurement. The fair values of
unlisted equity investments have been estimated
using market approach based on market price
to net assets ratio and adjusted for the lack of
marketability, which are the significant unobservable
inputs. The market price to net assets ratio and the
discount for lack of marketability applied to this
valuation technique are 2.19 and 15.9%.

The valuation requires the directors of the
Company to make estimates about the market
price to net assets ratio and the discount for lack
of marketability. The directors of the Company
believe that the estimated fair values resulting from
the valuation technique, which are recorded in
the consolidated statement of financial position,
and the related changes in fair values, which are
recorded in OClI, are reasonable.
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45. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(continued)

(f)

Fair values of financial instruments
(continued)

Should the market price to net assets ratio increase
or decrease by 5%, the fair value of the financial
assets at FVTOCI would be increased or decreased
by approximately HK$47,000. Should the discount
for lack of marketability increase or decrease by
1%, the fair value of the financial assets at FVTOCI
would be decreased or increased by approximately
HK$9,000.

The movements during the year in the balance of
level 3 fair value measurement is as follows:

45,

BEERBEEREMIAEZA
e (%)

() EMIBEZDFEE)

i 5 E S EF B ELL R Nk
A5 % - RIFR A FEFF AEA
EHRENTBEERFERE
AN 4> 4947,00078 7T © R =
T 5 it B 1 6 37 3% 48 hn =kOR
1% B R FEFAEMBEE
W SR EEXTERRD K
#EAN499,0007 7T ©

FIMAFEFELEHZFAE
ER NI

Financial

assets at

FVTOCI

HK$'000

BRAYE

ST AEAM

2HEHWEZ

TREE

FABT

At 1 January 2018 R-_Z2—-N\F—H—H 710
Total gain recognised in OCl as change in ~ REMEZEKEER BT ALZEEE
the fair value of equity investments at WamR 2 EAFEFAEMEEY
FVTOCI included in consolidated AZERRE RN EEE 2 WA

statement of comprehensive income £ 8

Exchange realignment B H (36)
At 31 December 2018 and 1 January 2019 R-_ZT—N\F+_A=1+—"HEK =

—hE—H—H 682

Disposal of subsidiaries (note 41) HEMRB AR (HaF41) (670)

Exchange realignment ME 5, AR (12)

At 31 December 2019

During the year, there were no transfers of fair
value measurements between Level 1 and Level
2 and no transfers into or out of Level 3 for both
financial assets and financial liabilities (2018: Nil).
The Group’s policy is to recognise transfers between
levels of fair value hierarchy as at the end of the
reporting period in which they occur.

R-ZF-hAF+=-A=+—H —

FR F-EREF _BRZELE
BEATERE BEeREENRTR
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45. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(continued)

(f)

46.

Fair values of financial instruments
(continued)

Financial instruments not measured at fair
value

Financial instruments not measured at fair value
include accounts and bills receivables, contract
assets, deposits and other receivables, pledged and
restricted bank deposits, cash and cash equivalents,
accounts and bills payables, other payables and
accruals, deposit received, amounts due to and
loans from shareholders, amount due to an
associate, lease liabilities and bank and other loans.

As at 31 December 2019, all financial instruments
measured at amortised costs are carried at amounts
not materially different from their fair values, except
the amounts due to and loans from shareholders
amounting to approximately HK$58,572,000 (2018:
approximately HK$63,626,000). In the opinion of
the directors of the Company, the fair value of the
balance has not been determined as the timing
of the expected cash flows of these balances
cannot be reasonably determined because of the
relationship.

CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The Group’s primary objectives managing capital
are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue
as a going concern, so that it can continue to
provide returns for shareholders and benefits for
other stakeholders, by pricing products and services
commensurately with the level of risk by securing
access to finance at a reasonable cost. the Group’s
overall strategy remains unchanged from that of
prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net
debt, which included outstanding borrowings of
approximately HK$248,980,000 as disclosed in note
3.1, net of cash and cash equivalents and equity
attributable to equity shareholders of the Company,
comprising share capital and deficit in reserves, as
disclosed in notes 28(b), 37 and 38, respectively.
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CAPITAL MANAGEMENT (continued)

The Group actively and reviews and manages its capital
structure to maintain a balance between the higher
shareholder returns that might be possible with higher
levels of borrowings and the advantages and security
afforded by a sound capital position, and makes
adjustments to the capital structure in light of changes in
economic conditions.

EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

The outbreak of the novel coronavirus
("COVID-19")

Since January 2020, the outbreak of COVID-19 in the
PRC and the subsequent related-quarantine measures
imposed by the government of the PRC have had a
negative impact not only on most industries but also
on the operations of the Group, as the Group's core
operations and all the customers are situated in the PRC.
The Group has delayed its production and manufacturing
activities due to the mandatory quarantine measures
imposed by the government in an effort to control
the spread of the epidemic. Up to the date of issue of
these consolidated financial statements, the Group has
gradually resumed the production and operation under
the progressive relaxing of government restrictions.
The temporary shutting down of the Group’s coal mine
and building materials production plant would have
significant influence to revenue and result of the Group
in the first half of the year ending 31 December 2020.

COMPARATIVE AMOUNTS

Repayment to cash advance provided by certain parties,
net, which were previously included in “increase in other
payables and accruals” under cash flows from operating
activities, were represented as single line item under
cash flows from financing activities in the consolidated
statement of cash flows during the year ended 31
December 2018, in order to conform with the current
year's presentation and disclosures.
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49. COMPANY-LEVEL STATEMENT OF
FINANCIAL POSITION

Information about the statement of financial position

49. A TR IR T

BRAARR BRI E BRI BN RED

of the Company at the end of the reporting period is as BERT
follows:
2019 2018
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
K 2% —E-hEF —E-N\F
FET FABTT
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEREE
Non-current asset FREBEE
Investments in subsidiaries KRB AR Z&’E 19,253 19,253
Current assets REBEE
Prepayments TafTFRIE 19 334
Cash and cash equivalents RekBRELFMEEAR 722 439
741 773
Current liabilities REBEE
Other payables H b 5= 20,856 11,391
Amount due to a subsidiary FERT—RIM B A RIFKIE 1,900 -
22,756 11,391
Net current liabilities RBEEFE (22,015) (10,618)
Net (liabilities)/assets (BfE) EEFE (2,762) 8,635
EQUITY RAER
Share capital [N 104,017 104,017
Deficit in reserves AL 38(b) (106,779) (95,382)
(Capital deficiency)/total (BAREH), RS EH
equity (2,762) 8,635

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of
Directors on 13 May 2020 and are signed on its behalf

KREFEN_ZT_TFAA+=B#
ER TR WHATALTRRE

by: FERE:
Bao Hongkai Dong Cunling
B EFR
Director Director
EF EF
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